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Four Seasons Hotels Inc.
PROXY :
Solicited by Management for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on May 22, 2002 :

The unders1gned holder of Limited Votmg Shares of Four Seasons Hotels Inc. (“Four Seasons ) hereby appoints Wolfgang H.
Hengst, or failing him, Kathleen Taylor, or instead of either of them: as proxy for the
undersigned with power of substitution, to attend and vote for and on behalf of the undersigned at the Annual Meetmg of
Shareholders of Four Seasons to be'held on May 22, 2002 and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof in the same manner, to the - -
same extent and with the same powers as if the under51gned were present at the meeting or any adjournments thereof and, without
limiting the general authorization and powers hereby given, the persons named as proxy are specifically directed to vote those shares
of Four Seasons registered in the name of the undersigned as follows:

VOTE [ or WITHHOLD [ ] from voting for the election of two directors entitled to be elected separately, and as a class by
holders of Limited Voting Shares ‘.

VOTE ] or WITHHOLD [] from voting for the election of eleven directors by holders of Limited Voting Shares and Variable
Multiple Voting Shares

VOTE [J or WITHHOLD [] from voting for the appomtment of auditors and the authorization of the directors to fix their
remuneration

SIGNED this : day of C , 2002.
. Signature of Shareholder
NOTES -
1. Ifadate is not inserted in the de51gnated blank space for dating this form of proxy, this proxy shall be deemed to be dated on the day on which it is
malled

2. The shares represented by this proxy received by management will be voted or withheld from voting in accordance with the direction of the
shareholders. In the absence of any direction to the contrary, it is intended that the shares represented by this proxy received by management will
be voted on any ballot: (a) for the election of directors; and (b) for the appointment of auditors and the authorization of the directors to fix the
remuneration of the auditors; all as described in the Management Information Circular dated April 10, 2002.

3. This proxy confers discretionary authority on the above-named with respect to matters not specifically identified in thé notice of meeting
accompanying this proxy but which may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments theréof and with respect to amendments or
vanatxons of matters identified in the notice of meeting. .

4. Each shareholder has the right to appoint a person (who need not be a shareholder) to attend and act for and on behalf of such
shareholder at the meeting other than the persons specified above. Such right may be exercised by striking out the names of the
specified persons and inserting the name of the person to be appointed in the blank space provided or by completing another
appropriate form of proxy and, in either case, delivering the form of proxy to Four Seasons prior to the holding of the meeting.

5. Please sign exactly as your name appears on the proxy. If the shareholder is a corporatlon the proxy should be executed by duly authorized officers.
Detach here

Detach here
IMPORTANT NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS AND DEBENTUREHOLDERS
Canadian Income Tax Legislation requires that holders of securities must provide their Social Insurance Number (SIN) to the issuing company or its
record keeping agent acting on its behalf. Canada Customs and Revenue Agency reserves the right to levy a penalty of $100, for which you would be .
liable, if you do not provide your SIN. If your SIN is not shown in the box helow, or is recorded incorrectly, please enter it in the space prov1ded and
return this form to Computershare Trust Company of Canada in the envelope provided herewith.
SOCIAL INSURANCE NUMBER

COMPLETE AND RETURN AS SOON AS POSSIBLE TO:. Computershare Trust Company of Canada
. 100 University Ave.,
9th Floor -
FROM: ‘ Co Toronto, Ontario M5J 2?1

" PLEASE RECORD/CORRECT MY SOCIAL
INSURANCE NUMBER ON YOUR REGISTER

Tel: Resi { )orveeeoeeenen o Busa ()., o ;
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FouR SEASONS

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.
Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders

TAKE NOTICE THAT an Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of Four Seasons Hotels Inc.
(“Four Seasons”) will be held in the Regency Ballroom, Four Seasons Hotel 21 Avenue Road, Toronto
Ontario on Wednesday, the 22nd day of May, 2002, at 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) to: ’

1. Receivethe ﬁnancial statements for the year ended December 31, 2001, together with the report of
" the auditors on those financial statements;

2. Elect directors;
3. Appoint auditors and authorize the directors to fix their remuneration; and

4. Transact any other busiﬁess that ‘'may properly be brought before the meeting and any
adjournments of the meeting.

A copy of the 2001 Annual Report of Four Seasons accompames thls Notlce

If you are not able to be present personally, please sign and return the form of proxy accompanylng this
Notice in the envelope provxded for that purpose.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario this 10t day of April, 2002.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

RANDOLPH WEISZ
Secretary




FOUR SEASONS
M MM

] - Four Seasons Hotels Inc.
Management Information ,Circular
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FOUR SE ASDNS
MWM

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.
Management Information Circulai'

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on May 22, 2002

This Management Information Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation by
management of Four Seasons Hotels Inc. (“Four Seasons’’) of proxies to be used at the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders of Four Seasons (the ‘“‘Meeting”’) to be held on May 22, 2002 at the
time, place and for the purposes set out in the Notice of Meeting accompanying this
Management Informatlon Circular and any adjournments of the Meeting. It is expected that
the solicitation will be prlmarlly by mail. The costs of solicitation will be borne by Four
Seasons.

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES
Voting of Shares Represented by Proxies

The shares represented by any proxy received by management will be voted or withheld "
from voting by the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy in accordance with the .
direction of the shareholders appointing them. In the absence of any direction to the contrary,
it is intended that the shares represented by proxies received by management will be voted on
any ballot:

« for the election of those persons listed below as directors; and

» for the appointment of auditors and authorization of the directors to le the
remuneration of the auditors;

all as described in this Management Information Circular.

The enclosed form of ‘proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named therein with
respect to matters not specifically mentioned in the Notice of Meeting but that may properly come before
" the Meeting or any adjournments and amendments or variations of matters identified in the Notice of
Meeting. Management currently has no knowledge of any such amendment, variation or matter other than
routine matters incidental to the conduct of the Meeting. If any other business is properly brought before
the Meeting, it is intended to vote on such other business in such manner as the persons appointed as proxy
‘then consider to be proper.

Appointment and Revocation of Proxies

The persons named in the enclosed form of proky are senior officers of Four Seasons. Each shareholder
has the right to appoint a person (who need not be a shareholder) other than the persons named in the
enclosed form of proxy to attend and act for and on that shareholder’s behalf at the Meeting. This right may




be exercised by striking out the names of the named persons and inserting the name of the person to be
appointed in the blank space provided in the enclosed form of proxy or by completing another appropriate
form of proxy. In either case, the form of proxy must be delivered to Four Seasons prior to the holding of the
Meeting. : :

A shareholder may revoke a proxy at any time before it has been exercised. Subsection 110(4) of the
Bustness Corporations Act (Ontario) gives shareholders a right to revoke a proxy and sets out a procedure
for revoking proxies by depositing an instrument in writing or transmitting a revocation by telephonic or
electronic means so.that it is received by Four Seasons at its registered office at any time up to and including
the last business day before the Meeting (or any adjournment) or with the Chairman of the Meeting on the
day of the Meetmg (or any adjournment).

VOTING SHARES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

The authorized share capital of Four Seasons consists of an unlimited number of First Preference
Shares, issuable in series, an unlimited number of Second Preference Shares, issuable in series, 3,982,172
Variable Multiple Voting Shares and an unlimited number of Limited Voting Shares. At March 23, 2002,
3,982,172 Variable Multiple Voting Shares and 31,154,357 Limited Voting Shares were outstanding.

Holders of Variable Multiple Voting-Shares and Limited Voting Shares of record at the close of business
on April 15, 2002 will be entitled to vote at the Meeting, except to the extent that the holder has transferred
. any of those shares after that date and the new holder produces properly endorsed certificates evidencing

those shares (or otherwise establishes proper ownership) and demands at any time before the Meeting to be
included in the list of shareholders eligible to vote at the Meeting. Holders of Limited Voting Shares are
entitled to vote on all matters that come before the Meeting. Holders of Variable Multiple Voting Shares are
entitled to vote on all matters that come before the Meeting, other than the election as directors of the two
individuals indicated under the heading ‘“Nominees for Election by the Holders of Limited Voting Shares”’.
As at March 23, 2002, each Limited Voting Share entitles the holder to one vote and each Variable Multlple
“Voting Share entitles the holder to 15.2 votes.

_ To the knowledge of the directors and officers of Four Seasons, the only persons that own, of record or
own beneficially, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over securities of Four Seasons
carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attaching to any class of voting securities of Four.Seasons are
as follows:

As at March 23, 2002

~ . No. of  Percentage
Name and Address Désignation of Class Type of Ownership ‘Securities  of Class

Triples Holdings Limited®™ = Variable Multiple Voting beneficially and of record 3, 982,172 100%
Toronto, Ontario Shares

" Kingdom Investments Inc.® Limited Voting Shares  beneficially and of récord 7,568,504 24.30%
. Bridgetown, Barbados ’

Bank of America Corporation Limited Voting Shares B 5,145,570  16.52%.
Charlotte, North Carolina '

Putnam Investments, LLC  Limited Voting Shares — @ .3,413691 10.96%
Boston, Massachusetts » _ )
(1) All the outstanding shares of Triples Holdings Limited are beneficially owned by Isadore Sharp and members of his immediate

" family. At March 23, 2002, the votes attaching to the outstanding Variable Multiple Voting Shares represented approximately
- 66.02% of the votes attaching to all outstandmg votmg securities of Four Seasons.

(2) Kingdom Investments Inc. is a company controlled by His Royal Highness Prince Alwaleed Bin Ta.lal Bin Abdulaziz Al Saud of
Saudi Arabia.

(3) Four Seasons has relied on a Schedule 13G filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission disclosing the number of
Limited Voting Shares over which Bank of America Corporation and its subsidiaries have voting or dispository power,

(4) Four Seasons has relied on a Schedule 13G filed with the US Securities and Exchange Commission disclosing the number of
Limited Voting Shares over which Putnam Investments, LLC and its subsidiaries have Votmg or dlsposn:ory power.




ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy intend to vote for the election of the thirteen
nominees whose names are set out below. All the nominees are now, and have been since the years indicated,
members of the Board of Directors. Management does not contemplate that any of the proposed nominees
will be unable to serve as a director. If that should occur for any reason prior to the Meeting, the persons
'named\in the énclosed form of proxy reserve the right to vote for another nominee in their discretion. It is
intended that each director will hold office until the next annual election of directors. '

The following table sets out the names of the nominees, all major positions and offices with Four
Seasons presently held by them, their principal occupations, the year they became a director of Four
Seasons and the number of voting securities of Four Seasons beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by
them or aver which they exercise control or dlrectlon as of March 23, 2002.

Year
Name and Position with ) Became Va.rlable Multlple Limited Voting
Corporation Principal Occupation Director  Voting SharesV Shares'V.

NOMINEES FOR ELECTION BY THE HOLDERS OF LIMITED VOTING SHARES

Nan-b de Gaspé Co‘Chair Business Families 1997 — 4,000
Beaubien®® Foundation® and Co-Chair,

Director " Philbeau Company‘” " _ _

dJ. Robert S. Prichard® President, Torstar Media . 1996 —_ 1,000 . -

Director

Group and Chief Operating
Officer, Torstar
Corporatlon(s)

NOMINEES FOR ELECTION BY THE HOLDERS OF LIMITED VOTING SHARES AND
VARIABLE MULTIPLE VOTING SHARES

Director

Japan-Mexico Hotel
Investment Co., Ltd.®¥

Edmond M. Creed® Retired Executive 1978 — 65,456
Director o ‘
Frederick Eisen President and Chief 1985 — 134,557
Director Executive Officer, The
. Eisen Corporation® ,

'H.4Roger Garland Corporate Director 1985 — 86,603 .
Director ’
Charles S. Henry®®® President, Hotel Capital 1894 — 2,500
Director Advisers, Inc.t?
Murray B. Kofﬂer(3 @ Partner, The Koffler 1978 — 79,478
Director . Group™?
Lionel H. Schipper@®® President, Schipper 1988 —_ 52,953
Director Enterprises Inc.“V ,

" Isadore Sharp'® Officer of Four Seasons and 1978 3,982,17242 —
Chairman, Chief Executlve Four Seasons Hotels .
Officer and Director Limited
Anthony Sharp President, AD Sharp 1999 — 76,204
Director Development, Inc.t¥
Benjamin Sw1rsky(2)(3) Chairman and Chief 1985 — —
Dlrector Executive Officer, Beswir

- Properties Inc,®V

Shuichiro Tamaki Executive Vice-President, 1991 —_ —_




Year

Name and Position with . Became  Variable Multiple Limited Voting
Corporation Principal Occupation Director  Voting Shares”’ Shares‘?
Simon M. Turner®® Principal, Hotel Capital 200218 —_— . 1,800
Director Advisers, Inc.'® .

Notes:

(1) The information as to shares beneficially held or controlled, not being within the knowledge of Four Seasons, has been furnished.
by the nominees. .

(2) Member of Compensation and Organization Committee.
(3) Member of Audit Committee. »
(4) Member of Corporate Governance Committee.

(5) Nominee of Kingdom Investments Inc. under an agreement with Triples Holdings Limited and Isadore Sharp pursuant to which
Triples and Mr. Sharp have agreed to support the-election of two nominees of Kingdom to the Board of Directors of Four Seasons.

{6) Non-profit foundation.

N 'Investment/}{olding company.

(8) Media and publishing company.

(9) Financial and development consulting company.
(10) Hotel investment advisory firm.

(11) Investment/holding company.

(12) See ‘“Voting Shares and Principal Holders Thereof”'.
(13) Real estate/resort development company.

* (14) Real estate holding bcompany

(15) Mr. Turner also served as a director of Four Seasons between January 2, 1997 and August 2, 2000.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

‘ Management proposes that KPMG LLP Chartered Accountants, Toronto, On’carlo be reappointed as
auditors of Four Seasons and that the directors be authorized to fix the remuneration of the auditors.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, fees for audit and audit-related services provided by
KPMG LLP for Four Seasons and its subsidiaries were $638,000. Fees of $499,095 were incurred for
non-audit services provided by KPMG LLP. These services included legislative and regulatory compliance,
tax and other general consulting services.

REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION -

The Compensation and Organization Committee (the “Compensation Committee”) of the Board of
Directors is responsible for approving annually the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and for
reviewing the compensation of all other executive officers. The Compensation Committee also reviews all
" human resources policies and decisions of strategic significance to Four Seasons

The Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors recognise that the high operating standards
consistently achieved in Four Seasons properties and the service culture and philosophy on which those
standards are based represent a significant competitive advantage, which underpins the strength of Four
Seasons brand. Preserving and enhancing operating standards and service culture in a growing number of
diverse locations around the world is increasingly important as Four Seasons rapidly expands its operations
internationally. '

Extending Four Seasons’ operating standards and service culture into new and different linguistic and
cultural environments places a premium on the early recognition and development of an increasing number
of multi-lingual, culturally adaptable managers with the operating and functional skills, communication

and leadership ability to quickly create a true Four Seasons experience for employees and guests in each




new location. Accordingly, the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors regard the processes of
management selection, training, compensation, career planning and development together with sound
succession planning as being of the highest strategic significance. .

Composition of the Compensation and Organization Committee

During 2001, the Compensation Committee consisted of Mr. Isadore Sharp and five non-executive
members of the Board of Directors, none of whom is an officer, employee or former employee of Four
Seasons or any of its subsidiaries. The five non-executive members of the Board of Directors referred to
above are Lionel Schipper (Chairman), Edmond Creed, Nan-b de Gaspé Beaubien, Charles Henry and
Benjamin Swirsky. ' « ' ‘

During 2001, five meetings of the Compensation Committee were held. Mr. Sharp was not present
when matters relating to his own compensation, or any other matters in which he might have a conflict of »
interest, were under discussion.

-

Cdmpensation Philosophy

The business strategy of Four Seasons is to capitalise on its acknowledged leadership position in the
luxury segment of the hospitality industry and to enhance overall profitability through a focussed
international expansion programme (including in its Residential Properties business) while maintaining its
historie strengths in employee relations and customer service. The knowledge, skill, experience, stability
and commitment of all employees, but particularly of senior management, are of crltlcal importance to the
short and long term achievement of this business strategy.

Four Seasons’ future growth, development and acquisition opportunities lie predominantly in areas
such as Europe, the Middle East, South America and Asia/India. The structure of total compensation for
Four Seasons’ executives is, therefore, designed to attract, motivate and retain executives who have the
experience, ability, cross-cultural sensitivity and flexibility to direct and manage the growth of Four
Seasons in this global context. The Compensation Committee believes that the retention of the existing
management team and the development of qualified successors through progressive internal development
are important .components of a process designed to assure the continuity of Four Seasons operating
standards, service culture and brand strength

Given Four Seasons’ widely acknowledged leadership in its chosen segment and the relatively limited
supply of qualified executives, the Compensation Committee closely monitors the compensation practices of
~ .other leading international hotel companies.

Structure of Compensation

Four Seasons’ compensation program has three principal components: basic salary, annual incentives
and stock options. The relative weighting of the components of this compensation structure encourages a
focus on building long-term shareholder value, as well as on optimising business performance through the
effective management and enhancement of all aspects of business operations and key staff functions and
through sound teamwork and co-ordination of all strategic activities.

Total remuneration for executive officers is intended to approximate the 75th percentile of
remuneration levels offered by a carefully identified group of international hotel companies (including
Hyatt, Hilton, Meridien, Starwood, Mandarin, Shangrl la and The Ritz- Carlton division of Marriott, among
others).

Basic Salary

Competitive basic salaries are required to provide an adequate level of base after-tax income, when
compared with other international tax jurisdictions in which the executive officers have the opportunity to
take employment. Basic salaries reﬂect for each mdmdual their position, scope, experience and
performance.




In view of the rapid growth occurring in the international hospitality industry and of the increasing
level of competition for qualified management, the Compensation Committee recognises that significant
increases in basic salaries for certain executive officers may be necessary in order to preserve an
appropriate competitive position. However, given the current economic climate no increases have been
proposed for 2002, with the exception of compensation adjustments related to promotions or job scope
- changes. ‘

Annual Incentive Plans -

Four Seasons operates an Annual Incentive Plan for all senior officers. Awards under this plan are
based on a combination of financial and non-financial measures of corporate and individual performance.
The target incentive value is 30% of eligible basic earnings in the fiscal year, with the maximum incentive
value being 45% of eligible basic earnings. Individual incentive values are derived from a formula based on
net earnings performance of Four Seasons, as well as the level of achievement of individual goals in specific
key result areas. Incentive awards are paud in the first quarter of the year following the fiscal year to which
they relate. '

In respect of 2001, participating senior executives received no incentive payment based on the ﬁnancial
component of the incentive plan, because the net earnings of Four Seasons did not attain the threshold level
required under the Plan. , ‘ . ‘

Options to Purchase Securities

Four Seasons maintains the Director, Executive and Employee Stock Option Plan (the “Plan’), the
purpose of which is to foster a close identification among Four Seasons, the participants and the long term
interests of shareholders. Relative to other international hotel companies, Four Seasons places greater
emphasis on stock options as an element of total compensation. The Compensation Committee is satisfied
that the five year vesting schedule that applies to virtually all option grants under the Plan assists in the -
retention of executives whose contributions have an impact on the effective implementation of strategic
‘plans. . :

Options were granted in various amounts and at various prices during 2001 and in prior years in
" accordance with the provisions of the Plan. All options are issued at an exercise price determined by
reference to the weighted average price of board lots traded on The Toronto Stock Exchange in the five
trading days preceding the date of grant. The options are not transferable, have a term of ten years, and
generally become exercisable in varying proportions on each of the first five anniversaries of the date of
grant.

Compensaﬁon of' the Chief Executive Officer

All components of the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation are determlned by the Compensation’
Committee, without the involvement of Mr. Sharp. .

Consistent with prior practlce, the total compensation package of the Chief Executive Officer for 2002
was reviewed with the assistance of an independent consulting firm having regard to both general and
industry-specific survey data. Organizations participating in these surveys include leading international
hotel companies as well as various Canadian public companies whose revenues, profitability and market
‘capitalization are comparable to those of Four Seasons. Based on the consultant’s review, the Compensation
. Committee was satisfied that Mr. Sharp’s total compensation was appropriately competitive with. the
comparative group.

In 2001, Mr. Sharp received a basic annual salary of $1,631,015 and participated in the Four Seasons’
Annual Incentive Plan. With effect from January 1, 2002, Mr Sharp’s basic annual salary remained
unchanged (consistent with the practice for corporate employees of Four Seasons).

March 25, 2002 ,
Report presented by:

Lionel Schipper (Chalrman)
Edmond Creed

Nan-b de Gaspé Beaubien
Charles Henry

Isadore Sharp

Benjamin Swirsky




SHAREHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return on
Four Seasons’ Limited Voting Shares against the cumulative total shareholder return of the TSE 300
Composite Index for the flve-year period commencing December 31, 1996 and ending December 31, 2001*.
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*  Assumes that the initial value of the investment in Four Seasons’ Limited Voting Shares and in the TSE 300 Composite Index was
$100 on December 31, 1996, and that all subsequent dividends were re-invested.




EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the annual and long-term compensation earned for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, for the Chief Executive Officer and the four other most highly
compensated executive officers of Four Seasons and its subsidiaries. Those listed on the table are referred to
as the “Named Executive Officers”.

2001 Compensation — Summary Table

Long-Term
Compensation
Annual Compensation Awards
Securities
’ Under '
T Other Annual | Options/SAR’s All Other
Salary Bonus Compensation Granted Compensation

Name and Principal Position Year (€3] ($) ($)w (#)®

Isadore Sharp 2001 | 1,631,015 | 366,978 — — 2,327
Chairman and Chief 2000 | 1,560,780 | 702,351 — — 2,327
Executive Officer 1999 | 1,500,750 | 675,338 — — 3,776
Wolfgang H. Hengst 2001 | 522,500 | 117,562 — — 12,836
President . 2000 500,000 | 225,000 —_ — 10,312
‘Worldwide Hotel Operations 1999 469,890 | 211,451 — 348,572 6,928
Kathleen P. Taylor 2001 522,500 | 117,562 — — 14,558
President- 2000 450,000 | 202,500 — — 11,907
Worldwide Business Operations 1999 362,500 | 163,125 109,792 310,000 8,350
Douglas L. Ludwig 2001 415,000 93,375 — — 13,528
Executive Vice President, Chief { 2000 375,000 | 168,750 — — 11,270
Financial Officer and Treasurer 1999 340,000 | 153,000 —_ 310,000 9,120
Antoine Corinthios 2001 348,482 73,181 830,801 — 25,424
President — Europe, Middle East 2000 319,993 | 137,997 588,043 — 23,516
~and Africa , ‘ B 1999 308,344 | 132,974 | 542,937 2,572 12,435

‘(1) Except as indicated, the value of perquisites and benefits for each Named Executive Officer is less than the lesser of $50,000 and
10% of total annual salary and bonus. The value of perquisites and benefits for each Named Executive Officer does not
individually exceed 25% of total Other Annual Compensation. '

(2) Mr. Sharp does not participate in the Plan (See “Long-Term Incentive Plan”).
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Stock Options

There were no grants of options to purchase Limited Voting Shares of Four Seasons made in 2001 to the
Named Executive Officers under the Plan.

The following table sets forth details of the exercise of certain options by each of the Narried Executive
Officers during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, and the fiscal year- end value of unexercised
options on an aggregated basis.

Aggregate Option Exercises in 2001 and Year-end Option Values

Value of Unexercised
Aggregate Unexercised Options at in-the-Money Options at
Optlons Value December 31, 2001 December 31, 2001
R exercised Realized (#) : (€]
Name (#) %) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Isadore Sharp® - ) — —_ —_ —_ —_ —
Wolfgang H. Hengst 18,200 1,284,591 111,763 362,672 5,013,314 8,434,241
Kathleen P Taylor : 350 15,544 78,452 310,000 3,901,418 | 7,221,000
Douglas L. Ludwig — — - 98,525 © 310,000 4,899,648 7,221,000
Antoine Corinthios - 1,500 83,385 129,217 49,572 4,309,359 | 1,655,141

(1) Mr. Sharp does not participate in the Plan (See “'Long-Terrn Incentive Plan™).

Long-Term Incentlve Plan '

At a special meeting of shareholders held on December 19 1989, the shareholders of Four Seasons
approved a long term incentive plan (the “Incentive Plan’’) for the Chlef Executive Officer of Four Seasons.
Under the Incentive Plan, Four Seasons and its principal operating subsidiary, Four Seasons Hotels Limited
(“FSHL”), have agreed that FSHL will make a payment to the Chief Executive Officer on an arm’s-length’
sale of control of Four Seasons. The first portion of the payment will be an amount equal to 5% of the
product of (i) the aggregate number of Variable Multiple Voting Shares and Limited Voting Shares

" outstanding at the time of the sale and (ii) the per share consideration received by holders of Limited Voting
Shares minus $6.30. If the per share consideration received by holders of Limited Voting Shares on the sale
is equal to or greater than 125% of the weighted averdge price of Limited Voting Shares traded in board lots
on The Toronto Stock Exchange during the period commencing six months and ending one month prior to -
the first public announcement of the sale, the Chief Executive Officer is entitled to an additional payment
equal to 5% of the product of (i) the aggregate number of Variable Multiple Voting Shares and Limited
Voting Shares outstanding at the time of the sale and (ii) the per share consideration received by holders of -
Limited Voting Shares minus $20.84. ;

The right to receive the two payments may be transferred among members of the Chief Executive
Officer’s family, their holding companies and trusts. Upon the death of the Chief Executive Officer, the
right to the payments passes to his legal or personal representatives, heirs or permitted assigns. ‘

At the time the Incentive Plan was implemented, the Chief Executive Officer surrendered to Four
Seasons an option to acquire 1,000,000 Limited Voting Shares which was granted to him on December 6,
1985 at an exercise price of $6.30 per share.
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INTERNATIONAL RETIREMENT PLAN

All senior officers of Four Seasons and its subsidiaries participate in the International Retirement
Plan, which is a non-qualified, non-registered plan providing benefits based on each participant’s credited
service and average pensionable earnings over the three years immediately preceding retirement.
Following 25 years of credited service, and on reaching ages between 60 and 65, the officer is entitled to
receive on retirement a life annuity benefit equal to 55% of his or her average pens1onable earnings in the
three years immediately preceding retirement (“Fmal Average Salary’).

The table below illustrates the total annual retirement beneﬁt under this plan to an eligible officer at

various levels of service and salary.

Pension Plan Table

Years of Service
2001
-Basic Salary '

‘ $) 15 20 25 30 v 35
$200,000 $66,000 $88,000 $110,000 3110,000 . $110,000
$300,000 ' $99,000 $132,000 $165,000 $165,000 $165_,000
$400,000 - $132,000 $176,000 $220,000 $220,000 © $220,000 -
$500,000 . $165,000 "$220,000 $275,000 ' $275;000 $275,000
$600,000 $198,000 $264,000 $330,000 o $330,000 $330,000
$700,000 - $231,000 $308,000 $385,000 $385,000 $385,000
$800,000 $264,000 $352,000 $440,000 $440,000 $440,000
$900,000 $297,000 $396,000 . $495,000 $495,000 . $495,000

$1,000,000 ‘ $330,000 $440,000 $550,000 $550,000 $550,000

$1,100,000 $336,000 $484,000 $605,000 ' $605,000 $605,000
$1,200,000 $396,000 - $528,000 $660,000 . $660,000 $660,000
$1,300,000 . $429,000 $572,000 $715,000 $715,000 $715,000
$1,400,000 $462,000. $616,000 $770,000 $770,000 © $770,000
$1,500,000 $495,000 $660,000 $825,000 $825,000.. $825,000
$1,600,000 $528,000 .$704,000 $880,000 . $880,000 $880,000
$1,700,000 - $561,000 $748,000» $935,000 [ $935,000 $935,000

For the purposes of calculating pension benefits, compensation includes only basic salary and excludes
annual incentives pursuant to the Annual Incentive Plan and other perquisites. Amounts paid under
the International Retirement Plan are not subject to any deduction for social security or any other

offset amounts.

For each Named Executive Officer, the number of years of service credited for purposes of the Pension

Plan Table is as follows:

Named Executive Officer

Credited Years of Service

Isadore Sharp .. .......... .. .. ... .. .. ..... e 40

Wolfgang H. Hengst . . . .. S e e 24,20
Kathleen B Taylor .. ................ e 12.80
Douglas L. Ludwig. . .. oo ooo oo i 17.50
‘Antoine Corinthios .. ........... e L 24.7
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INDEBTEDNESS UNDER SECURITIES PURCHASE PROGRAMS

In December 1985, Four Seasons issued Employee Preference Shares (‘EPS”) to certain employees of
Four Seasons and its subsidiaries (including certain hotel general managers). EPS were non-voting and
ranked equally (to the extent of issue price plus declared and unpaid dividends) with Variable Multiple
Voting Shares and Limited Voting Shares as to distributions on liquidation or winding-up of Four Seasons.
EPS were convertible at the option of the holder into 2.14286 Limited Voting Shares per EPS. At the time of
issuance of the EPS, the employees borrowed funds from a Canadian chartered bank to acquire the EPS
(the “EPS Loans”) and deposited as security with the bank the EPS so acquired. The EPS Loans are
guaranteed by FSHL and bear interest at market rates. On February 6, 1996, each of the
56,625 outstanding EPS were converted into Limited Voting Shares and the share certificates for Limited
Voting Shares acquired on the conversion thereof were deposited with the bank as security for the EPS
Loans. FSHL continues to guarantee the EPS Loans. As of March 23, 2002, 62,282 Limited Voting Shares
remain dep051ted with the bank as security for the EPS Loans outstandlng as at that date.

Asat March 23, 2002, the aggregate indebtedness guaranteed by Four Seasons or its subsidiaries, of all

officers, directors, employees and former officers, directors and employees of Four Seasons or any of its

. subsidiaries (including certain hotel general managers) entered into in connection with the purchase of
securities of Four Seasons was $435,637.

The following table sets forth the indebtedness to Four Seasons or the indebtedness guaranteed by
. FSHL, of all directors, executive officers and senior officers of Four Seasons entered into in connection with
the purchase of securities of Four Seasons.

Indebtedness o’f Directors, Executive Officers and Senior Officers Under Securities Purchase Programs

Largest Amount Financially

- Outstanding . Amount Assisted Securities
Involvement of During Fiscal COutstanding as at | Purchases During
Name and Four Seasons or 2001 . March 23, 2002 Fiscal 2001 Security for
Principal Position" Subsidiary (€3] €3] %) Indebtedness
Wolfgang H. Hengst Guaranteed by 112,500 - 112,500 — Limited Voting

President

Worldwide Hotel -

Four Seasons

Shares of Four

-Seasons

Hotels Limited

Operations

INDEBTEDNESS OTHER THAN UNDER SECURITIES PURCHASE PROGRAMS -

As at March 23, 2002, the aggregate indebtedness to Four Seasons and its subsidiaries of all officers,
directors, employees and former officers, directors and employees of Four Seasons or any of its subsidiaries
(including certain hotel general managers) not entered into in connection with the purchase of securities of
Four Seasons or any of its subsidiaries, excluding routine indebtedness, was $11,828,439.

FSHL pays interest on, and guarantees up to 10% of, the aggregate. indebtedness to a Canadian
chartered bank of certain officers, directors, employees and former officers, directors and employees of Four
Seasons and its subsidiaries not entered into in connection with the purchase of securities of Four Seasons
or any of its subsidiaries. As at March 23, 2002, the aggregate amount of such indebtedness, excluding
routine 1ndebtedness was $3,873,475.
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Indebtedness of Directors, Executive Officers and Senior Officers

Other Than Under Securities Purchase Programs
(Other Than Routine Indebtedness)

Largest. Amount
Qutstanding :
During 2001 . Amount
Involvement of Four Seasons Fiscal Year Outstanding as at

Name and Principal Position‘V or Subsidiary® [€3] March 23, 2002
Antoine Corinthios " | Interest paid by Four Seasons Hotels | $ 229,715%® $130,000@®
President — Europe, Middle East - | Limited :
and Africa .
Wolfgang H. Hengst . Interest paid by Four Seasons Hotels | § 683,325% |  $607,950%
President - Limited. .
Worldwide Hotel Operation .
Douglas L. Ludwig Interest paid by Four Seasons Hotels | $ 212,469® $209,868%
Executive Vice President Limited $1,372,006 $617,713
Chief Financial Officer and ' :
Treasurer . _ _
Craig Reith ] Interest paid by Four Seasons Hotels | $ 182,278@ $176,271®
Vice President, Finance and . Limited -
Assistant Treasurer
Barbara M. Talbott Interest paid by Four Seasons Hotels | $ 307,333® $358,1309
Executive Vice President Limited .-
Marketing .
Kathleen P. Taylor Interest paid by Four Seasons Hotels | $ 935,502 $892,835®
President Limited
Worldwide Business Operations ‘ ‘ o
Randolph Weisz ‘ Interest paid by Four Seasons Hotels | § 434,250 $423,375@
Senior Vice Pregident .. | Limited
General Counsel and Secretary o :
John W. Young * | Interest paid by Four Seasons Hotels | $ 506,463 $499,216
Executive Vice President ‘ Limited . .
Human Resources

. (1) All the individuals named reside in Toronto, other than Mr. Corinthios who resides in Geneva, Switzerland.

(2) Four Seasons maintains a Housing Loan Plan pursuant to which loans are made to senior management personnel and certain
hotel general managers to assist with the purchase of residences. These loans are interest-free to the employees and are generally
assigned to a Canadian chartered bank. FSHL guarantees 10% of the total portfolio of loans so assigned and pays interest to the
bank on the loans for the benefit of the personnel participating in the Housing Loan Plan. The loans are repayable.by the
employees over twenty years, and are secured by a mortgage on the particular residence.

(8) Amount of loan assigned to a Canadian chartered bank.
(4) Amount of loan-directly from Four Seasons or its subsidiaries.
(5) Effective and retroactive from 1998, a sum of US$50,000 is forgiven per annum from the total combined outstanding loan balance.
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

Four Seasons has change-in-control arrangements that cover the Named Executive Officers and
certain other senior officers. These arrangements are intended to assist in the retention of an experienced
group of senior managers who, in the event of a change-in-control, could bring stability during an important
transitional period, as well as to continue to direct the growth and development of Four Seasons.

These arrangements are triggered by the termination of employment of the officers to whom these
arrangements apply within two years following the loss by Mr. Sharp and/or related parties of Mr. Sharp of
voting control sufficient to elect a majority of the members of the Board of Directors of Four Seasons or the
approval by the shareholders of Four Seasons of the sale of a significant portion of its assets, dissolution of a
significant portion of its business or any similar event or series of events. In these circumstances, each of
the officers to whom these arrangements apply would be paid a lump sum equal to three years of salary and
bonus entitlement. Each of the officers also would be entitled to continuation of medical, disability and life

insurance coverage, incremental benefits under the International Retirement Plan, financial counselling,

extension of the term of outstanding housing loans and accelerated vesting of outstanding options.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

Each director who is not an employee is paid a retainer of $15,000 per annum for services as a director
and a fee of $1,250 for each attendance at a meeting of the Board of Directors.

In addition, the Chairman of each committee of the Board of Directors (none of whom is an employee) is
paid a retainer of $4,000 per annum for services in that capacity. Other members of the committees are not
paid an annual retainer. A committee meeting fee of $1,250 is payable to each member of a committee.

Directors are reimbursed for all reasonable travel expenses incurred for the purpose of attending
directors’ meetings or meetings of any committees of the Board of Directors. It is Four Seasons’ policy to
provide lodging and food and beverage privileges to outside directors in accordance with industry practice.

Schipper Enterprises Inc., a company controlled by Lionel Schipper, is paid $15,000 pér year for

_services rendered as an adviser to Four Seasons in corporate, financial and general matters.

Anthony Sharp is paid approximately $60,000 per year plus reimbursement of all reasonable expenses
for services rendered as a consultant to Four Seasons in respect of Four Seasons’ Residence Club business
and general matters. :

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Four Seasons and its principal subsidiaries have purchased insurance for the benefit of the directors
and officers of Four Seasons and its subsidiaries against certain liabilities which may be incurred by them in

_ their capacity as directors and officers, as specified in the policy of insurance and subject to.the limitations

contained in the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). The annual premium allocated to Four Seasons and
FSHL for such insurance amounts to US$95,000. The policy provides coverage of US$50 million for each
loss and each policy year. Each claim is subject-to a US$100,000 deductible in respect of each loss for the
insured organization. The by-laws of Four Seasons provide for the indemnification of directors and officers
from and against any liability and costs in respect of any action or suit against them as a result of the
execution of their duties of office, subject to the limitations contained in the Business Corporations Act
(Ontario).

APPROVAL BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

" The Board of Directors of Four Seasons has approved the contents and sending of this Management
Information Circular.

15




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Four Seasons will provide to any person or éompany, upon receipt of a request by the Secretary of Four
Seasons and payment of reasonable photocopy charges, a copy of:

1. the most recent Annual Information Form and Management Discussion & Analysis, together with
a copy of any document or pertinent pages of any document incorporated therein by reference;

2. the comparative audited financial statements of Four Seasons for its financial year ended
December 31, 2001, and the report of its auditors thereon;

interim financial unaudited statements released subsequent to the date hereof, and

4. this Management Information Circular..

. | . (Signed) RANDOLPH WEISZ
: Secretary

_April 10, 2002
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We have chosen to specialize within the hospitality industry, by offering only experiences of exceptional
quality. Qur objective is to be recognized as the company that manages the finest hotels, resorts, residence clubs and other
residential projects w.herever we locate. We create properties of enduring value using superior design and finishes,
and support them with a deeply instilled ethic of personal service. Doing so allows Four Seasons to satisfy the needs

and tastes of our discriminating customers, and to maintain our position as the world's premier luxury hospitality company.

Our greatest asset, and the key to our success, is our people. We believe that each of us needs
a sense of dignity, pride and satisfaction in what we do. Because satisfying our guests depends on the united efforts of

many, we are most effective when we work together cooperatively, respecting each other's contribution and importance.

We demonstrate our beliefs most meaningfully in the way we treat each other and by the example
we set for one another. In all our interactions with our guests, business associates and colleagues, we seek to deal with
others as we would have them deal with us.

We succeed when every decision is based on a clear understanding of and belief in what we do
and when we couple this conviction with sound financial planning. We expect to achieve a fair and reasonable profit
to ensure the prosperity of the company, and to offer long-term benefits to our hotel owners, our shareholders, our
customers and our employees.
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FOUR SEASONS. | S

Financial Highlights
All amounis referred 10 in this document are in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted.

(In miltions of Canadian dollars except per share amounts) ’ 2001 - 2000 . 1999

Revenues under management S 8§ 28059 $ 28207 $ 23702
EBITDA ' s  .85.0 $ 1394 $ 975
Net earnings S ' 865. $ 103.1 $ ' 86.5
Basic earnings per share $ 2.48 $ 2.88 $ 252
Cash provided by operations $ 75.5 $ 102.6 3 106.8
Long-term debt $ 119.4 $ 204.9 $ 187.1
Cash and cash equivalents S 210.4 3 2181 3 2222
1 EBITDA is equal to net earnings plus (i} income tax expense plus (il interest expense lass {iii) interest income p[uys (iv) other expense less (v} other income plus

(vi} depreciation and amortization. EBITDA is the same as sarnings before other operating items. EBITDA is not intended to represent cash flow from operatiops
as defined by generally accepted accounting principles; and EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to net income, cash ﬂot«v from operations or any

" other measure of performance prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles. EBITDA of Four Seasons may also not be comparable to EBITDA used by dther
companies which may be calculated differently.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

. When used in this document the words “beheves " "anttcwpates " “expects” and smnlar expressions are \ntended to identify forward- i

. Iookmg statements. These forward-| Iooklng statements mclude comments about RevPAR profit marg\n and operating and earnings trends,
statements concerning the number of additional properties expected to be managed in future years, expected spending and similar staternents

‘ concernmg anticipated future events and expectations that are. not historical facts.-Readers are cautioned that these statements are not k
guarantees of future performance and are subject 1o numerous risks andvuncer‘tamtses including the duratuon and seventy of the current
economic siowdown and the pace of the lodgmg \ndustr\/ s recovery from the terrorist attacks of September 11th, 2001, supply and demand
changes for hotel rooms and residential properties; competmve conditions in the 1odg|ng mdustry relattonshxps with clients and property

- owners, and the avaxlabmy of capltal to finance growth, any of which could cause actual results to dlf‘fer materially from those expressed in.’

or implied by the statements. Given these uncertalntles readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these statements. Except as

expressly required by apphcable law, the Corporation undertakes no obhgatton to pubhc(y update or fevise any forward- Iooklng statements

whether as a result of new information, future events or othervwse

Four Seasons. Hotels Inc.




20071 was an extréordinary year. In thisA,- our 40th anniversary year, world events
forced our industry to confront the most challenging operating environment ever. ‘

Yet, for Four Seasons, the year proved our fundamental strength's'are sound.

Faced with harsh tests to our business rhbdel, including difficult capitalm‘arket
conditions, Four Seasons maintained profitability aﬁd the pace of néw property
openings. We also improved liquidity and clbsed the year-w_ifh the strongest balance
sheetin the Corporation’s history, including unpr‘ecedente»d cash reserves available:

to generate future growth. ' -




In 2001, we successfully opened new propertres ln Dublin, Prague Caracas and;
© San Francrsco We also assumed the management ‘of two exrstlng propertles in’

: Buenos Alres, Argentrna and Carmelo Uruguay, now rebranded Four Seasons

:Looking ahead‘ plans remain on track for further openlngs through 2002 and 2003
B The first, Four Seasons Hotel Shanghar has already opened: We are well- posrtloned '
" for.the econamic recovery — and subsequentlncrease in busmesstravel expected ‘
) later in 2002. From a-corporate perspectlve we contlnue to focus on actlons to burld -

long-term shareholder value.

. The loyalty and commitment of our employees has also glven tanglble welght .
1o the value of our emotional capital. When, in the aftermath of September 11th, ‘
the Corporatlon made the tonscious commltment never to compromrse the guest
‘experience, Four Seasons employees rallied. They understood that more than
iever our guests needed and appremated the personal touches that oharacterrze N

- Four Seasons

Seidom have busmess people been more acutely aware of their-humanity or';‘
- issues of vulnerablllty, quallty of life, trust and values “The Golden Rule, which .'
. has Iong been our gurdlng prlnc1ple treating others as we would w1sh to be treated
.=meant extendlng an extra measure of canng and thoughtfulness even as we '

moved to contain costs

“As aresult of our empl‘oyees'icollectlve efforts,’ we were-able to -im’ple'rnent' ’
‘aggressive but prUdent oost controls, while sustain'ing exceptional service. It's a
level ofservnce that was recognlzed by Ieadrng consumer research flrm J.D. Powerl '
.and Assocrates rn 2001 as deserving of the number one ranking for guest satlsfactlon ) ,'
‘Because Four Seasons continued to deliver on our promlse of service lntegnty, ‘
we _wereable to achiye_ve’room rates comparabl_e, to the reoord levels of 2000. - -
Business ethics were also front- -page news in 2001. As | have said many times’ for
Four Seasons the Golden. Rule has never been a ‘tactic or a strategy. ftisa deeply
felt ethlcal belief, shared by everyone lﬂ the Corporatlon from senior management ’
through the front line. Havrng weathered the tests of geography and t|me this"

ethlc has now also passed the test of crisis.

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.




. Message to our Shareholders (continued) .

" Our employees are ‘an integral part of who we are vand' what we stand for as'a

company In bad times as welI as in good, across a Wlde dlverSlty of races re||g|ons -

and cultures; the people of Four Seasons demonstrate the same unswervrng ;
commitment to excellence Four: Seasons has created an envrronment that llke— .
‘mlnded people gravrtate to andin Wthh they remaln Thelr sense of ownershrp and.
» fraternrty makes sharing. among peers natural ‘

Havrng the same focus and |nterests makes us more effrcrent In thelr bestseller -
‘F/rst Break All the Rules, Marcus Buckrngham and Curt Coffman C|te Gallupj:‘»

research into more than 105 000 employees that revealed compatlblllty among
. co-workers denoted a highly productive workplace. Never was it truer than this year, ! ‘

; when our group fou‘nd unique ways to deal with_exceptional clrcumstances ;

‘ Whlle mtegrrty is Aot recorded on a company'’s, balance sheet _ethical behavzour of
. management and employees lS foremost in, people s mlnds You have one"‘

reputatlon you elther burnrsh |t or tarnrsh it. Four Seasons has spent over 40 years- .
nurturing a culture and reputation-based on the ethics of respect fairness, contnbutlon

" and concern: The)Corporatron s financial’ success rests on the same pillars.

‘ Everything we do at Four Seasons, from the way we design a new’ property _to
the way we select and support the people who will staff it, is shaped by: the .
same clear understandrng of who we are and what we believe in. Everyone from ‘
‘the most senior executive to the recently hrred employee lives and- breathes the'

values we have spent decades reflnrng

. | am deeply proud of the people of Four Seasons and greatly indebted to them for

all that they have accomplished. Through their collectrve efforts and commltment o

we have emerged from:the past year stronger than ‘ever. and ready to resume
“the growth plans for which we are fully prepared If thls group of talented and
lrkemrnded people can achleve so-much ina perrod of downturn we look forward

to even greater momentum and value creatlon in'the years ahead

" lsadofe Sharp (signed):
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. Consider these reasons to invest W|th Four Seasons

Management Committee

Kathleeh Taylor R Wol\f H. Hengst RS " 'Douglas L. Ludwig -

‘ President - A PO U Presidene T, sl Exe:zir_'iuet Vice Presidens
Worldivide Business Operasions Wor/dwrd: Harel Optranam . . L Chief Financial Officer

] With market concerns about the econcmic outlook for the lnternatlonal lodglng mdustry the upset in capttal markets and

the hlgh proflle scandals that have shaken lnvestor confrdence itis more lmportant than ever to choose your partners well

Four Seasons occupies a unique position Within/the'/‘ndUStry - and can ststain. this position for the long term.

~ Four Seasons has a p‘re-eminentposltion within'its niche in:luxury lodglng fora com'bin‘atlon of reason's=

san lnternatlonal network of propertles W|th deswable locations. and quality next to lmpOSSlble to dupllcate
°a senror management team wrth decades of specialization in the mdustry and ’

.a talented deeply. commttted team of employees worklng wrthln a globally entrenched service culture

Any one of these would represent a S|gnrﬁcant hurdle for any competltor to overcome Together they gtve Four Seasonst
an almost unassarlable competltrve posmon Studies have determmed that barrlers to entry are key to long-term profrtabrlrty E
and value.

However whlle physmal product and locatlon are essentlal o the equatron |t is |mportaht to remember that they can: be"\'ﬁ G e L

‘bought. The most formldable challenge to.any competrtor is the Falr Seasons service culture —a product of the kind of people
-Four Seasons.employees are and the consistent’ way they behave Thls is the cumulatlve effect of decades of effort and aﬁ
- clearly stated, simple idea: to treat othersas we would have them treat us.

In 1972 Four Seasons decnded to spemahze in managrng medrum-srzed hotels of exceptlonal quallty whose drstlngurshlng

charactenstlc is comprehensrve personalized service - ]USt for me" service that makes guests feel specral To ilfustrate

~how much this depends on the quality of our employees on an average'day at a typical Four Seasons hotel, there are»

appro><|mately 4,000 points of employee contact with guésts. To ensure the consxstency of service dellvery each employee

along the way needs to clearly. understand our collectlve mrssron

‘ Furthermore they*need to be contént in their work because employee satlsfactlon and guest‘satisfaction are inseparable.

Once agaln for the fourth year runnmg ‘Four Seasons employees placed the Corporatlon on Fortune magazme s list of the
Best Places to Work : 5 ‘ ' )

Today, Four Seasons is recogrized throughout the lodglng lndustry as settmg the hlghest standards for conS|stent valuable

service. This can be seen ini our ability to sustain our rndustry-leadrng achreved room rates.




‘atrip there. They know instantly they can expect superlative service. ”

“When intelfviewedv recently by Forbes Global Magazine about his 2001 Hideaway Report,

Andrew Harper is quoted as saying, “The Four Seasons brand name is so strong that

a new hotel could open anywhere and the next day our readers would start planning

In Four Seasons, rnvestors have the opportun/ty to cap/tal/ze on one: of the few brands wrth the potent/a/ to evo/ve /nto a
pre-emrnent g/obal brand such as Coca-Cola or Tffany

. Many of the companres that have ylelded premlum returns to their shareholders over long tlmeframes are supported by the

underlylng value of an exceptlonal brand Four Seasons is becommg one of them

‘ When mtervnewed recently by Forbes Global A/lagazrne about his 2001 H/deaway Report, Andrew Harper is quoted as saynng,'

“The Four Seasons brand name is S0 strong that a .new hotel could: open anywhere and the next day our readers would
start planning a trip there. They know lnstantly they can expect superlative serv:ce “ The Hrdeaway Report annually surveys
mternatronal travellers 86% of whom are presrdents CEOs owners or partners

" "Brands can only be bullt through the consistent fqu|I|ment of. the prom|se ‘of value to customers. The Four Seasons brand_. :

has beén created by provndrng the finest lodgrng experlences in the most destrable destlnatlons Part of that experlence is
personalized service dellvered ina fnendly, canng and professlonal manner R

These factors have led to our hotels and resorts wrnnlng more awards for sxcellence, with mare new Four Seasons hotels
belng included every year. In addltton to'the H/deaway Report in 2001 Four Seasons was the undlsputed leaderona numberv
of users! and industry surveys lncludlng lnstrtutronal lnvestor Condé Nast: Traveler the AAA Five D/amond Awards and the

Zagat Survey

A great brand establishes global credlbility- When~gUests and the travel industry understandand value the Four Seasons S
‘experrence new hotels become successful quxckly This; and the returns we generate 1o our property owners make

Four Seasons an attractrve partner for owners and developers of luxury hotels and res«dences glvrng Four Seasons unlque‘ L

access to- new opportunltles

: The Corporation s long-term va/uation is supported by a d/'versified global growth strategy. "

. While a variety'of benchmarks would seem to indicate that Four Seasons stock trades at g valuation premium, we'

believe that the ultimate measure of its value should be the supenor potential for the Iong-term growth of the Corporatlon .
Four Seasons is in the mldst of the largest expan5|on ever of- ltS hotel portfollo “ ) P IR S

¢

Currently there are 24 propertles under constructron or in the advanced stages of development We expect to open five of

these properties as Four Seasons-hotels and resorts in 2002 These mclude the recently opened Four Seasons Hotel -

_ ‘Shanghai, as well as hotels in Amman, Rlyadh and: Tokyo at Marunouchl and aresort in Sharm el Sheikh. .

Expected openlngs for 2003 include Four Seasons hotels resorts or reS|dence Clubs in'Budapest; The Bahamas; Hampsh;re
England Istanbul at the Bosphorus Jackson Hole Miami;. Provence at Terre Blanche Punta Mita; Sao Paulo and Sedona

Four Seasans Hotais Inc. o
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Markesing. < . A . S + ‘Human Resources

Thrs unrt growth is enhanced by the’ mrxed use nature ‘of a number of these new propertles For example of 24 propertles
. in the pipeline; 13 W|ll |nclude a branded re5|dentral component for WhICh Four Seasons typlcally receives rovyalty fees as

well as fees for ongorng oversrght and management Many of these new propertres wrll also lnclude Four Seasons managed ) :

B golf facrlltres and spas .

. In addmon we. are worklng on a number of addltlonal luxury opportunmes Based upon our development plpelrne We are..

onfldent in our ablllty to open flve to seven new. luxury propertles each yearin the: forseeable future Wlth 54 hotels and

resorts-and two ReS|dence Clubs currently, this should enable us to double our size.within seven to ten years,

' : The extreme economrc pressures experlenced in 2001 should result in slower supply growth of other quury hotels in ‘

most of the markets in whlch we operate Thrs should pasition: Four Seasons well for longer- term RevPAR expansron as’
demand levels return to ‘more normal patterns Four Seasons beneﬁts from the tnternal growth of RevPAR through"
management fees calculated on total revenues and from profit- based incentive fees The rncentlve fees provrde addltlonal

momentum for fee growth ina market recovery

Thls new unit and |nternal growth position the Corporatlon well to achleve its long-term target of i |mprovmg net earnlngs by )
20% per annum on average ) ‘ ;

Un/rke compan/es whose aggressrve growth puts pressure on therr llqurdrty and brand our growth program actua/l enhances o

. . the Four Seasons brand and rmproves our //qu1d1ty posrt/on

- , The Corporatron is rn an excellent cash posmon Four Seasons does not have to stretch its resources o grow As a hotel )

m thlrd party capltal sources whrch own the )
real estate. Our business model has evolved to allow us to attract thlrd party capltal for the ownershlp and flnancmg of
these prime assets. We concentrate on-establishing valuable long term hotel management agreements whlch secure-
the Company S rrghts to control the operatron of these |mportant assets

Four-Seasans generally llmlts its own lnvestments to mrnorlty equity positions ar smaller loans that typlcally ‘can be’ recovered
within five years. Our pnnclpal investment objectlve is to obtain the long-term management nghts of a new property orto
enhance the terms of an exrstrng contract. Thrs dlscrplme ensures that our current growth does not constraln our Ilqurdlty

for future opportunltles




An’to'nr\e [o
. I’rmdtnt
) Eurapz Mzda’le East and Afrxca

.James Fi
k " Presidens
Aiia Pacific

Wrth each new property, Four Seasons strives to |mprove its phy5|cal product and service experlence Each new property ]
rs usually the result of years of careful planning. Four Seasons Hotel San Francisco was a typical example berng five years " :
in the. maklng Every new prolect rncorporates all of the experrence of our long-servrng operatronal managers-and our desrgn '
professmnals We enhance the Four Seasons brand with.each new opening, as evrdenced by the new properties recently )
L opened in new countrres ‘such as Chlna the Czech Repubhc and Egypt

In terms of desrgn functron and comfort we are assembhng a new generatlon of five- star hotels However physrcal product

- alonei is not a. sustamable competmve advantage People and' servrce are.our dlstlngwshlng edge Therefore we also enhance_ o

L our brand by attractlng and carefully selectlng new Four Seasons employees in dlfferen markets who provrde us'with the

C "‘, employee base to staff and support future openrngs of Four Seasons propertres Here exlstlng Four Seasons staft'become

culture cariers” = brlngrng the ethxcal underplnnlngs of the Corporatlon to new propertles under management

‘As new propertles brmg global awareness and exposure to:new markets they in turn rncrease trafflc in exustrng ‘ones.’
. The guest expenence rernforces loyalty to Four Seasons and contrlbutes both. to repeat busrness and to new customers
fthrough referrals. ‘ ’ R

: We have structured our rnvestment and frnancra/ management po/rcres wrth the ob/ect/ve of protect/ng the long-term strength‘ :
i of the Corporatron ¥ ba/ance sheet e

; We flnrshed 2001 wrth cash reserves rn excess of $2OO mrlllon the srngle largest asset on the Corporatlon s balance sheet
) Over 80 percent of our 2001 operatlng cash flow was |nvested in future growth allowmg us to secure many new Iong -term
management agreements S Do

' vPart of our busrness strategy is to |nvest a portlon of avallable cash to obtarn new management contracts or lmprove/enhance

our exrstrng ones Each must meet certarn flnancral crlterra rncludrng return hurdles, and we structure these mvestments

: to create the best outcome for the Corporatlon

Conclusnon . . : :

. We belreve Four Seasons is |n a unrque posmon to contlnue to create long-term value for all of our stakeholders We have
spent 40 years. burldlng an unprecedented service culture a unlque brand and an enviable portfollo At the same time, the L
Corporatron has focused on and established an rnvestment grade credit.rating. With continued global trends ~ from aging:
baby boomers to the burgeonlng middle classes of lndla China‘and other natlons we stand today on the launching pad_
for even greater success in' the future T ) '

Four Seasons Hotals Inc.
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Busmess of Four. Seasons L R . ’ o

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.' was incorperated under the Business Corporatrons Act {Ontario) on January 6, 1978.2 FSHI's
redistered and principal office is' located at 1165 Leslie Street; Toronto, Ontario, Canada M3C 2K8. The Limited Voting Shares
of FSHI are listed on The Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol FSH and on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol FS.

Four Seasons is one of the world s leadlng managers of fuxury hotels'and resorts. The Corporatron manages 54 luxury hotel
and resort propertles and two Resrdence Clubs’ containing 15,184 guest rooms and. unlts These propertigs are cperated
primarily under the Four Seasons and Flegent brand names, in principal cities. and resort destinations in 25 countries in
North America, Europe, Asia, the Middle East, Australia, the Caribbean and South America. In addmon 24 hotel and resort
properties to be operated under the Four Seasons brand name are under construction or development in a further nine
countries around the world. Thirteen of these néw hotels and resorts include’a Resrdence Club or other residential component
{a chart summarizing the hotels; resorts, Residence Clubs and Four Seasons branded residential projects managed and under
. construction or development by Four Seasons is set out on'pages 22 through 24). The Corporatron s goalis to offer business
and leisure travellers the frnest accommodatlon in each destrnatron lt serves,

Four Seasons earns revenue from both management and ownershlp operatrons in 2001 Four Seasons ownershlp operations
generated a loss:and, as a result, ail of Four Seasons’ earnings before other operatlng items were generated by its-
rmanagement operations., In contrast to more volatile ownership operations, management operations in normal economic
and business cycles tend to generate relatrvely stable earnings and cash flow for.the Corporatlon and should provide a more
solid platform for future growth. In 2001, the terrorist attacks of September 11tH caused busrness andleisure travel demand
to decline on.a ‘worldwide basis- 10 levels never before experrenced by either the: Corporatlon or other participants in the
lodging industry. These circumstances caused unprecedented volatlllty in both the Corporation's ownership and'management '
earnings. In 2001, revenue generated by the hotels and resorts managed by Four Seasons was approxrmately $2.8 billion.
Four Seasons’ consolldated revenue from management and ownershlp of these propertles and Residence Clubs in 2001
- was $303 1 mrlllon : _' : o N

Under its management agreements, Four Seasons generally supervises all'aspects of a project’s operatlons on behalf of its

owner, including sales and marketing, reservations, accounting, purchasing, budgeting and the hiring, trarnlng and supervising

of staff. For prowdlng these services, Four’ ‘Seasons typically receives a base fee. calculated asa percentage of gross revenues
“of the property. In addrtron Four Seasons may recelve incentive fees based on the property ] operatrng performance.’

To further capltalrze on the value of the Four Seasons brand, the Corporatron lrcenses and manages quury interval and
fractional ownershlp projects. known as Four Seasons Resrdence Clubs and other Four Seasons branded residential projects.
The Corporation generally. receives fees for the use of the Four-Seasons: brand in‘connection with the sale of the interests
in these projects, and for services provrded inthe oversrght of the sales'and marketlng actrvmes In.addition, the Corporation
receives fees from the owners of the interests for servrces provrded |n the ongorng management of these prolects

1 “FSHI" means Four Seasons Hotels Inc. “Four Sasasons” crthe Corporatron means, collectrvely, FSHl and all its subsrdranes rncludrng Four Seasons Hotels errted
("FSHL™), Four Seasons Hotels and- Resons Agia-Pacific Pte Ltd. and Four Seasons-Hotels and Aesorts B.V. e :

2 The artictes of FSHIwere restated in 1986 to consalidate prior amendmants and weére amended in 1989 to subdivide each Subordinate Voung Share and each Multiple
Voting Share on'a 2:1 basis and to create an unlimited number of special shares designated as First Preference Shares. and Second Prefersnce Shares. In 1396 the
articles were further amended to re-designate the Subordinate chng Shares as Limited Vating Shares and 1o create 4, 171 924 special shares desrgnated as Variable

. Multiple Voting. Shares which.replaced-and:have. substantially the same rights, privileges; resmctrons and conditions as drd the Multiple’ Voting.Shares, except that

the number of votes per Variable Mulrrple Voting Share generallv increases as Limited Voting Shares ars rssued and duvrdends on the Vanable Multiple Voting Shares
will be in an amount per share equal to 50% of the dividends per-Limited Voting Share. - : -

3 Interval and fractional ownershrp products that are known as* Four Seasans Residence. Clubs” are referred to.herein as ‘Hesrdence Clubs.”

4 Ses “Management Operatrons begrnnrng on page 25. - :

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.
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As part of its business strategy, Four Seasons makes lnvestments in, or loans in respect of or to, properties to obtarn\

new management agreements or improve existing management agreements, and where the overall economic return to
Four Seasons justifies the investment. The Corporation generally seeks to limit its total fong-term capltal exposure to no
more than 20% of the total equity required for a property and typically can choose to have its ownership interest diluted if
additional ¢apital is required. The Corporation seeks to structure its ownership interests separately from its management
interests so as'to enable the Corporatlon to dispose of ownership interests as sale opportunltres arise, without affecting
its management lnterests : . - T :

Pursuant to an arrangement entered into in 1996 Carlson Hospltallty Group of Mrnneapolls { Carlson j is licensing the
" Regent brand; and the Corpdration is entitled to receive a share of the licensing revenue generated by" Carlson Under the
arrangement Four Seasons continues to manage elght Regent hotels.®

Competitive Strengths

The hotel industry is highly competitive. The Corporatron believes that its competrtrve posrtron is strengthened by the
significant barriers to entry into the luxury segment of the hotel anagement business. Those barriers' to entry include .
the time and significant capital resources required to establish a well recognized and respected quury brand name and to

obtain management contracts for luxury propertles |n strategic markets worldwide. As dlscussed below the Corporation
also believes that it has developed aunique servrce cuiture, depth of management expertlse and multrple capital resources
over Four Seasons' 40-year hrstory that would be drffrcult for others to replrcate :

Strong Brand Recogmtlon

Four Seasons propertles are widely- recognrzed for the exceptlonal qualrty of thelr guest facrlrtres service and atmosphere,
and have been named more frequenitly than any other.competitor among the world's best hotels and travel experiences by
Institutional Investor, Condé Nast Traveler, AAA Five Diamond, Zagat and others "The Corporation believes that its brand
name recognltlon cannot easily be replicated by others, as it is dependent upon the establlshment of a global chain of -
unique properties of the hlghest qualrty

Superior Hotel Operatmg Results

Four Seasons generally achieves average room revenue per avallable room (” FlevPAR") and operatlng proflt margrns for hotels
under its.management that are above the average “achieved in the luxury segment of the Iodgrng rndustry Four Seasons
believes that owners and developers of luxury hotels worldwide are attracted to the Corporatlon asa result of the superior
financial performance of the hotels under its management . : .

Global Presence

Four Seasons manages a global portfolio of 64 luxury hotels and resorts and two'Residence Clubs in 25 countries. Twenty-
four additional hotel and resort properties to be opérated under the Four Seasons name are under construction or
development. ina further riine countries around the world, of whrch 13'include a Resrdence Club or other residential
component. Hotels currently managed by Four Seasons are Iocated in mijor international flnancral centres, such as London,

New York, Paris, Chicago, Washington, Los Angeles, Tokyo, Milan, Shanghal,_ Singapore, Toronto and Sydney, as well as in
emerging international markets, such as Berlin, Dublin and.Mexico City. In addition; Four Seasons manages resorts in world-
class destinations, such as California, Hawaii, Nevis, Mexico and Bali, and has Residence Clubs in active sales and operation:
in California and Arizona. Four Seasons anticipates that-it will continue to expand in urban and resort destinations where
consumer demand warrants a luxury property In. 2001, approximately 68%, 12%, 16% and 5% of.the Carparation’s
. management revenues were derived from hotels and resorts in North America, Asm/Pacrfrc Eurcpe, and the Middle
East/Caribbean/South America, respectively. The Corporation maintains a fully lntegrated global reservatron and sales office
system that provides international sales coverage for the Four Seasons propertres

5 See discussion under “Regent Joint Venture” on page 20..




Management Focus

Four Seasons'is prlncrpally a global hotel and resort management company Although Four Seasons w1ll contlnue to make
loans or investments. to sécure long-term management contracts, these investments will generally be minarity interests
and will be made to expand or, enhance rts management busmess and where the overall economnc return 10 Four Seasons
justifies the investment.

Management agreements for'the hotels and resorts managed by the Corporatlon generally are’ long term havrng an average
remaining term of approxrmately 56 years for Four Seasons hotels and resorts and approxnmately 23 years for hotels and
resorts operated under. the Regent name, mcludlng extension. penods available at Four Seasons' optlon These agreements
entitle Four Seasons to earn-base fees, as well‘as a range of-fees for pre- openlng development, purchasing, marketing, -
advertising and reservation services. The Corporation has the‘ability to participate in the profits of the hotels and resorts
under its management through incentive fees intespect.of 50 of the hotels and resorts under management. These incentive
fees are generally based on the def|ned operating profits of thehotel or resort. In 2001, Four Seasons réceived incentive
fees from 35 of the hotels and resorts under management as compared to 36 hotels and resorts in 2000, During 2007,
38 of the hotels and resorts under its mandgement each generated over $1.0 million in base and incentive fees. The average
of the aggregate base plus incentive fees earned in 2001 for each of the 50 hotels or resorts managed by | Four Seasons for
all or substantlally all of 2007 was. $2.0 million. : ; :

Strategic Relatlonshlps

" Strategic relationships are an rmportant source of flnancrng for future development opportunmes to expand Four Seasons
management operations and financing for those opportunities. Four Seasans has established relatlonshlps with numerous
institutional and private equity sources that invest in and develop luxury properties. Several of the existing owners have
an ownership interest in more than one Four Seasons hotel or | resort |nc|ud|ng three owners that have an interest in four,
five and six propertles respectlvely : : ‘ - S

In 1994, a company controlied by His Royal Hrghness Pnnce Alwaleed Bin Talal Bif Abdulaziz Al Saud ( Prince Alwaleed”)
purchased a srgnlflcant minority position in FSHI. Since purchasing this interest in-FSHI, companies. controtled by Prince
Alwaleed (coliectively, "ngdom ') purchased a ma;orrty rnterest in Four Seasons Hotel London and purchased Four Seasons
Hotel George V Paris, which opened under Four Seasons management in late 1999 followmg an extensive renovation
program. Kingdom also holds a minority interest in the Four Seasons resort in Aviara, Caln‘ornla and. has invested, or is
expected to make investments, in a number of additional propertles at'various stages of development that the Corporation
expects to manage under the Four Seasons brand name, siich as the Four Seasons hotels or resorts in Cairo, Amman, Riyadh,
Alexandria, Sharm el Sherkh and Beirut. All of the Corporatlon s transactions with Klngdom are conducted atarm's length.

,Strong Management Team

Four Seasons’ corporate executive management team consists of elght lnlelduals who are responsmle for the global
: strategrc direction of the Corporat|on and who have an average of approxrmately 22 years of experience with Four Seasons.
This team is supported by 26 Corporate V|ce Presrdents who,are responsrble for various-aspects of the Corporatlon s daily
_ operations, as well as by 60 General Managers and Regional Vice Presrdents who together have an average of approximately
13 years of experlence Wlth Four Seasons, Itis a fundamental strategy of Four Seasons to develop its senior- management
team, to the extent possrble from wrthln in arder to ensure consrstency of the Corporatlon s servrce culture and work ethic.

Four Seasans Hatels Inc.
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Business and Growth Strategy

The core business strategy of Four Seasons continties to be to enhance its lndustry posmon and overali profrtabllrty through
a focused, international expansion program that capltallzes on the strengths of its cere management operations and the value
. of its brand narne. The Corporation will.continue to focus on growth and seek to utlilze its competitive strengths to increase
earnings, cash flow, hotet owners’ returns, and shareholder value by contrnurng 10improve the operatmg performance of
its existing hotel and resort portfollo by generating profitable growth through the acqmsrtron of new management contracts
and by capltalrzrng on opportunities to leverage' its luxury brand name through compat|ble busrness extensrons such as
Residence Clubs and other Four-Seasons branded residential products. : :

From 1996 through 2000 mclusrve revenues generated by the hotels and resorts managed by Four Seasons grew from
approximately $1.9 billion to $2.8 billion, a compounded annual growth rate of. 10.4%. During that- same period, the
Corporation’s consolidated revenues from management and ownershrp of these propertres mcreased from -approximately
$121 million to $347 5 million and the Corporation increased its management earnrngs from $55 7 million'to $125.8 million,
a compounded-annual growth rate of 22.6%! In addition, duririg this penod the’ Corporatlon s proﬂt margrn tn rts management
operations increased. from 58.8% to. 67 9%.- - SRR R

As a result of an unprecedented decline in travel dunng 2007 in the aftermath of the events' of September 11th and
a weakening global economy, reventes generated by these properties remained unchanged at approxrmately $2.8 billion in
2001 when compared to 2000, and:the Corporation's consolidated revenues from management and ownership operations’
decreased from $347.5 million in 2000 to $303.1 million in 2001. The Corporation’s management earnings decreased from
$125.8 million-in 2000 to $95.3 million in 2001 and the proﬂt margln in sts management operattons decreased from 67.9%
in 2000 to0 59.3% |n 20071, LA :

The Corporation believes that the strength of its brand name, its global marketrng presence and its operatronal expertise
result in RevPAR premiums and strong operating profltabmty for quury hotels under its management and provide
Four Seasons with a compeétitive advantage in obtalnmg new management contracts WO(|dWlde RevPAR for.Core Hotels®
in the United States during 2001 was Uss222, 132% hrgher than the RevPAH of the United States {uxury segment
" as compiled by Smith-Travel Research RevPAR for Core Hotels in Europe durrng 2000, the mast recent year for
which comparable data’is avarlable was US$255 127% higher than the RevPAR of the European fuxury segment, as
compiled by Horwath |nternational. =~ . : : ‘ , -

Growth from Existing Propertles R TR S S A R T A

Four Seascns belreves opportunmes wrll exist for growth within its exrstlng and newly. opened properties by increasing
overall market share and RevPAR, thereby improving the properties’. profitability and, in turn,.Four Seasons’ fee revenues
and ownership earnings. For the years 1996 to 1997, 1998 to 1999 and 1999 to 2000, on'a US dollar basis, RevPAR for aH
Core Hotels increased approximately 5.5%, 5.5% and 10%, respectively. From 1997 to 1998, on a US dollar basis, RevPAR

" forall Core Hotels decreased approximately' 1%, due largely to'the far- reaching. effects of the economic crisis in Asia. As a

result of the effects of the September 11th terrorist attacks, the S|gn|ftcant decline tn ‘business travel i in its aftermath, and
a generally weakenmg economy, from 2000 to: 2001 RevPAR for aII Coré Hotels, ond US dollar basis; decreased. approximately
10%, with RevPAR for Core Hotels in the United States, Asia/Pacific and Canada/Mexrco decreasrng approxtmately 12.5%,
-11.3% and 1.2%, respectlvely while RevPAR for European Core Hotels increased. 1.2%. On a euro.basis, RevPAR of.
European Core Hotels increased approximately 3. 8% in:2001, as compared t0°2000. On'a Iccal currency baS|s RevPAR for
Core Hotels in Asxa/Pacmc decreased 2 7% in 2001, as compared to 2000,

6 Tha term “Core Hotels” means hotels. and resorts under management for the full year of both 2000 and.2001. Changes from the - 1999/2000 Core Hotels are
the addmon of Four Seasons Hotel Las Vegas Four Seasons Hote! Canary Wharf, London, Four Seasons Hotel Gecrge-V Paris, Four Seasons Resort Punta Mita,
Four Seasons Resort Scottsdale at Troon North and The Regent Sydney and the delstion of The Ragent Hong Kong.




Gross operatrng profrt margrns for Core Hotels in the Unrted States decreased asa percentage of total hotel revenue from 36%
in 200010 3C. 8% in 2001 and gross operating profit margins for the Core Hotels in Asra/Pactfrc asa percentage of total hotel
revenue. remalned at 35.5% in.both years: The gross Gpefating profit margins for Care’ Hotels in Europe and Canada/Mexico
increased as a percentage ‘of total hotel revenue from 32.7% and 29. 8% respectrve!y, in; 2000 10-35:7% and 30.5%,
respectively, in 2001. Overall, 1ncent|ve fees decreased 39 7% to $30: mllllon in the'year ended’ December 31 2001.

RevPAR Statlstlcs Core Hotels

Region o . \ : Occupancy : . " Average Room Rate S RevPAR

* {in USS) ' " 402001 20007 72001, 2000 . 2001 2000
United States .~ 0 © 67.1% . 763% 8331 9333 8222 §254
Asia/Pacific o PR 61.3%  67.0% $163 - $168 - $100 . $112
Europe R ' ~ 657%  715% . - $393. $357  $258 $255
Canada/Mexico . - .~ o T, 643% ~ 676% - $220 " $212 $141 $143

All Core Hotels ) ‘ 5 65.8% . 728% - '$288. $287. $188 $209

New Hotel and Resort Opportunmes

Having established a network of luxury hotels‘in many of the world s key frnancral centres future expansron is expected to
occur primarily in: !ocatrons that satisfy Four Séasons” ob]ectrves of. better servicing the travel needs of its existing customer
base and attracting new mternatronal business travéllers to'its managed hotsls and resorts worldwide. Four Seasons expects
that future growth will primarily be in the form of hew hotels and resarts, or the conversion. of existing notels and resorts,
in Europe, the Middle East, South America and Asia/india, as well as selected urban and resort locations in the United States
and the Caribbean. Overall, Four Seasons plans to increase the number of resorts it manages in.order to serve the leisure
travel needs of.its customers, which is expected to-reduce the seasonality of its cash flows: Four Seasons currently has
24 new hotel and résort properties. {including those which, are expected to include a Resrdence Club or other residential
component) under constructlon ordevelopment andis evaluatrng numerous management opportunrtres in various locations
around the world. o S :

The Corporation believes that it will continue to have the opportunity to consider and enter into appropriate new hotel and
resort management. agreements as a result of its competitive strengtns\ In 2001, the Corporation began operations at
Four Seasons Hotel San Francisco, Four Seasons Hotel Caracas, Four Seasons Hotel Prague and Four:Seasons Hotel
Dublin and-alsc assumed the management of two e><|st|ng hotels Four Seasons Hote! Buenos Alres and Four Seasons
Resort Carmelo, Uruguay. In early 2002, the Corporatron began operations at Four Seasons Hotel Shanghai. The Corporation
also expects to-begin operating: Four ‘Seasons Resort Sharm el Sheikh, Four Seasans Hote! Amman;- Four Seasons Hotel
Rivadh and Four Seasons Hotel Tokyo.at Marunouchi in 2002 (for details on these and- other hotels and resorts under
construction or advanced stages of deve!opment see the table on page 24).

Re51dence Clubs and Other Branded Residential Propertles

As part of its program to capitalize on the value of the Four Seasons brand the Corporatron is embarkmg on opportunrtles
such as additional Residence Clubs.and other branded and serviced residential projects. Typically, these residential projects
are integrated with Four Seasons_managed hotels and resorts. The Corporation receives fees for th_e use of the Four Seasons
brand in connection with the sale of the interests in these residential projects and-for services provided in the oversight of
sales and marketing activities.. In addition, the. Corporation. receives fees from the owners of the. intere‘sts for services'
provided in the ongoing management of these projects. Interests are currently berng soldin such propertres adjacent to the
Four Seasons Resorts in Aviara, California-and Scottsdale, Anzona and in the Four Seasons Residences San Francrsco and
Four Seasons Private Residences Jackson Hole. The sales and marketing of the Four Seasons Residénce Clubs in Punta
) Mrta Mexicg, Sedona, Anzona and Jackson Hole, Wyomrng are expected to commence in 2002 Four Seasons anticipates
pursuing similar mrtlatrves ina number of i |ts future resart and urban developments -

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.




Annual Information Form (continued)

Regent Joint Venture ]

In 1996, Four Seasons entered |nto an arrangement with Carlson pursuant to Wthh Carlson acquwed the rights to the
Regent name for new development. Four Seasons currently manages the eight Regent hotels listed in the chart on pages
22 and 23. In addition to its share of management fees from the eight existing Regent hotels. that Four Seasons manages,
Four Seasons is entitled to receive payments from Carlson relating to:the new development effort. These payments are
determined by the success of the enterpnse in generatlng revenue: Carlson is: respon5|ble for the operatlng costs relating to
the Regent venture. ' . o SR e T

CapltaI‘Deponme‘r\tt'vt SRR T SR e mat e L :
Consistent with its business strategy, the Corporation does not generally require l‘a‘rge amounts of capital to maintain existing
management agreements or 'its ownership positions which are typically mincrity lnterests As a result, in 2001, the
Corporation utilized a maijority of its operating cash flow to make investments that allowed.the Corporation to obtain new
or enhanced management agreements, As at December 31 2001 the Corporatlon had $210. 4 million in cash reserves and
US$200 miltion of addltlonal flnancmg avallable under |ts eX|st|ng bank operatlng lines.

Industry Awards

Four Seasons has gained a worldw1de reputatlon for quallty service and |nnovat|on in the luxury segment of the business
and leisure travel rnarket This. reputatlon has been. wxdely acknowledged by the followrng Ieadlng surveys of hotel properties:

Institutional Investor

Fourteen Four Seasons hotels were ran‘ked among theSWorld s top 80 hotels in & survey of international financiers published .
in the September 2001 issue of /nst/tut/ona/ Investor. Thé Corporatron also had 11 hotels in the Top 25" Reglonal America's

AAA Five Dramond Awards o

Twenty Four Seasons propertles recelved the 2002 AAA FIVG Dlamond Award maklng Four Seasons the leader in this
survey for 21 consecutlve years. In addltlon six Four Seasons restaurants received the prestigious Five Diamond Award for
Restaurants: AUJourd hui at. Four Seasons Hotel .Boston; - Seasonis. Restaurant. at. Four Seasons- Hotel Chicago;
El Restaurante at Four Seasons Hote! Mexico City; The Restaurant at Four Seasons Resort’ Palm Beach; Fountain Restaurant
at Four Seasons Hotel Phlladelphla and Truffles at Folr Seasons Hotel Toronto

Condé Nast Traveler S Readers Choice Awards ‘

Twenty Four Seasons propertres were listed in the Top 100 Ilst of the 14th Annual Readers’ Choice -Awards. Eleven
Four Seasons properties were also listed in the “Top 20" of the “North American Hotels” category. Four Seasons captured
the number one spot in six categorles, including “Top Asian Resorts” (Four Sea_sons Resort Bali at Jimbaran Bay);
“Top Caribbean/Atlantic Resorts"” (Four Seasons Resart Nevis); “Top: Latin Hotels” (Four Seasons Hotel Mexico City);
“Top European Hotels" (Four-Seasons Hotel' Istanbul); Top North American Hotels" (The Ritz- Carlton Hotel Chicago
{a Four Seasons managed hotel)); and “Top Australian Hotels” (The Regent Sydney) ) S :

Travel & Leisure

‘Travel & Leisure's *World's Best” aWards in August-2001 fisted 25 Four Seasons and Regent hotels among the “Top 100
Hotels" including Four Seasons Resort Bali at Jimbaran Bay and The Ritz-Carlton.Hotel Chicago (a Four Seasons managed
hotel) ranking first and second respectlvelv The Corporatron also had 22 hotels of the Top 100 Hotels in the Continental
U.S. and Canada.” :

Andrew Harper’s Hideaway Report

Sixteen Four Seasons properties received honours in the annual readers’ 'survey on "'T'he World's Best Hotels & Resorts.”
The Corporation also ranked in both the * "Top 20 U.S. City Hotels" category (Four Seascns Hote! Chlcago) and the “Top 20
International Clty Hotels” category (Four Seasons Hotel George V Paris}.




Mobil Travel Guide

Five Four Seasons properties‘(Four Seasons Hotel New York; Four Seasons Hotel Atlanta; Four Sea_sons«HoteI"Chicago; Four
Seasons Hotel Boston; and. Four Seasons Resort Palm Beach) received the Mobil Five-Star Award for 2002,

Zagat

Four Seasons propertles achleved top honours in the Iatest ZagatSurvey 2001 Top Us. Hotels Resorts & Spas. In Zagat's
sixth survey of the U.S. )odg)ng industry-since 1987 Four.Seasons recelved four of the six maJor awards in the survey,
including "Top Hotel Chain™; Top Hotel” (Four Seascns Hotel New York) Top Resort” (Four Seasons Resort Hualalai at
Historic Ka' uputehu); and * “Top. Hotel Spa” (Four Seasons Resort Hualalai at Historic Ka' upulehu), Five other Four Seasons
properties ranked in the “Top Ten Hetels" category, including Four Seasons*Hotel Chlcago Four Season$ Hotel Las Vegas;
The Ritz-Carlton Hotel Cnrcago {a Four Seasons managed hotel); Four Seasons Hotel Boston and: Four Seasons Hotel
Los Angeles. Four Seasons Resort: Maui at Wailea and Four Seasons Resort Aviara also made the list of “Top Ten Resorts,”
while Four Seasons Resort Maui at Wallea Four Seascns Hotel New York, Four Seasons Resort Aviara,-and Four Seasons
Resort Palm Beach 10|ned Four Seasons Resort Huala!a) at Hrstonc Ka upulehu on the Top Ten Hotel Spa" list.

In the Zagat Survey 2001 Top Internatlonal Hotels Resorts & Spas Four Seasons was aIso named "Top. Hotel Chain.”
The list of ' Top 100-Hotels - included- 15 Four Seasons hotels; in“total, and three of the world s-"Top Ten Hotels” are
Four Seasons propemes Four Seasons Hotel Milan; Four Seasons Hotel George V. Parls and Four Seasons Hatel Singapore.
Four Seasons Resort Bali at Jimbaran Bay was ranked number one in the "Top 50 Resorts list, while The Regent Chiang Mai
Resort and Spa (a Four Seasons managed hotel) was ranked number’ one in the " Top 20 Spas” category. Other notable
. achievements include best -in-country rankings for Four Seasons Hotel Berlin (best hote! in Germany); Four Seasons
" Hotel Tokyo (best hotel in Japan) Four Seasons Hotel Vancouver (best hote! in Canada) and Four Seasons Hotel Mr)an (best
hotef in Italy) S :

J.D. Power and Assac:ates 2001 Domest:c Hotel Guest Sa tlsfactlon Study

Four Seasons Hotels and, Resorts rece)ved the top ranking in. the tuxury . hote! segment in the g D Power and Associates
2001 Domestic Hotel Guest Satisfaction Study The. announcement-by. J.D. Power and:Associates. marks the first time an
award in the quury hotel category has been made, mak)ng the achievement espemally noteworthy
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Descrlptlon of Hotels, Resorts and Resrdence Clubs .

Four Seasons propertles are compnsed of fukury hotels resorts and Resxdence Clubs whose target customers are principally
business travellers corporate and rncentrve groups and drscernmg Teisure travellers Four Seasons urban hotels generally
are centrally located i in the' commercral and financial dlstncts of the world s Ieadlng cities in North America, South America,
Asia, Europe and the Mlddle East.. Four Seasons luxury resorts and Residence Clubs.are located.in.world class leisure
destinations and provide extensrve recreational facrlmes and meeting’ facrlmes to attract’ upscale leisure traveHers and groups.
The foltowrng table sets forth- certaln rnformatlon relatrng to-each property managed by Four Seasons

e S e T e Approximate” " ' ' ‘Approximate
HotellResoanasidence Club and L‘ocationf KR - oo Numbsr of Rooms/Units B Equlty Interest’
North America/South America/Caribbean P S
Four Seascns Hatel Atlanta, Georgia, USA P 244 B —
Four Seascns Hotel Austin, Texas; USA 7" o EEE T2 ) B P —

. Four Seasons Resort Aviara, California, USA~ ' o R 329 R 7.3%*
© Four Seasons Residence Club-Aviara; California; USA - woe = oo = o i 1207 o im0 7 30
The Regent Beverly Wilshire (Beverly Hills), California, USA DR S 388 . —
Four Seasons Biltmore-Resort (Santa Barbara), ), California, USA ' '. R e 2170 . S —
Four Seasons Hotel-Boston, Mﬁ:rarhwem, USA* > .. . - SN 2740 0 —
Four Seasons Hotel Buenos Aires, Argentina ) : o . 165 . R —
Four Seasons Hotel Caracas, Venezuela®® DR o212 S —*
Four Seascns Resort Carmelo, Uruguay S ' SRS 44" v -
Four Seasons Hotel Chicago; Jilinois, USA, . . [ Coh e 343 e —
The Ritz-Carlton Hotel Chicado, Hinois, USA - o o 435 e -
Four Seasons Hotel Houston, Texas, USA*. - S ‘ S 404 e
Four Seasons Resort Hualalai (Kona), Hawaii, USA R 243 L —
Four Seasons Resort and Club Las Colinas (Dallas), Zexas, USA . S 367 P —
Four Seasons Hotel'Las Vegas, Nevads, USA-- ‘ v : 424 o —
Four Seascns Hotel Los Angeles, California, USA E e B L2850 . _
Four Seasons.Resort Maui at.Wailea, Hawair, USA S S 5380 - S —
Four Seasons Hate!l MexicoCity, Mexzm T . : ) S 240 - e —
Four Seasons Resort Nevis, Nevis' = SRR Coo1ee - —
Four Seasons Hote! Newport Beach, Calforma, USA o o285 -
Four Seasons Hotel New York, New York, USA - .0 SUIREI: v/o RERE RN —
Four Seasons Resort Palm Beach, Florida, USA . * L e e e 210 ey —

" Four Seasons Hotel Philadelphia, Pmmylvanza USA - ' oo 364 Sl e —
The Pierre (New York), New York, USA. P R ) - 2027 T : 100%°
" Four Seasons Resort Punta Mita, Mexics® o R 1400 4 —
Four Seasons Hotel San Francisco, Calfbmm, USA‘ e o277 . : —
Four Seasons Resort Scottsdale at Troon North, Arizona, USA B 210 : - 3.9%*
Four Seasons Residence Club Scottsdale at Troon North, ‘Arizona, USA L.23" o 71%"
Four Seasons Olympic Hotel (Seattle), Washingron, USA . .. © 450 3.4%"
Four Seasons Hotel Toronto, Ontario; Canada ’ - Lo 380 Tk —
Four Seasons Hotel Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada e 385- DR 100%"°

Four Seasons Hotel Washington, District of Columbia; USA ’ . — 258 o —




Approximate. . .. - v Approximate

Hotel/Resort/ReSiden_cé Club and Location™ - L " Number of Rooms/Units S Equity Interest’
Asia/Pacific . W X - o . e

Four Seasons Hesort Bali at Jlmbaran Bay Indone:za e S 147 _ : —
Four Seasons Resort Bali at Sayan, Indonesia_ ST B —
The Regent Bangkok Thailand - e I St 03BB st =
The Regent Chiang.Mai, Thasland . L : R R EE 1 [ —
The Regent Jakarta, fndonesia®™ .~ .0 < L 365+ [ —-

" The Regent Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia .~ . - AR P 468 - —
Four Seasons Resort Kuda Huraa, Maldwe: ’ - . 106 W —
Four Seasons Hotel Shanghai, Peaples Republic ofC/)ma A 443 S 2%
Four Seesons Hotel Singapore, Singapore . U e : 254 —

The Regent Singapore, Singgpore -~ .\ ‘ , 447" . s —

The Regent Sydney, Aastralia™ - .. : o S 531 RS 15.2%°
The Regent Taipei, Tziwan. - B o » % 538 . P —
Four Seasons Hotel Tokyo, /apan R o ' ; o283 L By —
Europe/Middle East . , o . - oo

Four Seasons Hotel+Berlin, Germany e T 0 T e 100%°
Four Seasons Hotel Cairo at The First Re5|dence Egypr BT, o s L ' —

Four Seasons Hotél Dublin, Ireland S ‘ ' 259 S —

Four Seasons Hotel Istanbul; Turkey .- S S o BB R —n
Four Seasons,Hotel The Ritz Lisbon, Portugal ) N \ : 283 - S =

Four Seasons Hotel Canary Wharf, Bigland ™~~~ =77 = e - D —
Four Seasons Hotel London, England .. Lo L2200 0L L 12.5% '
Four Seasons Hotel-Milan; Jraly -~ - - <. = o e T B e s T
Four Seasons Hotel George V-Paris: France = - =~ el e ey QAR e s -
Four Seasons Hotel Prague, Ceech Republic ™ T R 162 L

1 The Corporation makes'investments in, or loans in respect of or to, propsr‘ties to obtain-new ma‘nagamem agresments.or ifnpfdve existing management agreements,
and where the overall economic return to the Corporation justifies. the mvestmem The Corporation generally seeks ta timit s total long -term capital exposure to no
more than 20% of tha total’ equity raquved for a property. For a descrxpnon of the: Corparation’s investments in and,loans.1o, and contlngem obligations in respect
of, existing properties, mcludmg the equxty lnvestmems Ilsted in the'table, see Managements D!scuss:on and Analysns on: pages 35 to 39 o -

2 Freehold interast.. .

3 Four Seasons Residénce Club AV\ara may have up to 240 units at full bux!d out - EE

4 This project includes.oris: expectad ta-include a Four- Seasons Residance Club or a Four Seasor\s branded residential componem i

5 Four Seasons is currently.in dispute with the owner of the hotel regarding a variety of matters relatmg to the compleuon and ongomg operation of the hotel. |
The dispute has been referred to arbitration in accordance with management agreements.

8 In addition to providing management sérvices to this property, the Comporation has a contingsnt commltmam in respect of this propeny {see “Contmgent Commnments
on page 40).

7 .Includes approx:matelv 30 cooperatxve sunes laased from individual owners and operatad as hotel rooms

8 Leasehold interest. - - - o o

9

Four Seasons has a preferred proms mtsrest of approxlmalely US$1O & million subordmated loan to the hotel p!us a \oan to the hotel in !he amount of US$5.2 million

which may ba increased to reflect any construction cost averruns funded for compleilon of the hotel. -

10 Four Seasons Residence Club. Scottsdale at Troon North may have up to 126 units at full build out.

11 Itis anticipated that the Corporation will reduce its equiity interest through a sale to a third party.

12 The owner of 1he hotel has-a bank loan which is secured by the hotel. The hotel owneralso has an unsecured loan from lhe Co(poratlon of USS5 rnxlhon The hotel owner
stopped servicing the bank loan in 2000 and that oan was classified by the Indonesiari Bankmg Hestructunng Agency {* IBRA™) as non-performmg iBRA acquired the loan
from the bank in 2000. The hotel owner presented, and IBRA accepted, a restructuring plan pursuant - to which the Corporation’s unsecured loan is expected to be
converted 10 @ 2% equity interest in the hotel. Further, as a result of the financial condition of the hotel owner, the Corporation had previously égreed to defer certain
feas payable to it pursuant.to the management:agreement. The Corporation has fully reserved for its loan andall deferred fees for the 'years 1996 through 2000. Fees in
2001 and to date in.2002 are not being deferred and are bemg paid. The hatel is currently.closed for repairs requtrad dus to extensive flooding.

13 Itis expected that this hotsl will be re-branded as Four Seasons Hotel Sydney sffactive June 30, 2002,

14 Subjectto satlsfactuon of certain conditions, an. 18% leasehold (nterest may be acqutred by the Corporation in con]uncuon with & proposed expansmn and renovation
of Four Seasons Hotel Istanbul.

15 The Corporation has madea loan of £3 million, whlch is convertible inta an equny interest in '(he hmel on the accurrence of certain-events.

16 FSHL is the tenant of the land and premises constituting the Four Seasons Hote! London. FSHL "has entered into a sublease of the hotel with the enmv on whose
behalf Four Seasons manages the hotel. The annual rent payable by FSHL under the leass is the sama as-the annual rent that is payable by the sub-tenant pursuant
1o the subleass. Indirectly, Four Seasons now holds a 12 5% ownarship:interest.in the sub—tenant {see "Commgent Comm<tments on page 40 and also note 13(a}
to the consolidated financial statements).’ . .
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{continued).

Four Seasons currently has 22 hotels’and resorts under construction or development.that are to be operated under the
Four Seasons rame. In addition, Residence Clubs are'under developrent in Sedong, Arizona and adjacent t&-the Four Seasons

resort in Punta Mlta Mexxco The followmg table sets, forth certain mformat:on relatmg to these propertles

Capital

N ; Total Capital - ‘Commitment

-Approximate Lo Commitment =~ Not Yet Funded

- i L g s R . Number of Schadulqd . Expected to Be /. As at March 1, 2002

Hotel/Resort/Residence Club and Location’ . Rooms/Units Opening’ - “Funded [millions) {millions}
Four Seasons Hotél Alexantria, Egypr* L0120 2004, o — L —

" Four Seasons Hotel Amman,’ fordan : : o188 2002 UsS$55% .. US30.9
Four Seasons Hoté! Beirut, Lebanon S 287 i 2005 ' Usss® US$s
Four Seasons. Hotel Budapest Hungary - oovd o o 17800 2003 oot 2 €127 —
Four Seasons Hotel Nile Plaza, Cairo, Egypt® = 374 . 2004 .7 Y US$5® : -
Four Seasons Resort Costa Rica, Cost Rica® S 79 2004 US$15 - US$15
Four Seasons Hotel Doha, Qatar® . 235 . -2004 ... US$4‘ . Uss4
Four Seascns Resort Exuma, The Bahamas™’ S 180 -~ 2003 i = —
Four Seasons Hotel Florence, fraly” e 116 ©..2004 : €10° o €10
Four Seasons Hotel. Hampshire, England : ST 134 +.2003: . £49* £4.89
Four Seasons Hotel Hong Kong, HongKong ; ‘4007 T 2004 - v —
Four Seasons Hotel Istanbul at the Bosphorus, Tlrkql T, 180 200300 L US$ 1647, US$15.1
Four Seasons Resort, Jackson Hole, Wjoming, USA®.. < - 124~ ... 212003 . .- .US$8! ......0 US$8
Four Seasons Hotel Miami, Florida, USA* - P 2220 -+ 122003 oo - WUS$10°% o —
Four Seasons Resort Provence ‘at Terre Blanche; Frame “A15 2003 Pt —

. Four Seasons Hotel Palo Alto, California, USA~ .« . 200 - 72004 . - USS8L - —
Four Seasons Resort Pusrto Rico, Puerto Rice® - 250 .- 2005 S oousstot 0 USS$10
Four Seasons F{e5|dence Club Punta Mita, Mexico” " “40° 2003 JUS$T.3% L —
Four Seasons Hotel Riyadh; Saudi Arabia® =~ . T 234 2002 . T =
Four Seasons Hotel.Sa0-Paulo, Brazil . - s 128 2003 “US$15* - US$15
Four Seasons Residence Clib. Sedona, Arzzana, USAz S 20N 2003 L 0 —
Four Seasons Resort Sharm et Sheikh, Bgype! -~ "2 -7 140 220020 = —
Four Seasons Hotel Tokyo at Marunouchi, fapan -+ - - B8 2002 ¢ T - —

Four Seasons Resortvvmsﬂer Brisish Columbza, Carxada"‘ o271 2004 oo I8283° . 8263

Information concernmg hotels resorts and Residence Clubs undar construction or under development |s based upon: agreements and letters of intent and
therefore may ba subjact 10° change prlor 'to the comp1et|on of ‘the project. The datés of open:ng ‘have been esumated by management based upon information
provided by the various developers: There can'be no assurance that the date of openmg will be ach:eved that estlmated caputai commltments wili not change 0( that
these projects will be completed. » :

This project is expemed to |nc|ude a Four Seasons R65|denca Club and/or a Fcur Seasons branded resxdentual component.
Equity. . X

Debt. © -

in the case cf Four Seasons Reson Cos(a Rxca Costa H\ca US$2 million of the total capital commnment expected to be (unded isa ccnnngem commitment, while
in the case of Four Seasons.Hotal Florence, Italy, all of the capital commitmant.expected to be funded is a contingent commitment.
In the event tnat the hotel does not meet certain performance targets, the Corporauon has the rlght but not the. obhgauon to suppon the hotel owner's debt
service 10 protect non-distwbance arrangemems with the hotel owners lender. ’
It is anticipated that there wili.oe an addmonal 600 serviced. suues in.a serviced suite hote! adjacent to this hotel.

Four Seasons Residence Club Punta Mnta may have up to 86 units at full build out.

It is anticipated that the Corporanon will reduce its equity interest through. a sale to a third party i

10 The capital committed to the project may be atfected by.the results of discussions with.the developer of the Remdsnce Club regardlng \he flnancmg of the project.
11 Four Seascns Residence Club Sedona may have up to 76 units at full build out.

12 This project is expectad to be a condominium hotst subject to @ mandatory rantal pool which- wiit be managed and cperated by Four Seasons.
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Management' obé'ﬁa’{iéhé S
Management Agreements IR

Four Seasons generally manages lts hotels pursuant to separate management agreements Under ltS management
agreements, Four Seasons generally oversees all aspects of the day-to-day operations of each hotel on behalf of the hotel
owner, including hlnng, training and supervising staff, maintaining sales and- marketlng efforts, prowdrng hotel accounting,
purchasing and budgetrng functions, providing support for management information systems and appllcatlons and providing
for the safekeeplng,repalr and maintenangce of the physical assets. Four Seasons performs these: services within the
guidelines contained in. annual operating and capital plans that are submitted to the owners of the hotels. during the last
quarter of the preceding year for their review and approval. For these services, Four Seasons generally earns a number of
fees including a base. fee equal toa percentage of hotel gross operatlng revenue; and-incentive fees based on certain
operating results of the hotel '

Four Seasons provrdes centrallzed reservatlons services, worldwrde sales offlces marketing programs-and advertising

services to the Four Seasons hotels and resorts under its management. Four Seasons provides supplementary oversight
“sales support to all of the Regent hotels that it manages Core marketsng and reservatlon servrces for the Regent brand are
. provided by Carlson '

Four Seasons supervrses purchasmg at all of the Four Seasons and Regent hotels and resorts under |ts management inorder -
to maintain a un|form quality: &f goods purchased and to control hotel ‘operating costs. Four Seasons malntalns a centralized
purchasing system and receives a fee calculated as a percentage of the. cost of goods purchased when this system is
utilized by the hotels and resorts under management

Although the owners, are generally responsrble for flnancmg and managlng the development of the hotels and resorts,
Four Seasons typlcally plays a sngnlflcant pre-opening role. Four Seasons provrdes advice with respect to the design,
construction.and flttlng out specrflcatlons of the hotels and. resorts during the, development stage to ensure that they
" meet Four Seasons' standards. Four. Seasons earnsa vanety of fees for thase pre-opening services, Four Seasons may also
assist owners in.connection wrth the refurb|shment of the hotels and resorts after openlng in return for Wthh Four Seasons
would earn a refurblshlng fee

Under the Corporatlon s management agreemvents the hotel owner is responsrble for fundlng the hotel s capltal expendltures
and working capital requwements including the salanes and beneflts of all hotel employees The hotel owner typlcally is
~ required to set aside a percentage of hotsi revenue each yearas a capital reserve ‘for the hotel Such percentages typically
range from 3% to 5% of hotel annual gross operating revenues. Four Seasons proposes an operating plan and capital
expenditure budget to the hotel owner for- approval on.an annual basis. All structural changes,” major refurbishing -
programs and major repairs. requlre the separate approval of hotel owners prlor to |mp|ementatlon and may be carried out
by Four Seasons ora thlrd party S

Total fee revenues are geographlcally d|versmed around the world: North Amenca is the only geographlc segment which
contributed in excess of 40% ofall fee-revenues in 2001. The diversification of fee revenies hasincreased 5|gn|f|cantly over
the past 10 years. With the opening of hotels and resorts currently under construct:on and development around the world,
the Corporatlon expects greater d|versn‘|cat|on of fee revenues in the future -

Residence Clubs and Other Branded Fle5|dent|al Propemes

The Corporatron is responsrble forthe brandlng and sales and marketrng of Resrdence Club mterests and the brandlng of other
Four Seasons residential projects. For these services, it is entitled to receive fees based ona percentage of the gross selling
price of the interests and the use of the Four Seasons name. [n.addition, the Corporation receives an ongoing management 'v
fee from the owners of the interests for the management of the day-to-day opérations of the completed prolects

7 See "Regent-Joint Venture"_on page 20. - L

’
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Sales and Marketmg

Four Seasons is responsrble for the development of overall sales and. marketrng strategres for the portfolro of Four Seasdns
managed hotéls and.resorts, which include enhancmg international:awareness of the Four Seasons brand and developing
local market potentral for specific hotels and resorts. Four Seasons! marketrng efforts are coordmated through its headquarters
in Torento and are targeted atthe quury segment of the market worldwide. Four Seasons'’ customer mix consists of business
travellers, groups (including: corporate and incentivel, and leisure travellers. These customer segments accounted for an
estimated 36%, 31% ahd 33%.. respectlvely of total room nights in 2001. The corporate marketmg staff also oversees the
planning and |mplementat|on of hotel marketing programs and arganizes the trarnlng and development programs for the global
sales force and the local sales and marketlng staff -

Four Seasons-has a global sales force of approxmately 80 people in 14 lntegrated ‘sales offlces in Atlanta Chicago,
Dallas, Frankfurt, Hong Kong, London, Los Angeles, New York, Singapore, Sydney, Tokyo, Toronto, San Francisco and
Washingtaon, D.C. Key cbjectives of the sales force are to attract groups and corporate business travellers for the hotels
and resorts, as well as to establish personal contacts with nationally recognized travel agencies.. In addition, a total of
over 300 salespeople are employed locally at hotels and resorts under management -The local marketing strategy
concentrates on developing.rooms and food and beverage business for hotels and resorts locally and regionally, and
promoting the hotel or resort as a centre of community activity with'a vrew to rncreasnng revenues from Iocal sources.

Four Seasons also- prowdes an international Corporate advertising program that develops and places advertlsmg for Four Seasons
branded hotels and resorts and oversees the promotional programs for each hotel or resort. The Carperation‘'s-advertisements
are designed to enhance ‘consumer awareness of Four Seasons luxury servrce and ‘the value that such servrces provide to
the business and le|sure traveller : f K : ] -

The Corporatlon staffs one reservatron centre for all Four Seasons branded hotels and resorts. In addition,. the Corporation'’s
global reservation service system provides reservation services in the local language in major North Amerlcan, Asian and
European cities, in a.total of 28 markets worldwide. Electronic reservations are anocther key part of Four Seasons' global’
distribution network, as Four Seasons’ reservatron systems are fully integrated with international airline booklng systems.
In addition, the Intemetis a growmg distribution channel which is supported by Four Seasons’ website — wwwfourseasons com.
The website accepts on- llne reservatlons and also refers guests to ather reservatlon channels

The Corporation receives corporate sales and marketing fees, centralized reservatron service fees and corporate advertising
fees from all Four Seasons hotels and resorts thereby enabllng it to recover substantrally all of the costs of providing
these services, : : .

Management Resources

Each Four Seasons. property is managed by a General Manager and supported by a Regronal Vice Presrdent (who is also a
General Manager) and other Corporate: Vice Presidents. The size of each property’s management team and its hourly staff
varies, based onthe size and business volume of the partlcular property. Property management monltors staff|ng levels on
an ongoing basis to opt|mlze servrce $tandards and labout productrvrty ST

A General Manager-is responsibie for supervising the day-to-day operations of a single property and is compensated in
. part based on the operational performance of.that property. Four Seasons. General Managers report directly to one of
13 Regional Vice Presidents or. directly to.one of two Senior Vice Presidents, Operatrons A Regronal Marketing Director,

an Area Director of Finance and a Reglonal Human Resources Director complete each regional support team. The majority
of these individuals are full-time employees of & Four Seascns managed property, with a portion of their time being devoted
to regional activities. The Corporation believes its reglonal management structure is a key- t:omponent in-Four Seasons’ ability
to deliver and maintain the highest and most consistent standards of product qualrty and service at each of |ts properties in
a cost effective manner, especrally as it expands globally. :




From the corporate level, the Corporation provides each property with the benefits of management’seryices delivered by a
network of highly experienced executives, corporate personnel’andarea managers. The. Corporation also p’rovides or arranges
assistance and training to each propertys employees for admrnrstratron operations, fooms and guest service, reservations,
maintenance and englneerrng human- resources and benefits. Other services arranged by the Corporatron rnclude advice and
assistance thn accounting, tax, legal, risk management, treasury, information technology, internal audit and credrt services.

Employees

Four Seasons: directly- employs and is frnancraHy responsrble for approxrmately 350 peopleat'the vanous corporate offices,
the worldwide sales offices and the central reservations offices: In addition; there are approxrmately ‘25,500 employees
located at the 54. hotels and resorts and two Resldence Clubs managed by Four Seasons All costs relatrng to ‘property-based
employees, rncludlng wages saiarles and health and i msurance beneﬂts are the. responsrblhty of the property owners and
are generally paid out of the operating cash flow of the property Management and corporate staff share responsibility for
the selection and training of. property-based employees and for-ensuring, through. progressive career development, an
adequate supply of mabile, qualified and experienced staff to match the growth of the Corporation’s operations internationally.
Maintenance of emplOyee communication, motivation and morale at high levels is necessary to meet the expectations
of Four Seasons’ clientele. A significant effort has been devoted to developmg customlzed hlrlng practrces tralnlng and career
development programs and-approaches in this context. - ‘

Of the 54 hotels and resorts and two Residence Clubs under management 19 are covered by coilectrve bargamrng agreements.

Ownership Opera_tions

Four Seasans holds an ownership interestin, or has:loans in'respect of or to, 23 of the 54 hotels and resorts andtwo Residence
Clubs currently under management. Four Seasons' most significant ownership interests are: a 100% leasehold interest
in each of Four Seasons Hotel Vancouver, The Pierre in New York and Four Seasons.Hotel Berlin and an approximately 71%
freehold interest'in ‘Four Seasons Residence Club Scottsdale -at Troon North The Corporation helds secured cash flow
loans in connection with Four Seasons Hotel London and has loans outstandmg in connectron with various properties
including Four Seasons Hotel George vV Parls The Regent Sydney and Four Seasons Resort Scottsdale at Troon North.

Four Seasons works closely with owners and investors in developing new propertres and acqurrrng exrstmg quury properties
to be managed by Four Seasons. To the extent required, Four. Seasons will make loans or mvestments to-secure long-term
management contracts, but these investments will only be made (n_order 1o expand or enhance its management business
and where the overall economic return to Four Seasons justiﬁes the investmsnt. However, Four Seasons generally limits
its total long-term capital exposure 10 no more 'than 20% of the total equity required for the new property and typically can
choose to have its ownershrp interest diluted if additional caprtal is required. The Corporatlon attempts 10 structure its
ownership interests separately from its management inferests so as to enable itto drspose of an ownershlp interest as sale
opportunities anse W|thout affectrng its management lnterests

e

Intellectual Property

In the highly competmve service rndustry in which Four Seasons operates, trade names trademarks service. marks and logos
are very important in the sales and marketing of those services. Four Seasons has a significant number of trade names,
trademarks, service marks and logos, and significant time and effort are expended each year on surveillance, registration
and protection of its trade names, trademarks, service. marks and logos, ‘which Four Seasons believes have become
synonymous-in the lodging industry with a standard of attention to detail and an unwavering dedication to excellence.

Four Seasons and Carlson have an arrangement pursuant to which Carlson has acquired rightsto the Regerit name for new
development. Carlson now dwins and has the exclusive right to use the Regent name-and related-trade narmes, trademarks,
service marks and logos and has granted' Four Seasons the right to use the Regent name and related marks and logos at
Regent properties managed by Four Seasons. The costs assocrated wrth the maintenance of the Regent brand and marks
are the oblrgatron of Car!son L

8 See note 3(a) and b) to the consolidated financial statements;

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.
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Selected Con‘sol.i'dated.Finahcial Information -

Two-Year Sur})njary' by Quérte; \

3rd Qual;ter

“4th Quarter,” 2nd Quarter 1st Quarter
(In millions of dollars. - ‘ S ’ : . -
except per share amounts) S 2001 2000 - 12001 2000 - 2001 2000 2001 2000
Consolidated revenues $769 31041 ~ 6572 -$808 ' $902 $906. 85788 $720
- Earnings (loss) before - LT L SR L E
other operating items: . . . RN ‘ o N
Management cperations ~ 20.1 39.1 12.1 29.9 335 31.9 29.6 24.8
Ownership operations =~ 0.3/ 8.6 6,00 34 0.7 3.7 o 15.2) (2.1)
Net earnings: _ , [ o B
Total . $ 93 .35385 $320 $231 $282- $271 $17.0 $ 144
" Basic earnings per share $ 0.27 $ 1.11 $ 0.92 $ 087 ~ $080 .3$078 $049 $ 042
$ 0.97

Diluted earnings per share ©$-0.27

- $080

$058

$072 $070

$ 045 $038




Five-Year Review .-

(In millions of dollars .

20005

1999 -

four Seasons Hotels Inc. *

- 23,000

except per share amounts) 2001' 1998 . 1997
Statements of Operations Data: i : S o O .
Consolidated revenues' | $ 3031  $-3475 T %2775 %2479 % 2404
Management operauons T e e e P
Revenues ; ©$ 71607 - $ 1853 - . $ 1440 . $.1268.° $ 106.0
Management earnings before ' : I L ERETS UV
other operating items - 95.3 126.8 891 .79.9 63.7
Ownership operations: R oL . B
Revenues = . , 1475 1811 132.4 12627 135.3
Distribution from hotel investments 15 - 90, - 8.3 2.7 6.4
Ownership earnings (loss) before \ L R
other operating items ‘ (10.2) 13.6 - E 8.1 15.4
Earnings before other operating itermns - 85.0 139.4 . 975 88.0 . 79.1
Depreciation-and amortization {16.2) 4.0 (12.5) {(15:2) (15.8)
Other income {expense), net? 307 - 87 3600 2.1- (12.0})
Earnings from operations’ . 995 - 41340 7 88.6: 74 g - 813
Interest income (expense), et S8 42 04 3.8) (8.9)
Earnings before income' taxes®, .106.2 138.2. CUBIO L _.7.v].1 . 42.4
Income tax expehse | (19.7) {35.1) (2.5) (1.4) {1.6)
Net earnings 'S 865 $ 1031 0 5 865 $ 897 $ 408
Earnings per'share: - oL R R T
Basic S '8 248§ 298 %252 §. 206 $ 124
Wenghted average numbef of shares (milions)® . *. . 34.9. 346 ..343 338 32.8
Cash Flow Data: . » D LT N
Cash provided by operatxons $ 755 $.1028 $ 106.8 $§ 758 $ 648
Cash provided by (used in) financing : 1037} 36 2025 333 3.6
Cash provided by (used in) capital investments .19.0 - (112.0) T (102.9) - (117.2) (58.3)
Balance Sheet Data: : o : A
Cash and cash equivalents . $ 2104 - § 2181 - 7§ 2222 $ 176 § 253
Total assets . . .980.4 . 9844 083217 . B4 . 453.2
. Long-term obligations - 1194 T 204,90 871 T T 1860 140.2
Shareholders! e\quit"y‘ R < 810.% - 7082 +'B877 - 7. 03304 2545
Other Data S e
Total revenues of aII managed’ hotels : A g : . BIRAE
and resorts® . $2,8059 ~ $2820.7  $23702  $22707  $2,1194
Management cperating margin’ 59.3% 67.9%: 81.9% 62.9% 6C.1%
Management earnings before other o -
operating items'as a % of earnings R o SRR )
- before other operating items 112.0% © 80'2% 91.4% - 90.7%" 80.5%
EBITDA® $ 850 $°1394 - .$ 975 - §- 880 $ 791
Market price per-share at year-end $ 7468 . ' 9530 $ 76.80 $ 45.00 $ 45.00
Shares outstanding (millions)® ©:35.0 . 349. ‘3,4._5, 7339 33.7
Market capltallzanon at year- end $2,612.9 $33224 . $2,649.1 $1,626.0 $1,5617.4
,Employees 25,850 26,800 25,300 22,000




Annual |nformat|on Form (contmued)

o ;s W [N

~

Consolidated ravenues are compnsed of revenues from managsment oparauans, revenues from ownershlp operatlons and- dnsmbuuons from hote| investments, less
fees from ownership opsranons to managemenl operations. . .

Other income {expense), net is compnsed of forengn exchangs gain (Ioss) gain an sa\a of mvestmsnts reccvery of (provxsnon for) loss Ioss on redemption of debt
and restructuring charges.

Earnings from opsranons represent earnings before other opefatmg rtems lsss (i} depreciation and amortization plus (ni other mcome less (i) other axpense.
Earnings before income taxes represent earmr\gs from operations pius: {i) interest incoma less (i) interast axpense.

Waeighted average number of shares and shares:outstanding-are comprised- of; Limited Voting Shares and Variable Multiple Votmg Shares; -
Total revenues of all managed hotels’ and resorts consist of rooms; food and beverage telephone and; other fevenues of aII the hctels and resorts which the
Corporation manages. - i '-

Management operating margin is: equal to managemem earnmgs bafore othar operanng items divided by management revenues ;
EBITDA is.equal to net earnings plus (il income tax expense pius (i) interast axpense lass fiii) interest income: pius' (iv) other exbense less (v’ other income plus
{vi} depreciation and amortizatian. EBITDA is the same as earnings before other operating iterns. EBITDA'is, not inténdéd to represent cash flow from operations
as defined by generally accepted ‘accounting principles, and EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to net incorne, cash ﬂow from operations or any
other measure of parformance prescribed by gensrally accepted acccuntmg prlncxples EBITDA of Four Seasons may also not be comparable 10 EBITDA used by other
compantes which may be calculated differently. . - .

Four Seasons directly employs and is financially responsible. for approximately 350 people at the various corporate offices, the worldwids. sales offices and the
central reservations offices. In addition, thers’ are approximatsly 25,500 employess located at the 54 hotels and. resorts’ and two Residence, Clubs managed by
Four Seasons. All ‘costs relating to property-based -employees, including wages, sa!anes and hea]th and msurancs beneflts are the responsibility of the property
owners and are generaHy paid out of the opérating cash flow of the property




Summary Hotel Operatlng Data

The following table sefs forth certam Summary operatmg data for hotels and resorts under Four Seasons management in
theyearsshown ) TR _ : ,

(Unaudited) . A U j '~2oo1,, . 20000 ,1999 o ;1998 L1997
All Managed Hotels .-
Worldwide: ‘ - Ce e e Do Sk S
. No. of properties REEREE ER B3N TAB L AT e 4R 39
No.of rooms .~ 0 ° &, 14,598 14,081 ¢ 13779 12782, 12,205
North America/South Amenca/Canbbean ‘ o L o T I
No. of properties -~ - UL 7 A L R AR - 24
No. of rooms N 9,010, . 8312 .. 8322 . 7574 7,414
Asia/Pacific - : P : ) -
No. of properties -~ . 1z 13- 13 13 1
No. of rooms " ;36190 4221 . 4202 4,344 . 4,197
Europe/Middle East o T ‘ Coe - ' ;
No. of properties S e e 8T e B 4
No. of rooms* .~ - SRR 1,969 1548 .. 1285 . 864 594
Stabilized Hotels* ~ S e e e e T e e -
Worldwide - itV T U PR IE DIF R O
"No. of properties BT 45 A2 3g .38 36
No.ofrooms =~ . = 012,744 12,478 11,355 12,185° 11,424
Oceupancy® =~ - o - oo BB0% o 726% . 69.8% . 704% 73.7%
ADR* B s 483 - $ 417 $ 403 375 $ 339
RevPAR® = .o o .8 0288 0 §.0303 .8 0281 0§ 284§ 250
Gross operating margin® oL LT ST T 321% L 36.3% "35.5%. .. .734.5% 33.7%
North America/Caribbean - . . 07w oo c il L S
No. of properties "~ S s 28 2324 22
No.ofrooms =~ o 0T 8116 107,006 o 7,362 0 7,568 6,837
Occupancy’ S S 67.1% 755%. " . 74.0% 73.9% 75.2%
ADR* T "8 B1Y $ 472 G -iAdd g 425 $ 389
RevPAR® STl s 343 0 U8 35607 §0008290 ¢ 314§ 278
Gross operatmg margln S e LT 730,8% 2359% . .36.0% 34.9% 33.2%
Asia/Pacific B ] R A AT i el s C .
No. of properties . oM 2 e 1
No.ofrooms .- .~ .. S0 073,080 3,682 3132 14,197 4,197
Occupancy®~ -’ , ST T B13% ..66.2% 59.9% . - -633% - 70.8%
ADR*. ' oo 8 t281. 2660 % 257 o § 232 $. 258
RevPAR® L RS ‘$ 154 . § 176§ 154 $..147. 5§ 182
Gross operating margm e . 355%  367% . “331% 1 81.2% 33.3%
Europe/Middie East o ' S B R
* No. of properties. = - ) Ter el g S e LB B 2
No. of rooms - - o E 1,548 890 871 .. 390 390
Occupanty” : UL T TE2.9% T TU733% T 88T% T 78.6% 79.2%
AORE e e g g g e P N S
RevPAR® - Sote 8 387§ 341 5% 032700 8B4 $ 473
Gross operating margin® ' . 36.2% 39.8% : 37.0% 42.4% 41.3%

1 Since December 31, 2001, the Corporation has commanced managament of Four Seasons Hotet Shanghai, which has 443 rooms and is'rot reflected in this table.

2 The term “Stabilized Hotels” means hotels and resorts that were fully open under.Four Seasons managernem throughout a pamcu(ar yaar and during 'the fast
quarter of the prior year. Stabilized Hotsls data is used when information for mare.than two years is provided. '

3 Occupancy percentage is defined as the total number of rooms cecupied divided by the total, number of rooms avallable

4 ADR is defined as averags daily room rate per, room occupied.

5 RevPAR is defined as average room ravenue per available. room. RevPAR is-a commonly used indicator of market performance for hatels and resorts and represents
the combination of the average daily room rate and the average occupanw rate: achieved during the, penod RevPAR does not include ‘foad and beverage or other
ancillary revenues generated by a hotel or resort. . .

6 Gross operating margin represents gross operating profit as a percentage of gross operating revenue,

Four Seascons Hotels Inc.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As a result of a softenlng economy and parucularly after the traglc events of September llth the global travel industry.
experienced an unprecedented slowdown in 2001 that Tesulted in a corresponding decline in the.Corporation’s earnings for
the year. During these difficult tlmes the Corporatlon s busxness ‘model was tested well beyond the limits of any prior
economic cycle and maintained sound profitability Ievels both at a corporate level and at the hotels-and resorts under the
Corporation’s management enabllng the Corporatlon to end the year W|th the strongest balance sheet inits hlstory

The severity of the market condltlons experienced in 2001 caused the Corporatlon to assess vrrtually every aspect of its
business model. This assessment was carried out in.close association with the Corporatlon s:hotel owners, managers and
employees. A result of this review process was the confirmation of the Corporation’s business model and.its core principle
that service standards should'not be the subject of compromlse This adhererice 1o established service standards allowed
the Corporation to maintain its.industry- leadlng achieved room rates at the same record levels as.were ach|eved in 2000,
while achieving oceupancy levels con5|stent wrth other major public-lodging companles

While maintaining established service standards the Corporatlon took aggressrve but prudent measures, to. control costs.
These actions resulted in the Corporatlon maintaining a S|gnlflcant RevPAR premium, relatlve to its competiters, while
also maintaining.a corporate profit margin of 59 3% on its management business and average worldwide operating profit
margins of 32% for its hotel owners. This average hotel operating profit margin exceeded the average margins reported
in 2001 by the Sther major publrc lodglng companies. The Corporation believes that ltS ‘ability. to control costs without
compromising the guest experience has posmoned it extremely well for the antlcrpated recovery in economic conditions
and lodging demand S e :

Accordingly, the Corporatron has not changed its key ob;ectrves Wthh are cutllned below.

Financial Objectives

The key financial objectlves of the Corporatlon may be summanzed as follows k :
. Achreve on average compounded earn| ngs per share growth of 20% per annum over the long term
* Achieve an average return on capital employed of gt least lO% over the Corporat|on ] long-term cost of capital,

* Achieve at least 90%. of the Corporatlon s earnlngs from |ts management busmess whlch mcludes management of
hotels, resorts Resrdence Clubs and other residential prolects .

+ Make 70% or more of the Corporatlon s annual operatrng cash flow avallable for lnvestments in‘or loans to new projects
that provide long-term opportunities for growth in management and royalty fees. The-long-term capital exposure to new
investments will generally be limited to no.more than 20% of the total equrty requtred fora property, and the Corpceration
will typlcally be permltted to choose to have its ownership |nterest diluted.if additicnal capltal is required.

Maintain an investment grade credlt ratmg and a Iow cost of capltal to facrhtate future financingof the Corporation'’s
growth initiatives: N .

Focus on ongorng lmprovements in operatlng proflt marglns atboth the property and corporate level; to maxrmlze returns
on capital with.limited addmonal lnvestment

Maintain tax efﬂmency

* Consider divesting the Corporatlon s equ|ty investments or loans when approprlate opportunmes arise, 10 allow previously
committed capital to be made avallable for investments related to new or enhanced management or royalty opportunities.

* Maintain a prudent risk. proflle on the investment of the Corporation’s cash reserves

* Make ongoing investments in technology to enhance our customers’ access. to: |nformatlon regardlng the Corporatlon S
properties and provide a variety of distribution charinels for reservations capabllltles : :

*» Make normal course purchases of its lerted Voting Shares as appropnate opportunmes arise from trme to time.

Four Seasons Hotels inc.




Annual Information Form (continued)

Growth Objectlves '

The key growth objectives. of the Corporatron may be summanzed as follows:

« Achieve growth of the Four Seasons portfolio through the addltlon of new hotels and resorts under management additional
Residence Clubs and sélected luxury residential projects. :

ldentify and pursue opportunltres to- utilize -the Corporatlon S free cash flow to acqurre the management of existing
unbrandediuxury hotels, or groups of luxury hotels and resorts.: il o

* Maintain and enhance Four Seasons RevPAR growth and the operatrng proflts of the'managed hotels and resorts.

Identify and pursue opportunltles that allow the Corporatron to malntarn |ts hlgh proﬂt marglns ln its managemént operations.
* Consider other opportunltles for growth that represent consrstent and- productlve extensrons of the four.Seasons brand.

Risk Management Objectrves

The key risk management obJectlves of the Corporation may be summarrzed as foIIows

o Ensure that the risks and benefits of new investments and cont\ngent bl gatlons are conslstent wrth the Corporatlon s
key financial and operational cbjectives. : : :

« Mitigate business cycle risks through both geographlc drversrty and the busmess mrx of {i} hotel management agreements
(i) Residence Club or branded luxury resrdences management and royalty agreements (i) hotel -resort and Residence
Club mvestments and {iv) effectlve utllrzatlon of the ‘Corporation's: cash reserves. ' Ahe Ll

* Engage in approprrate currency hedglng actrvrtres wrth a view to mmrmrzrng the nsks assocrated wnth forergn currency
exposures and interest.rate risk. . : :

* Maintain an approprlate balance between equrty and debt

* Minimize the Corporatlon s rnvestrnents inareasof hrgh risk, and, when made obtarn premrum returns on rnvested capital
in certain reglons to offset potentral polrtrcal or emergrng market rrsks N

¢ Continue to negotlate ong-tarm management agreements and non-drsturbance arrangements lwhlch help to protect the
Corporation’s-management: nghts in the event- of asale of a-groperty-or- any potentlal debt: foreclosures)

» Conduct ongorng risk assessment of the Corporatron s insurance’ programs to ensure “that rnsurance coverages are
apprapriately suffrcrent and, where approprrate consider i insurance to offset potentral polltlcal or emergrng market risks.

Overview of 2001

Despite the challenge of the most drfflcult operatrng condrtrons ever. experlenced by Four Seasons its customers and the
lodging and travel industry, the Corporatron managed tc meet many of its key objectives during 2001, |ncludlng the followrng

Unit growth: The Corporatron opened four'new propertres in 2001 Caracas, Prague, Dublin, and San‘Francisco; and
also acquired the long-term management of two exxstmg hotels.in Buenos'Aires, Argentlna and Carmelo Uruguay.
The Corporation also opened Four Seasons Hotgl Shanghai in February 2002.

Earnmgs per share growth: Although basic earnings per share fell 16. 8% t0.$2.48 per share compared to $2.98 per
share in 2000, basic. earnings per. share has grown.at a- compound annual growth: rate: of 18.9% since 1997. This
long-term growth rate reflects contrnued rmprovements |n the management busrness and the global growth prospects
for the Four Seasons brand.. : :

* Asset drsposmons During 2001, the Corporation drsposed of its investment in: three hotels The Corporatlon raised
aggregate net proceeds of approxrmately $89 million as a result of the sale of its: mterests in The Regent Hong Kong,
Four Seasons Hotel Prague and Four Séasons Resort Punta Mita. The Corporatron retalned rts Iong-term management
rights in Four Seasons Hotel Prague and Four Seasons Resort Punta Mita.

¢ Capital spending: In 2001, approximately 81% or $56.7 mrllron (2000 84% or $97.2 mllllon) of total caprtal spending
was invested i in new growth opportunities.




. Geographlc drversrty With, the hotel openrngs in 2001 and eariy 2002, the Corporatton"
operates in frve addltronal countrres ‘thereby expanding its geographrc diversity..The
planned openrngs over the next few years will contrrbute further to the Corporatron S
geographrc drversrty ob]ectrves : :

Liquidity posutton In 2001, the Corporatron strengthened its balance sheet by selllng'
three of its ownershrp posrtrons and by redeemrng $100 million.of unsecured debentures.
At December 31,2001, the Corporatron had cash reserves of $210.4 million, as
compared to0 remarnrng total long-term debt oblrgatrons of $119.4 mrllron The only ‘
significant ' debt, remaining relates to" pensron habrlrtres and 'the Corporatton s
Zero coupon ‘convertible notes due ih 2029, The Corporation has achreved .
significant liquidity to fund its growth program and to allow it to.react promptly toany .
additional growth opportunrtres which may arise. The Corporatron also has available."
US$200 miliion of commltted undrawn credit facilities,

¢ Credit rating: The' Corporatlon maintained its investment grade credrt ratrngs desplte -
the srgnrf«cant lodgrng tndustry downturn in 2001, : :

Balance Sheet Revrew and Analysus Commttments and L|qurd|ty S a7 98 189 00 01

Balance Sheet Revrew and Ana|y5|s

Corporate Strategy Relattng to Investments

A part of the Corporatron s busrness strategy istoinvest a portron ot avarlabte cashto obtarn new management agreements
or enhance existing management arrangements The l6ans of investments wrll only be made where the overall economic
return to Four Seasons ]ustrfres the rnvestment ' o ;

These loans. or rnvestments must meet the Corporatron s financial crlterra rnctudrng certain minimum’ return, hurdies.
The Corporation assesses the relatrve risk. and returns of such investments.. rncludrng rnterest dividends and fee income,
when determrnrng whether to make them or whether the structure of the mvestments should be in the form of a loan or a
minority equity investment. "The Corporatron generally seeks; to limit its totat: long-term caprtal exposure to no more than
20% of the total equrty requrred fora property and typrcally can choose to have its owhership rnterest diluted if additional
capital is requrred Depending on the nature of the lcan or.investment, it er bé characterized on the Corporatron s balance
sheet as "Investments in' hotel partnershrps and corporations, "Investment in management contracts,” or “Long-term
receivables.” The returns assocrated with such investments:are augmented by the management fees from the properties
in which the investments were made. k : :

As part of its ongorng balance sheet evaluatron the Corporatron has revrewed each investment and has determrned thatno
additional reserve was necessary as at Decembér 31 2001 relating to rmpaurment of the Book value of any of these loans or
investments. However, the Corporatron is.currently i in dispute with the owner of Four Seasons Hotel Caracas regarding a variety
- of matters relatrng to the completlon and ongoing operation of the hotel, including the resulting’ default on the Corporation’s
US$5 million-loan receivable, formal notice-of which has been glven The drspute has been referred to arbitration and the
Corporation gelieves that |t has adequate security to ensure the repayment of the:loan’ recervable provrded that due process
of law is respected.: :

s

Long-term Receivablés -

Included on the Corporation'’s balance sheet is $201 & mrllron of loans recetvable relattng primarily 1o advances made to
Four Seasons propertres The most srgnttrcant loans include amounts advanced to the owners of the Four Seasons hotels
in-London, San-Francisco, Nevis and The Regent ‘Sydney. See note 3t the consolrdated frnancral statements for further
|nformatlon relating to the loans recervable : : ; :

In 2001, the Corporation advanced $52. 4 mrllion in the aggregate aslongterm Ioan's to Four Seasons’ managed properties.
These included: (i) $26.4 million relatrng to the recently opened Four Seasons Hotel San Francrsco {ii) $8.9 million relating to
the sale of Four Seasons Hatel Prague, (iii) $6.2 million refating t6 thé renovation of The' Regent Bangkok, (iv) $2.2 million relating
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to the construction of Four Seasons Residence Club Scottsdale at Troon North (the totalloan of $18. 2 mlllron ‘which includes
amounts funded in: prewous years, was:subsequently repaid to the Corporatron in 2001), (vl $1.5 mrlllon relating to
the reconstruction and improvement of Four Seasons Resort Nevrs and (vr) $1 .5 mrlllon relatlng to improvements at
Four Seasons Hotel Las Vegas :

In 2000 the Corporatlon advanced $69 mllllon in the aggregate as long-term loans to Four Seasons’ managed properties.
These included: (1} $21 million relating to'the reconstructron and |mprovement of Four Seasons Resort Nevis, {ii) $16.5 million
relating to an acqursrtron of suites at The.Pierre in New York, (iii}'$11:8 million relating'to the constriction of Four Seasons -
Residence Club- Scottsdale at Troon- North (iv) $7.5° million. relatlng to'the construction of Four Seasons Hotel Caracas,
{v) $3.7 million relating to an operatrng shortfall at The Regent Sydney and {vi} $3.7 million relatrng to the construction of
Four Seasons Hotel Calro at The First Residence.

In 1998, the Corporatron advanced $81 miilion in the aggregate as long term loans to Four Seasons’ projects. These included:
(i} $46.2 million relating to the construction of Four Seasons Resort and Residence Club Scottsdale at Troon North, of -
which $29.5 million was repaid upon the sale of the resort in 1998, (i} $15.6 million relating to a major renovation project
at The Regent Sydney, {iil) $7.1-million-relating to the proposed equity interest in Four: Seasons Haotel Canary Wharf, and,
{iv) 4.4 million relating to the Four Seasons hetel under. oonstructlon in Budapest. "

lnvestments in Hotel Partnershlps and Corporatrons and Investment in Management Contracts } v

Hotel Ownershlp Interests

The Corporatron hasa 100% Ieasehold interest in The Plerre in New.York, Four Seasons Hotel Vancouver and Four Seasons
Hotel Berlin. The Corporatron s consolldated balance sheet includes the consolidation of the balance. sheets of these
three hotels. While it is not the Corporation’s current lnvestment strategy to hold majority hotel ownership investments, these
three properties.are long -term |easehold interests that were established at-an. earlier stage of the Corporatlon s development.
Because of the leasehold nature of these three propert\es itis dlfflcult to sell these lnterests without foregomg the hotel
management nghts -
There is no thlrd party debt assocxated wrth the Corporatron s leasehold rnterests in The Plerre in New York Four Seasons
Hotel Vancouver or Four Seasons Hotel Berlin. These drrect lease oblrgatlons are drsclosed in note 13la) to the consolidated
financial statements. : :

Other Hotel Ownershlp Interests and Four Seasons Flesrdence Clubs :

As at December 31, 2001, ‘Four Seasons had equrty investments in five other hotels and resorts under management namely,
The Regent Sydney {15. 2%), Four Seasons Hotel l_ondon (12 5%) Four Seasons Resort Aviara (7.3%), Four Seasons Resort
Scottsdale {3.9%) and Four Seasons Olymprc Hotel (Seattle) 3. 4%) and had equity investments in six of. the hotels and
resorts under.construction or development namely,_Four Seasons Hotel Mlamr (6.3%), Four. Seasons Hotel Shanghai
{21.2%), Four Seasons Hotel-Budapest{19.6%); Four Seasons Hotel Amman {12 3%) Four Seasons Hotel-Nile Plaza, Cairo
(9%) and Four Seasons Hotel Istanbul at the Bosphorus {(18%).-The Corporation’s' ownershlp interests’in Four Seasons
Resort Punta Mrta Four Seasons Hotel Prague and The Hegent Hong Kong were sold in 2001,

Four Seasons Hotel Shanghal opened in"the frrst quarter of 2002. The Corporatlon expects to fund in 2002 an equity
investrent in another five hotels under construction of development

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted acoountlng prlncrples Four Seasons aocounts for all of these investments
on a cost basis because elther the percentage ownership or structure does not grve the Corporatlon srgnlfrcant influence
over these investments, or the investments were made with the intention that they be disposed.of in the foreseeable
future. The book value of other hotel ownershrp interests was $121:8 million as at December 31, 2001 ($148.4 million as
at December 31, 2000). The decline in the book value of these ownership investments’ yéar-over-year is a result of the sale
of the Corporation’s interest in the investments noted above. Based upon the currentand budgeted operatrng cash flow of
each of these properties (adjusted for expected caprtal spendlng requrrements) the Corporatlony currently estimates that




the net recoverable value from each of these |nvestments at Ieast approxmates their respectwe book values (see note 4
to the consolidated fnnancral statements) The. effect-of US generally accepted accountmg pnncrples applied to the
investments is dlsclosed in note 16 to the consoltdated fmanma! statements ’ .

Each of these mvestments rndrvrdually represents less than 5% of the total assets of the Corporatron and none of these
investments is material to"the: Corporation.. The Corporation is not liable for any further obligations’ relatmg to these -
investments other than any contmgent commitment that is included in contmgent commttments dlscussed on page 40.
For the year ended December 31,2001, the Corporatron earned $20.4 million ($28 4 million i in. 2000) of fee revenues from
these investments.. The Corporation. received distributions of $1.5 million {$1.5 million in 2000) 'and funded $0.6 million in
2001 ($3.7 million in 2000) as its share of cash flow distribution to or cash flow shortfa!l from its five. equity investments in
hotels and resorts open in 2001. The Corporation expects that distributions from its five equity mvestments in the hotels
and resorts open in 2001 will equal cash shortfalls relating to these investments in 2002.

The following table sets forth the combined summarized financial information relating to-the Corporatlon S proport|onate
share of thése ownership interests for the 2001 and 2000 fiscal years, excluding: (i} Four Seasons’ ownership interests
in The Regent Hong Kong, Four Seasons Hotel Prague and Four Seasons Resort Punta Mita, all of which were scid
during 2001, (i} Four Seasons’.ownership interest in Four Seasons, Hote! Shanghai, which did not open until~2002, and
(i) Four Seasons' ownershlp interests in the Four Seasons hotels in Miami, Budapest Amman Nlle Plaza, Cairo and
Istanbul at the Bosphorus all of whrch are st||l under construction or development

Balance Sheet" «

2001 0 2000

{in thousands of dollars) .~ »

Currentassets . - RNt Vg S TR s 5508 $ 5,839
Long-term assets B o SRS PR 057,798 ‘ 60,661
Totalassets = . 0o e : o8 833027 "% . 66,500
Current liabilities™ - S ‘ s 18226 S 7,051
Long-term obligations due o thlrd partres“ PSRN _ . ’ 38384 . 46,763
Long-term obhgatlons due to the Corporatlon N : : Lot 2,383 7,268
Equity e RN S SR i < - B 5,418
Total liabilities.and equity S ' SRR ' N -8 63,302 v 8 66,500
Statement of Opérations = L : Sl e

{in thousands of dollars) BT RSP o Y 2001 . 2000
Revenues . . oo T sl 26290 0§ 30363
Expenses S S ’ Do g - (28,062) o (30,864)

Netloss® . = e L s 72 s (501)

1 The Corporanon is not llable for any: of these cbhgauons other than any conungent comm;tment that is included in contingént commltments discussed on page 40.

2 The current and Iong -term liabilities relating to the mvestments have recourse only to the assets of the smgl&purpose corporations, partnersh:ps or joint ventures that
own the properties. Four Seasons management contracts are also generally protected through. non-dnsturbance agreements with the proparty lenders in order to
attempt to ensure that the contracts survive any sale of the asset or foreclosure bya Iender -

3 The proportionate taxable earnings or loss of any partnership: and joint venture interest is included in the taxab\e earnrngs or loss of thenr respective partners,
Accardingly, no provrsnons for income taxes on such pannershlps and Jornt venturss are included in the above statements '

The book value of the Corporation’s ownershrp interests in Four Seasons Resrdence Clubs was $19 2 mxlllon as at December 31

2001 ($17.9 million at December 31, 2000). This amount represents the Corporatlon 5 ownersh!p interest in the projects
located at Aviara in Carlsbad, California (7.3%); Scottsdale, Arizona {71%); and Punta Mita, Mexico(30.8%). Sales of interests
in Four Seasens Residence Club Aviara and Four Seasons Residence Club Scottsdale at Traor North begar'in 1997 and 2000,
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respectively. Sales of interestsin Four Seasons Resrdence Clubs in Punta Mrta Sedona and Jackson Hole are expected 0
beginin 2002. The Corporatron earned fee revenues of $7.3 million in 2001 ($7. 5 miillion in 2000) but received no distributions
in 2001 ($0.2 million-in. 2000) from the Residence Clubs.in Avrara and Scottsdale Itis anticipated that the Corporation will
reduce its equity interests in the.Four Seasons Residence Clubs in Scottsdale Arizona and Punta Mita, Mexrco through sales
to third partles :

The following table sets forth the combined summarized frnancral information relating to the Corporatlon s proportionate
ownership lnterests in these Resrdence Clubs for the 2001 and 2000 flscal years, excludlng Four Seasons’ ownership
interest in Four Seasons Flesrdence Club Punta Mita, which'is still under constructron

BalanceShee«tt’ ‘ ; ; o Sy t
(In thousands of dollars) ) e ' . ) L2000 o 2000

Current assets - : o ' ' ‘ , s 3,392 $ 1,477
Long-term assets R ‘ : ' ) 35,184 30,384
Total assets | e .- - ... s 38576 .S 31861
Current liabilities™ .~~~ DR s 408 s 4,339
Long-term obligations™* . . R L N R ~ 19,096 2,937
Long-term obllgatrons due to the Corporatron - S L — 11,035
Equity oo o ‘ . : . © 15,434 . o0 13,550

Total liabilities and equity =~ : - \ . o s 38576. - % 31,861

" Statement of Operations L — ‘ : :
(!nthousandsofdollers)‘ : S e v : S 2001 o 2000

Revenues . | i . . o o .. s 20690 " .$ 21,85
Expenses .. L . R R S0 (19,603}, . .. (18,826)

Net earnings’ .. \_ e 3 W e .8 - _1’087 S % 1,930

The Corporatlon is not Ilable tor any.of’ these obhgatxons other than any contxngent commitment that is rncluded in contrngent commltments discussed on page 40.
2 The current and-long-term lrabrlmes relatmg to the invastments have recourse only 1o the assets of the smgle-purpose corporatrons partnershrps or joint ventures that
own the properties.

3 The proportionate taxable earnings or 10ss of any partnershrp and joint venture |nterest is |ncluded in the taxable earings or loss of their respective partners.
Accordrngly no provrsxons for income taxes on such partnershrps and lornt ventures are included in the above statements ;

The Corporation invested $25.5 million in the aggregate in 2001 (38 mrlhon in 2000 and $10 3 mrllron in 1999) to fund capital
_requirements in propertres in which: ‘it has less’ than a 20% mterest prlmarlly in hotels and resorts under construction or
development. The $25.5 million advanced in 2001 included (i) $15.8 million related to the Four Seasons hotel under
construction in Miami, {ii} $6.6 million related to the recently opened Four Seasons ‘Hotel Dublin,-and.(ii))-$1.7 million related
to the Four Seasons hotel under construction in Budapest. The $8 million advanced in- 2000 included (i} $5.2 million related
to the Four Seasons hotel under construction in Amman, and {i) $1.9 million related to the Four Seasons hotel under
development in Istanbui at the Bosphorus, The $1O 3 million advanced'in 1989 related to the Four Seasons hotel under
constructien in Budapest. : : "

In 2001, the Corporation invested $0.1 million ($0.3 million in 2000 and-$1.3 mrllron in 1999) related to the Four Seasons
Residence Club in Punta Mita, in which it has an approximate.30.8%- interest, and'$3.2 million ($2 8 million in 2000 and
$13.3 million.in 1999) related to Four Seasons Hotel Prague, in. whrch it had a 67% interest prlor to the sale of this interest
in 2001 (see ncte 4(c) to the consolidated ﬂnancral statements) '




During 2000 ‘the Corporatlon also |nvested (|l $25. 8 mrllron in the Four Seasons hotel then under constructlon in Shanghai,
in which: it has & 21.2% interest, (i) $7.4 million l$6 3 mrlllon in 1999) in Four Seasons Resort: Punta Mrta in which it
had a 30.8%. interest. prior to the sale of this interest in:2001 {(see note 4(d) to the consolidated financial-statements), and
(iii) $5.1 million ($7.8 million in-1999} in Four Seasons- Resort Scottsdale at Troom’ North in which |ts equity:interest was
reduced to 3:9% as-at December 31, 1999. . :

In 2001, in additlon to the sale of its interest in the”Four Seasons hotels in Prague and Punta Mita; the Corporation sold

its 25% ownership interest in The Regent Hong Kong (see note 4(b) to the consolidated frnancral statements) in 2000, . .

the Corporation was repaid US$5 millicn of a US$7.5 million advance prevrously made to the owner of Four Seasons Hotel
Atlanta. In 1998, the Corporation:sold its direct ownershrp interest in Four Seasons Resort Scottsdale at Troon North and
a 50% interest in.two parcels of land adjacent to the resort for cash proceeds of U$$23.1 miltion, a preferred profitinterest
of US$10.6 million in the purchaser s interest in the resort and'a recelvable of US$1. 4 million. :

Fixed Assets

Owners of properties managed by Four Seasons are contractually responsible forfunding the capital requir_ements of the
properties, including guest room and comimon area renovations; and for maintaining capital reserves to fund ongoing annual
maintenance caprtal expenditures required by the management agreements. The owners annually spend an average of 4%
of hotel gross revenues on capital expenditures to maintain properties at the’ Four Seasons standard {(other than in newly
constructed or recently renovated properties where the annual amounts generallv range from-1% to 2% in the years of
operation following opening and major refurbrshment) Capital expendltures are funded primarily by worklng capital generated
from property operations and through advances from the.owners. Four Seéasans' share of these capital expendrtures was
$9.6 million, $11.1 million and $13 million in 2001,-2000, and 1998, respectrvely, for lts consolrdated hotels and corporate
offices. Four Seasons share of caprtal expendrtures was immaterial for those hotel propertres in which Four Seasons has
a minority equity lnterest or pursuant to management contract oblrgatrons The Corporatron expects frxed asset additions
and lmprovements in 2002 to be at° srmllar levels to 2001. : : v

Commltments

Debt , ' , :

FSHI's unsecured debentures with a face value of $100 million and a maturity date of Juty 2, ZOOZ were redeemed by the
Corporation during 2001 for $102.2 million, which:resulted’in'an accounting loss of $2.4'million. The debentures bore interest
atarate of 6% per annum The redemptron was funded from the Corporatron S cash reserves

During 1999, FSHl issued US$655 5 mrllron principal amount at maturrty (September 23 2029) of convertrble notes for
gross proceeds of US$172.5million. The net proceeds of the i rssuance after deducting offering expenses and underwriter’s
commission, were approximately US$166 million. At any time on or before the miaturity date, unless the notes have prevrously
been redeemed- or purchased holders may require FSHI to convert the notes (each US$1,000 dollar principal) into
5.284 Limited Voting Shares of FSHI. FSHI has the right to.acquire the notes that a holder has required to be converted for
cash equal to the fair value of the Limited Voting Shaes. The conversion rate may be adjusted for certain reasons, but will
not be adjusted for accrued interest. Holders also have the right to require FSHI to purchase all.or a portron “of their notes
on September 23, 2004, September 23, 2009 and September 23, 2014 in consideration fér. Limiited Voting Shares of FSHI
having a fair value equal to the issue price plus accrued interest to the date of purchase. However, FSHI always has the right
10 acquire for cash all or a portion of the notes that a holder has required to be so purchased. In-addition, upon & change in
control of FSHI occurring on or before Septemvbe_r 23, 2004, FSHI will be required to offer to purchase all'the notes for cash
at the issue price plus accrued interest to the date of purchase..FSHI may redeem all or a portion of the notes at any time
on or after September 23, 2004 for cash at the issue price plus-accrued interest to the date of purchase.. *
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The net proceeds of this. issue were used to repay all amounts owed under the Corporation's bank credit‘faéllity with the
remainder being |nvested in bank depostts guaranteed lnvestment certificates and money market funds held with major
financial institutions. B : B

As at December 31, in each of 2001 2000 and 1999, with the exceptlon of |ts pension cormmitments, vurtually all of the
Corporation’s long-term obllgatlons were. at flxed interest rates.

The Corporation has'a US$200 million’ commltted bank credit facmty, of WhICh US$1OO mllllon matures in Aprll 2003 and
US$100 million: matures in July 2003. As at December 31,2001, no amounts were borrowed by the Corporation under
- this credit facility. The Corporation believes that bank credit facilities, when combined with cash on hand and internally

generated cash flow, -are adequate to allow it to finance all of its normal operatmg ‘needs and. commltments to new
investments to achieve its growth objectives. ' : :

Pension Commttments

The Corporatlon malntalns a multl employer non contrlbutory defmed beneflt pensmn plan (the Plan ) on behalf of the
Corporation and the owners of certam managed hotels The Plan provndes pensian | beneflts for certam senlor executives
of the Corporatlon and hotel general manageérs, based.on years and level of service and annual salary

The accrued benefit fiability of $27.2 million, which is recorded on the Corporatton (S balance sheet in, Long-term obligations”
as at December 31, 2001, is financed by life insurance polrcnes on the lives of certain of the participants in the Plan. As at
December 31, 2001; the Corporation's $hare of the cash’ surrender value of the poltcnes whichis mcluded in**Other assets”
on the Corporation's balance sheet was $15.7 million. :

Lease Commltments Consolldated Hotels

3

In addition to the obllgatnons identified on the Corporatlon s balance sheet as at December 31 2001, the Corporatlon s three
consolidated hotels (The Pierre in New York, Four Seasons-Hotel Berfin'and Four. Season. Hotel Vancouver)-are leasehold
- interests subject to individual property leases. The Corporation' S obllgatlons in respect to two of these leases are supported
by letters of credit aggregating $18. 2 million. The total annual lease obllgatlons for these three assets represent annual
payments of approximately $16 mI“IOﬂ in 2001 and 2002. These lease expenses are treated asan expense of the Corporation’s
Ownershlp Operatlons (see note 13(a) to the consoltdated fmancxal statements)

Contingent Commltments )

In connection wrth certain of its propertles currently.under management the Corporation provndes llmlted and contingent
commitments in lieu of additional equity, loan or guarantee commitments. As at December 31, 2001, the. Corporation has
eight contingent commitments totallxng $39 miltion, of which five commitments are for potentlal one-time fundlngs totalling
approximately $20 million and three commitments represent annual.-maximurn contingent commitments of approxrmately
$19 million, which are éxpected to remain.in place for at least the next five years. To the extent. it is called upon to honour
any one of these contingent commitments, generally the Corgoration has etther the right to be repald from hotel operations
“andfor has various forms of security .or recourse to the owner of the property..The Corporation did not fund any amount
pursuant to these contingent commitments in. 1999, 2000 or 2001, The Corporatlon currently does not anticipate being
required to fund any amount pursuant to these contlngent commitments dunng 2002. The Corporation believes, based on
its typical investing actwtty thatits annual contingent commitments will not change materially in 2002 unless the Corporation
accepts new contingent commitments in lieu of additional equtty investments or |oans to obtain new |ong term management
agreements or |mprove enstmg management agreements




Liquidity

Cash Reserves and Cash from Operatlons

As at December 31 2001, the Corporanons cash reserves were $2104 m|l||on as compared to cash reserves of
$218.1 million as at December 31, 2000 ’ : S

For the year ended December 3t, 2001, cash from operations was $75 5 million, as compared to $102 6 m|lllon in-2000.
The decrease in operating cash flow of $27.1 million was primarily due to lower working capital generated by management
and ownership operatrons of $28.8 million and $20.5 mlllron respectrvely in 2001 as compared to 2000 (reflecting
the decreasesin management and ownershrp operatlng earnmgs discussed below under * Results of Operations”), a decrease
of $3.8 million_in ca_sh~reﬁce|y}ed_rela‘t|ng_ 1o assets prevrously provided for.and an_increase.in income ‘tax installments of
$2.1 million. The operatihg cash flow decrease was partially offset by a decreasein noncash working capital of $27.6 million
in 2001, as compared to'2000-{resulting: primarily- from the collectlon in-200% of~the lncentlve and royalty fee recelvables
which were outstandlng at the end of 2000) : : :

For the year ended December 31 2000 cash flow from operatlons was $102 6 mlllron as compared to $106 8 miltion in
1899. The decrease in operating cash flow was primarily 'due to an’increase in non-cash workrng capltal of $38 million
in 2000, as compared 10 1999 (resultrng primarily from additional incentive and royalty fee receivables at December 31, 2000, v
the majority of which have currently been collected and contributed to the Corporation's cash posmon in 2001), and
an increase in income tax installments of $14 million in 2000, as compared to 1999, The operating cash flow decrease
was partially offset by higher workxng capital generated by management and ownershlp operatlons of $35.7 million and
$4.8 million, respectlvely in 2000, as compared to 1999 (reflecting the |mprovement in. management and ownership -
operations discussed below under “Results of Operations”), and higher net interest income received ‘o‘fv_$i5.9 million in
2000, as compared to 1999. ‘ ‘ : ' R R PATER

Cash flow from operations in 2002\is expected to exceed cash flow from operations in 2001. As noted above the Corporation
expects that a majority of the cash fiow from operations in 2002 will be re-invested to generate new revenue streams from
new management contracts or lmprovements in certain- exlstlng contracts. R

Anticipated 2002 Capltal Spending

The Cerporation generally utilizes cash from operatrons and cash reserves’ to (|) make capltal |nvestments to obtain
long-term management agreements and to enhance exlstzng management agreements (ii§ fund its share of hotel, resort
and Residence Club capital |mprovements and operating. reqmrements where it holds an equrty |nterest ‘and where the
operating cash flow from these propemes is msufﬂcrent to fund these requlrements and (iii) make pnnmpal and interest
payments on corporate debt. - :

In 2002, based upon the current busmess plan the Corporatron expects total capltal spendlng |ncludlng dividends and those
items noted on pages 36 and 38, to be’ approximately. the same as the $73.2 million spent in 2001 It |s expected that
the majority of the investments made by the Corporation in 2002 wilt be for.loans receivable or mlnonty interests in new
hotel, resort and residential projects which it will brand and manage under long-term management contracts. Four Seasons
projects that are expected tobe funded by the Corporation in 2002 include Amman, Buenos Aires, Jackson: Hole, Costa Rica
and S&o Paulo. (A chart summarizing.capital committed to properties under constructron or development; but not yet funded,
is set out on page 24.) This capital spending'in 2002 will be funded from a comblnatron of cash reserves and cash generated
by operations. However, dependlng on additional opportunmes that may arise,-additional capital commrtments may be made
to obtain long~term management agresments-and t0.enhance exrst\ng management; agreements

Dividends

The Corporation pard $3 6 million in drwdends during 2001 and 2000 based on a leldend pollcy of 1 cents per Limited
Voting Share and 5.5 cents per Variable Multiple Votlng Share per annum pald seml annually |n January and July. The
Corporation does not expect to change its dlwdend policy i in 2002 Coe

. Four Seasons Hotels Inc.




.Annual Information Form (continued)

Operational and Financial R:ev‘iewwand\ Analysis
Overview

Four Seasons has two operatrng segments: management operatlons and ownershrp operatrons It is Four Seasons ob}ectrve
to maximize the percentage of its operating earnings from the management operatrons segment and generally to make
investments in the ownership of hotels, resorts and Residence Clubs'only where required to:secure additional management
opportunities: or to improve the management fee arrangements for existing propertres Revenues from management
operations and ownership operatrons as a percentage of total combined consolidated fevenues are set forth in'the following
table. The table also includes earnings before other operating items; interest and taxes (“EBITDA“) from management
operations and ownershrp operatlons as a percentage of total EBITDA : : ‘

2001 : 2000 L 1'999*;"“_' 1998 1897

As a percentage of consalidated revenues:
Revenues from management :

operations - ' 53.0% 53.3% - B18% - B1.2% 44.1%
Revenues from ownership R NPT AT S - B
operations. 7. . LU LL4BT 464 v 477 . 505 56.3
Distributions from hotel investments. - 05 - 260 . .30 7 s 28
Fees paid by ownership operations - .« .. e ’ SRR ‘
to management operations. - Soi(2.2) =230 (2.8) = (2:8) (3.0
‘ ’ . 100.0% 100.0%, . 1000% - - - 100.0% 100.0%

Asapercenta‘geof consolidated EBITDA‘: e Lo o
Management operations S 112.0% w0 00.2% L9 .4%  Fe o 907 % 80.5%

Ownership opérations y 1200 98, 86 . 193 195
100.0% 100.0% % -.100.0% - 100:0% 100.0%

1 EBITDA is equal to net earnings ptus (it rncome tax-‘expense plus (i} mterest expense less {iil), mterest rncome plus (iv} other expense Iess (v) other income plus
lvr) depreciation. and amortization. EBITDA is the same ‘as earnings before other operating items, EBITDA isinot intended to représent cash flow from operations
as defined by generally accepted accounting principles, and EBITDA should not beé considered as an alternatrve to net. income, cash. flow from-operations or any
other measura of performance prescribed by generally accepted accounting prrncrples EBITDA of Four Seasons may dlso not be comparable 0 EBITDA used by other
companies which may be ca|cutated drfferently .

Management Operatrons

Four Seasons is prrncrpalIy a management company Under |ts management agreements Four Seasons generally supervises
all aspects of hotel and resort operatrons on behalf of the owners |ncludrng sales and marketrng reservatrons accounting,
purchasing, budgeting and the hiring, training and supervising of staff: For providing these servrces Four Seasons receives
a variety of fees, ifcluding a base fee calculated as a percentage of gross operating revenues of each hotel and resort.
in addition, Four Seasons typrcally receives an incentive fee based on the operatrng performance of each hotel.

Through economies of scale, coordrnated mternatronal marketing efforts detar!ed labour management controls and food and
beverage purchasrng systems, Four Seasons generally has enhanced the overall profrtablllty of hotels and resorts under its
management. As a result of various management tools and cost control techniques, the gross operating profit margin of
the Core Hotels improved from 32.8% in 1996 to 35.2% in 2000 (calculated as a percentage of gross operating revenues).
The margin fell in 2001 to 32.1% largelyasa result of the significant pressure on occupancies resulting from the September
11th terrorist attacks and the weakenrng global economy Howeéver, these achieved margins remain much higher than those
achieved in the Core’ Hotels in 1991and 1992 foliowrng the Gulf War and reflect the abrltty of Core Hotels to better weather -
these periods of uncertalnty and dlsruptlon of travel:




In addition to overseelng day-today operattons of its hotels and resorts Four Seasons generally prov des management
services, including developlng and lmplementrng sales and marketing strategres operatrng a central reservations system,
assisting with sourcmg the financing of and development 'of new hotels and resorts; providing advice. with respect 10
the design and constructlon of new-or renovated hotels and resorts asslstlng wrth the refurbishment of hotels and resorts,
and providing a centrallzed purchasing system for goods

General and administrative expenses for management operatrons are incurred by the Corporatlon to provrde the management
services outlined in the previous paragraph, together with and |ncludlng those items normally associated with' corporate
overhead, such as operations, flnance rnformatron technology accountrng, legal developmentand other costs of maintaining
the corporate offrce : : :

The sales, marketlng and central reservatlon expenses whlch are funded by sales and marketrng and central reservation
charges, are on'a cost recovery basrs to the Corporatlon and are a functron of the number of hotels and resorts in operation.
Excluding the.sales and. marketrng and.reservations expenses the.Corporation's.other. general and. admrnlstratrve expenses
are relatively stable year over year Asa result the Corporatron derives substantial operating proflt Ieverage from increases

in management fees generated from exrstrng agreements and the addrtxon of new management contracts From 1996 to -

2000, management revenues and management earnings before other operatrng items have grown at compounded annual

growth rates of 18% and 23%; respectrvely During the same period, management earnings before other operating items

as a percentage of management revenues (management profrt margrn) increased from 58.8% to'67. 9% i

rAs a result of 'the unprecedented decllne in travel during 2001 in the aftermath of: the events of September 11th and a

weakening global economy, managemerit revenues declined 13.3% and management earnings declined 24.3% for the year
of 2001, as compared to 2000. The management profit margin fell to'59.3% during the same period. Management revenues
and earnings are expected to increase in'2002 as a result of (l) antlcrpated RevPAR and -profitability rmprovements at Core
Hotels as a result of expected lmprovements in-the economy, (i) a full year of management fees from propertles opened
in 2001, {jii) the addition of management fees from properties added to the portfolio in 2002 /(iv) rncreased fees from
Residence Club prolects and (v) mcreased royalty and llcence fegs from brandrng of resrdentral proj ects '

OwnershlpOperatlons R - R el -

Ownership earnlngs |nclude the consolldated results of the 100% Ieasehold lnterests in The P|erre in New York Four Seasons
Hotel \/ancouver and Four Seasons Hotel Berlln : : L :

In addition, the Corporatlon recognrzes as revenue the proflt dlstrlbutlon from r’ﬁrh'o,‘rlfy 'bW‘n’érsh‘ib‘ i'nterests, which
are discussed on page 36. Through ‘the'end  of 2000, the Corporation received dividend distributions.in respect to its
25% interest in The Regent Hong Kong. The Corporatron dlsposed of this: |nterest in'2001, and recorded no dividend
distributicns from thlS hotel in 2001 L :

Four Seasons Hotels inc.
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Results of Operatlons )
Year ended December 31 2001 campared s year ended Deczmber 31, 2000

Management Operatlons

Revenues

Fee revenues decreased $246 million or 13.3% to'$160.7 mrllron in 2001, as compared to $185 3 mrlllon in 2000.
The decrease is attributable to'(i) a decrease in fees of $2.9 mrlllon resultrng from the cessatlon of the Corporation's
management of .The Regent. Hong Kong dunng 20017 and (ii).a decrease: in fees from other hotels and resorts of
$25.3 million, partially offset by an increase in fees from' recently opened hotels and resorts and new management -
agreements of $3 1 million and a net increase in fees from hotels and resorts under deve\opment and from Four Seasons
Residence Club prolects of $0:5 million. The srgnrflcant decrease in fees from other operating hotels and resorts in 2001
was primarily due to the general downturn in the global economy and the events of September 11th. Historically, the period
‘from early September tothe year-end is orie of high hotel occupancies, both from busine_ss_and leisure travel. The September
events, along with slowing economic conditions, cornbined to severely constrain global‘travel over the latter part of 2001,
The Corparation’siincentive fees, which are typically calculated based on the adrusted gross operatlng profrts of the hotels
and resorts under - management, decreased $19 8 mrlllon to $30 million in 2007, as’ compared 1o $49.8 million in 2000.
Incentive fees contributed 18.7% of the total fee revenues in 2001, as compared to 26.9% in 2000.

Fee revenues are Iargely dependent on total revenues of aII managed hotels and resorts whrch were $2 8 billion in 2001,
approximately the same level as 2000, notwrthstandrng the’ generai downturn in the global economy and ‘the events of
September 11th. The recognition of 2001 hotel revenues similar . to 2000 hotel revenues was. the: fesult of strong
performances in the European and Canada/Mexico markets and an increase in revenues, from recently opened hotels and
resorts, offset by weaker performances.in the Unrted States and Asra/Pacrfrc markets. AII markets in whrch the Corporation
manages hotels and resorts were negatively rmpacted foilowrng the events of September 11th and the: economrc slowdown.
In addition, Eurgpean and Asra/Pacrflc revenues were each adversely affected by the weakening suro and Asian currencies -
against the US dollar. OR a.euro basis, revenues of Core Hotels in the European markets rncreased 6 3% in 2001, as
compared to an increase of 3. 6% when measured on & US dollar basis. On a local currency basis, revenues of Core Hotels
in the Asia/Pacific markets decreased 2.8% in 2001, as compared to a decrease of 11 6% on a US dollar basis.

‘Hotel revenue has a high correlation to RevF‘AR The Corporatron S worIdwrde Core Hotels
had an average_decrease_of 10% in RevPAR in 2001, as compared to 2000, on a US doilar
basis, resulting from a decrease in occupancy of 7.5% and an increase in room rates of 0.3%.
Prior to September 11,2001, the.Corporation expected the,wor!dwideCore Hotel's RevPAR
to decline by approximately 2% 10 3%, on a US dollar basis for the full year.

Primarily as a result of the strength-of the Corporation’s hotels in Paris and Milan, on a
US dollar basis, the Corporation’s Core Hotels under management in Europe-experienced
an average increase in RevPAR of 1.2%, and an average increase in gross operatinyg profit
of 13.2%, whereas the Corporation’s Core.Hotels under management in the U’nited States. ..
and Asia/Pacific experienced an.average decrease in RevPAR of 12. 5% and 11.3%,
respectively, and an average decrease in gross operating proflt of 23.3% and 11:7%,
respectively,. in 2001 as compared to 2000. The ‘Corporation's Core Hotels under
managementin Canada/Mexrco had an average decrease in RevPAR, on a'US dollar basis,
of 1.2%, and an average increase in gross operating proflt ‘on a US dollar ba5|s of
4.8%. Gross operating profit of the Core, Hotéls decreased overall on average by
16.5% in 2001, as compared to 2000, on-a US dollar basis, primarily dle. to decreased
RevPAR. In 2002, the Corporation expects RevPAR to increase approximately 2% to 3%. 97 98 33 00 o1
in its worldwide Core Hotels. On a quarterly basis the Corporation expects the foliowing ) : '




changes in RevPAR;ona us dollar basis, in its worldwide Core Hotels; first quarter - —adecline of approximately 12% to 15%:;
second quarter -a decline of approxrmately 2% 105%; third quarter —an. increase of approxtmately 8% t0.12%; and fourth
quarter — an incréase of appro><|mate!y 165% to 20%. Thesg expectations are based on'the Corporat on's assumptron that US
GDP growth WI” nncrease by 1.0%. to 1 5% durmg 2002 with the growth predommantly in the latter half of 2002

The Corporatron expects fee révenues to \ncrease in 2002 over 2001 bv apprommately 5% pnmanly as a result of
{i) anticipated RevPAR and proﬂtabl!lty improvements at Core Hotels as a result of the antmpated improvement in the
global economy, (i) a full year of management fees from the propert:es opened i in’ 2001 {iii)- the addition. of management
fees from properties added to the partfelic in 2002, (vv) increased fees from Resrdence Ctub pro;ects and (v) royalty and
licence fees from brandlng of resadentlal projects :

General and Adm/nlstrat/ve Expenses

In 2001, general and admanrstratrve expenses increased by $5.9 mllhon or 9 9%, as compared to 2000. Thrs increase reflects,
in part, an additional $4.4 million of reservation and sales an}d marketing expenses in 2001, primarily attributable to new
managed properties, ‘as compared to2000. In- 2001 reservation and sales and marketing expenses vver‘e $28.9 million or
44 2% of total general and admrnlstrat\ve experises, as compared to $24.5 million or 41.2% in 2000. Cther than the costs
related to an increase in feesin the reservation and sales and marketing areas, which operate on & cost: recovery basis, the
overall increase in general and admmtstratwe expenses’in 2007 was 4.2% or $1. 5 million, as comipared to 2000. In 2002,
general and admlnlstratwe expenses afe expected to-remain generally unchanged, as compared 102001, excluding an
expected increase in reservation and sales and marketing expenses of approxtmately 5% whrch are funded by additional
reservation and sales and marketlng fees

ManagementEarnmgs B N

As a result of the changes in management revenues and expenses dlscussed above the

Corporation's managernent earnings decreased by $3O 5 million or. 24.3%: from-the pnor e

year to $95.3 million.in 2001, Management earnlngs represented essentially all of the

Corporation's earnlngs before other operatlng items in 2001. and 90% of these earnrngs '

in 2000. The increased percentage in 2001 ‘was dueito the ownershrp operatlons Ioss 130

before other operating items in 2001 and the sale of the Corporation's 25% mincrity'interest

in The Regent Hong Kong. The Corporanon expects that in 2002, all of its operating’ 110
earnings will continue to be defived from its management operations,-as it expects'that— s

its ownershlp operatlons will | incur a Ioss of approxrmately $8 mlllron in 2002 AT

With the combmatron of management revenue growth antlcnpated in- 2002 and no.-
expected i mcrease in nts cost base other than- for reservatrons and-sales and marketlng* 70
expenses, the Corporatlon currently anticipates that the management operatlons proflt

margin in 2002 should’ exceed the 2001 profit margm of 59.3%. ] o 50

Ownership Operatlons

Ownership loss in 2001 was $10.2 million, as’ compared 10 ownershlp earnings. of 0=
$13.6 million in 2000. The decrease in ownership earnings of $23.8 million was primarily

due to a decrease in operatrng earnlngs at The Pierre in New York of $14:8 mtlhon and-the
elimination of a dividend from The Regent Hong Kong'in 2001, as compared to a dividend of $7.4 mnlron in 2000: During 2001,
the Corporation sold its 25% ownership interest in The Regent Hong Kong and recelved gross procaeds of $36.4 million
(see note 4(b) to the consohdated ﬁnanmal statements)

9 00 01

The decrease in. operatmg earnxngs at The Pterre resulted pnman!y from the events of September 11th and the softening
economy, which severely disrupted the hotel s operatlons during a part of the year whrch tradmonally has been the most
profitable for the hotel --- '
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During 2001, the occupancy level at The Plerre was 63, 8% as compared to 80. 7% for 2000 causrng operatlng garnings to
decrease from earnings of $14.1 mllllon in2000t0 a Ioss of $0.7 mrllron in 2001.

As discussed on page 36, the Corporatlon has a mlnonty ownership lnterest infive: Four Seasons hotels and resorts under
management and two Four Seasons Residence Clubs which are accounted for on a cost basrs In 2001 and 2000, the
Corporation recelved $1 5 rnrllron of drstnbutrons from these lnvestments C

With moderately Improvmg rndustry condrtrons in New York the Corporatlon expects ownersnrp losses to be reduced
to approxrmately $8 million in 2002. The Corporatlon expects thls segment to return to proﬁtabllrty when normal demand
levels return to the New York market! However, the Corporation expects that Four Seasons Hotel Berlrn wrll generate aloss
of approxrmately $2 miliion per year. for the next several years.

Other Items

Depreciation and Amort/zatron

Depreciation and amortization expense in 2001 was $16.2 million, as compared to $14 millionin 2000 The increase is
attributable primarily to higher amortlzatlon charges related 10 the Corporatlon sinvestment in management contracts and
higher depreciation and amortization expense relating to fixed assets at the Corporatron s consolidated hotels and resorts.
Depreciation and amortization-expense is expected to decrease in 2002 by approximately $2 mllllon as’ compared to 2001,

due primarily to a change in the:accounting standard by The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (" CICA") relating
to goodwill and other intangible assets, which came into effect on January. 1, 2002 lsee lmpact of Recently Issued Canadian
Accounting Standards” on page 56) :

Other Income, Net

Other income, net increased $22 mllllon to $30 7 mllllon in 2001, as compared 10587 mllllon in 2000 ln 2001 other income,
net was comprised of a gain of $24.million an the sale of the Corporatian’s 25% ownershlp lnterest in The Regent Hong
Kong, a gain of $6.4 million on the sale of the Corpora'non s 67% ownership interest’ in Four Seasons’ Hotel Prague, a
recovery of loss of $4.8 million 12000 - $8.9 mrlllon) resulting-from the recovery of assets which were:provided for in prior
years, a loss of $2. 4 miltion on the redemption of ail of the Corporatron s unsecured debentures, a charge of $2.2 million
relating to the restructurrng of certain corporate departments, a foreign exchange gain of $5 million relating to'the reduction
of the Corporation’s net |nvestment in one of its Asian self-sustaining subsrdranes a foreign exchange loss of $3.6 million
relating to the excess dollar amount of the US dolfar forward, contracts over the anticipated 2002 US dollar revenues, and
other foreign exchange losses of $1.3 million (2000 $0:2 million) relatlng to the net foreign currency loss on unhedged

. net asset and. lrablllty positions, pnmarly inUS. dollars euros, pounds sterlrng and Australlan dollars and forelgn exchange
losses mcurred by the: Corporatron S forergn subsrdranes P

The Corporatron _xpects other 1ncome net to be |mmater|a| |n 2002
interest Income, Net Tt 5:' TV T

The Corporatron had net interest rncome |n 2001 of $6 7 mrllxon as compared to $4 2 m|l||on in 2000. The increase of
$2.5 million in net:interest income is' attributable 1o increased interest income, primarily from increased cash reserves
during the year and additional interest- beanng mvestments made in connectron with certam of lts new prolects partlally offset
' by lower interest rates on cash reserves

Net interestincome in 2002 is expected to increase over the amount earned in 2001 due primarily to lower lnterest expense
in 2002 resulting from the redemptlon of all of the Corporatlon ] unsecured debentures dunng 2001. . -

Income Tax Expense

The Corporation's effective tax rate in 2001 was approximately 18.6%, as cornpared with an éeffective tax rate of 25.4% in
2000. The reduction’in the effective tax rate in.2001 is a result of the gain realized in 2001 relatlng 0 the sale of the
Corporation’s 25% ownershlp mterest in The Flegent Hong l(ong not bemg subrect to tax:




Included in the mcome ‘tax- expense for 2001 was an addmonal expense of $O 9 mrllron (2000 535 mrllron) re!ated to the
scheduled reductions in the Canadian;incomie tax rates to'be |mp|emented over the, next several years. This expehse was a
result of the decrease inthei mcome tax rates applied to the ongoing-benefit of the Corporation's future i mcome tax assets
resulting in a decrease in'the future tax assets. The reduced tax rates should allow the' Corporation to achleve lower overall
income tax rates on |ts mcome in future years The Corporatron s effectrve tax rate |s expected to be approxrmately 24% in 2002,

Net Earnlngs and Earrungs per Share

Net earnings in 2001 were $86.5 mrllron ($2 48 basrc earnmgs per ‘share and $2. 27 diluted earmngs per share) as compared
with net eamings of $103.1 mllllon {$2.98 basic sarnings pef share and-$2.63 dlluted earnings per share) in 2000. The 16.1%
decrease in net’ eammgs 16 8% decrease in basic earnings per share and 13.7% decrease in'diluted earnings per
share resulted primarily from reduced earnings' in management. and ownership operations, partially. offset by the gain
on the sale of the Corporation’s ownershlp interests in The Regent Hong Kong and Four Seasons Hotel Prague and lower
income tax expense in 2001. On a normalized basis, excluding non-recurring iterns (see table below), net earnings in 2001
were $56.4 million ($1.61 basic earnings per share and $1.52 diluted earnmgs per.share), as compared to net earmngs
of $96.3 million ($2.78 basic earnmgs per share ahd $2.46 dlluted earnings per share) in 2000.

A reconciliation of net earnmgs to normahzed net earnmgs is as follows\: . o : R :
(In millions of dollars) R . . oty _ o 2001 . 2000

Net earnings SO ‘ : BT T s 865 % 103.1
~ Add (deduct) non- recurrmg |tems , ) B : Y e )
Gain on sale of hotel investrents - 1t on L e e (30.8) —
Recovery of loss" - ) o . L oo (e8) (8.9)
Loss on redemption of debt R SR 24 —
Restructuring charge . e o L UL % ‘ 22 . —
Non-recurring foreign: exchange e LoV N i 4) R —
Tax effect of non-recurring items -~ 7 o LT e 2.1

Normalized net earnings - ‘ ' Sl e s Y 564 8 ~ 963
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RESULTS OF OPERATlONS
Year ended December 31 2000 campared to year mded December 31 1999 -

Management Operatrons

Revenues = _ o S : R

Fee revenues increased $41.3 million or 28.7% to $185.3 million in 2000, as compared to $144 million in.1999. The increase
is attributable to an increase in“fees from: recently opened hotels and resorts and ‘ew. management agreements
of $9.5 million, an increase in fees from hotels and resorts under development of '$8.9-millian, -an increase in fees from
Four Seasons Residence Club prolects of$1.8 mrllron and an. mcrease in fees from other hotels and resorts of $21.71 million.
Incentive fees contnbuted 26. 9% of the total fee revenues in 2000 as compared 10 24:4% in 1999 ‘

Total revenues of all managed hotels and resorts increased to $2.8 blllron in 2000, as compared to $2.4 brllron in 1999 Growth
in revenues was driven by strong performances i in the United States, Asra/Pacrfrc and European markets and a moderate
increase in revenues in the Canada/Mexrco markets The increase in European revenues, however Was: adversely affected
by the weakenlng eurQ. currency On a eurg basis, revenues of hotels and resorts in'the European markets increased 20.1%
in 2000, as compared to'an increase of.3. 8% on a US doliar basrs The Canada/Mexrco segment was negatrvely affected by
the Vancouver crty W|de hotel strlke durlng the thlrd quarter of 2000

Onaus dollar basis, the Corporatron s Core. Hotels under management in the Unrted States AS|a/Pacrf|c and Europe
experienced an average increase in RevPAR of 9.7%, 14, 7% and 44% respectrvely, ‘and.an, average |ncrease in gross”
operating profit of 12.7%, 27, 8% and.1%.9%, respectlvely in 2000, as compared to #999. The Vancouver city-wide hotel
strike during 2000 resulted in an-average increase of only 1.3% ‘in RevPAR con a US doliar basis and ap-average decline of
1.1% in gross operating pl’Oflt on:a US dollar basis in Core ‘Hotels under management in the Canada/Mexrco segment.

Overall, the Corporation’s Core Hotels had an average increase of 9.5% in RevPAR. in: 2000 as compared to 1999 aon a
US dollar basis, resultrng from an increase in occupancy of. 2.7% and an increase in.room rates of 5.4%: Gross operating
profit of the Core Hotels increased overall on average by i4. 5% in 2000, as compared to 1999 onaUS doIIar basis, due to
increased RevPAR and enhanced operatlng effrcrencles :

General and Admrmstrat/ve Expenses

In 2000, general and admrnlstratrve expenses mcreased by $4 7 mrllron or 8. 5% as compared to 1999 Other than the costs
related to an increase in fegs. in'thereservation and sales and marketing areas, which are on'a cost recovery basis, the
increase was due prrmanly to rnvestments in technology and |ncreased staff Ievels to facrlrtate the Corporatron s unit growth
expansion over the next few years . o

M‘anagement Earnmgs ’

As a result of the changes in management revenues and expenses drscussed above the Corporatron s management earnrngs'
increased by $36. 6 mrllron or41.1% over the prior year to $125 8 mI”lOl’l in 2000 Management earnrngs represented greater
than 90% of the Corporatlon s earnrngs before. other dperating |tems rn 2000 and 1999.

Ownership Operat|ons

Ownership earnrngs in 2000 lncreased 83. 1% to $1 3 6 million, as oompared to $84 m|l||on iR 1999 The increase.in ownership
earnings refiects operating earnings improvements at The Pierre i in New York and'an |ncreased dividend from The Regent
Hong Kong of $7.4 million.in- 2000, as compared to $4.6 million in 1999, These |mprovements were partially offset by lower
operating earnings from Four Seasons Hotel Vancouver caused by the city-wide hotel strike durlng the thlrd quarter of 2000
and lower distributions from the Corporatron s other minority lnterests :

During 1999, the Corporatron resolved rts dlspute with the landlord of Four Seasons Hotel Berlln Prior to the resolution of
the dispute, the Corporation had been aceruing the start-up Iosses of. the hotel since 1998 As of the date of the settlement
(November 30; 1999), the Corporatron assumed the lOO% Ieasehold interest in Four Seasons Hote! Berlrn and began
consolrdatmg the results of the hotel.- :




Other ltems”

' Deprectar/on and Amortlzatlon )

Depreciation and amortrzatron expense in 2000 was $14 million, as compared to $1 2.5 mllllon in 1999 Thei increase of 12.3%
is attributable pnmanly to hlgher amortlzatlon charges related to the Corporatlon S lnvestment in management contracts.

Other Income, Net

_ Other income, net increased $5. l mllhon to $8 7 mllhon in 2000, as compared to $3 6 m1I||on in 1999 In ZOOO other income,
net was comprised of a recovery. of loss of $8.9 mllllon (1999 - $6 million) (resultmg from the’ collectlon of loans which were
fully provided for in prior years), partlally offset by a foreign exchange loss of $0.2 millicn (1999 - $2.4 million). The foreign
exchange loss in 2000 related prlmarlly toa forelgn currency translation loss on long- term receivables denominated in
Australian dollars; partially offset by a foreign exchange -gain from the revaluation of US dollar net monetary assets. The foreign
exchange loss |n 1989 related prlmanly toa fore|gn exchange: loss from the revaluanon of US dollar net monhetary assets.

Interest Income, Net

The Corporatlon had net |nterest income in 2000 of $4 2 mllllon as compared to $0.4 mil llon in 1999 The increase of
$3.8 million in net interest income is attributable to increased inferest income, pnmanly from increased cash reserves
(resuiting from the issue of convertlble notes in late 1999}, partially offset by hrgher interest expense dué. to higher debt
levels in 2000 arising from the issuance of those ‘same-convertible notes andfrom lower interest income from loans related
to Four Seasons Resort Scottsdale at Troon North whlch were repald in December 1999.

Income Tax Expense

The Corporation’s effective tax rate’in 2000 was approxrmately 25 4%, as compared W|th an effect|ve tax rate of 2 8% in 1999.
The higher effectlve tax’rate in 2000 was due prlmanly to the utilization in 1999 of the beneflts of unrecorded tax fosses created
by the wrlte-down in hotel mvestment values in 1993 and 1 995 andthe mplementatlon of the new Canadlan rncome tax accounting.

included in the i |ncome tax expense for 2000 was an addltlonal expense of $3 5 m|lllon related to the scheduled reductions
in the Canadian income tax rates to be lmplemented over the next four years. This expense was a result of the decrease in
the income tax ratés relating to the ongoing: benefit of the Corporation’s future i income-tax assets. The reduced tax rates
should allow'the Corporatlon to achleve Iower overall i mcome tax rates on lts incomein, future years

Net Earmngs and Earnmgs per Share

Net earnings and basic’ earnlngs per sharé in 2000 wisre $103.1 m|ll|on and $2.98.per share respectlvely, as compared with
net earnings of $86.5- mrlhon and-basic-earnings per share 0f-$2.52,in-1999: The 19. 2% increase in.net earnlngs and 18.3%
increase in‘basicearnings per ‘shareTesuited- primarity from strong- growth in- rmanagement and ownershlp operations, higher
net interest inome and higher recovery of loss, partially offset by.a significant increasg in-income tax expense in 2000.
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Operatmg Rrsks

The business of the Corporatron more thoroughly descnbed above is subJect to many nsks and uncertarnues |nc|ud|ng those
discussed betow .

Lodging Industry Condltlons

Four Seasons focuses exc!usrvely onthe quury segment of the lodgrng |ndustry whrch is sub|ect to operatrng risks inherent
in the lodging industry. These rlsks include, among other things, changes.in general-and local economic condrtlons periodic
overbuilding in the industry or a specific market, varying levels of demand for rooms:and related services (including food
and beverage and functicn space), ‘competition from.other.hotels, changes in travel patterns, the recurring need for
renovation, refurbishment and improvement of hotel and resort properties, changes, in ' wages, prices, construction and
maintenance costs that may result from inflation, government regulations and changes in interest rates, the availability of
financing for operating or capital requirements natural disasters, extreme weather conditions; fabour disputes, political
instability and, terronsm and their resultlng effects on travel. The industry also is subject to seasonal fluctuatrons resulting .
in variances in the Corporatron s quarterly fee revenues and operatrng results: ’

Four Seasons operates quury hotels and resorts in many areas of the ‘world.and its revenues are dependent upon the
revenues of individual hotels and resorts derived from all sources: The above-listed, conditions can from time to time have
a major adverse rmpact upon individual hotels or.resorts or particular regions. A penod of economic recession or downturn
in any of the world’s primary outbound travel markets, such' as the United States Europe or: Japan, could materially and
adversely affect the. Corporation’s results of’ operatlons lncludlng the fee revenue that. would be earned ‘and ownership
earnings. An economic downturn would generally affect ownershrp earnlngs toa greater degree due fo the high fixed costs
associated w1th ownersh|p :

In addition to the effects ofa softenmg economy the Corporatron S busrness was severely |mpacted durrng 2001 ‘hy the terrorist
attacks in the. United States and the continuing dlsruptron to global travel patterns. The continued war agarnst terrorism .
and concerns about the potential of further terrorist attacks.and-thei. frequency, severity and longevity are likely to continue
to negatively ‘affect the Corporation’s business and the broader iodging and travel industries. The pace of: economrc recovery,
particularly in the Unrted States is likely 10 impact the Corporatron s-business. . :

i

Competition

The luxury segment of the hotel and resort lndustry is subject tointense competmon both for guests and for the acquisition
of new management, agreements Competltlon for guests arises pnman!y from.luxury hote chains, md'wdual luxury hotels
and resorts and a limited number of luxury propertiés operated by larger hotel chains.. That competmon is based on brand
name recognition, location, room rates and quality .of service and accofmmodations. Demographtc geographic and other
changes in specrfrc market ‘conditions could materially and adversely affect the convenience or desrrabllrty of the locales in
which hotels’ and resorts that are managed by Four Seasons are: Iocated

Four Seasons competes for management opportunrtles with other hotel operators Folir Seasons belreves that its ability
to obtain management agreements is-based prrmanly on the value and quality of its management services, brand name
recognition and the economic. advantages to the hotel owner of retamlng Four Seasons’ management services and using its
brand name. Four Seasons also believes that an owner's assessment of the economic advantages ‘of retaining Four Seasons’
management services and usrng its brand name is, jnv part, a funct|on of the success of the hotels and’ resarts currently under
management by Four Seasons Competmve factors also include re!atlonsh|ps with hotel owners and lnvestors marketing
support, reservation system capamty and the ability to make investments that may. be necessary to obtaln management
agreements. Four Seasons’ farlure to compete successfully for expansion opportunities or to attract and maintain relationships
with investors who currently own hotels could matenalty and adversely affect |ts results of operauons




Dependence on Management Agreements

Management agreements explre orare acqurred termrnated or renegotrated in the ordrnary course. Farlure to obtain new .
management agreements or marntaln exrstrng management agreements could matenally .and adversely affect the
Corporation’s resuits of; operatrons Four Seasons manages hotels and resorts for various owners subject to the terms of
each property's management agreements Those agreements generally can be terminated by the non-defaulting party upon
defaultin paymentor unremedied failure to comply with the terms of the agreements Mast of the management agreements
are subject to performance tests that, if not met, could allow the agreements t0-be terminated by the owner prior to the
.expiration of its term. The failure to marntarn ‘the ‘standards specn‘led in 'the agreement or.to meet the other terms and
conditions of an agreement could resultin the loss or cancellationof a management agreement. Typrcally but notin all cases,
Four Seasons has certain rrghts tocurea default to avoid termination. The majority of the management agreements include
typical force majeure events, which, if they were to occur, would prevent the termination of the management agreements.
Some management agreements also can be termrnated if the property is sold by the owner to a new owner who does not
wish to retain the existing agresment. In certarn cases these contracts prowde fora termrnatron pay-out upon cancellatron
of the agreement : i - : :

In the event of bankruptcy of a property and foreclosure a management agreement may be termrnated in most jurlsdrctrons
uniess the lender has executed a non-drsturbance agreement that is enforceabte under iocal bankruptcy laws. Four Seasons
generally has non-drsturbance agreements with the Ienders 1o owners of hotels and resorts that it manages Where no non-
disturbance agreement is-in place the risk- of loss of a management agreement |ncreases where debt that cannot be
serviced adequately is.incurred by the owner at the- property level. In:some jUFlSdICIIOﬂS partlcuiarly in the United States,
management agreements have been construed by- courts to create an agency relatronshrp that is-terminable by the owner,
notwithstanding any provrsron ‘of the agreement that purports to’'make the agreement not termrnable In such circumstances,
the management company. would generally have an unsecured claim for breach of contract agarnst the. owner of the hotel
or its trustee in bankruptcy : : : :

Management agreements for hotels and resorts managed by the Corporatron currently have remalnlng terms (mc|ud|ng
extension periods at the Corporatron s electron) averagrng approxrmately 56 years: for Four Seasons hotels and resorts and'
approximately 23 years for Regenit hotels and resorts, Renswal.of management agreements at the ‘end of their term is the
subject of negotratron between Four Seasons and the relevant owners.

During 2001, the management contract for The Regent Hong Kong reached its term and was not renewed Management
fees and hotel ownership. dlstnbutrons from. The. Regent Hong Kong, in aggregate accounted for approxrmatety $2.3 million
and $12.5 million of the Corporation’s- consolrdated revenues.in 2001 and 2000 respectrve!y The €orporation sold its
25% ownership intersst in The Regent Hong Kong in 2001 and recerved gross proceeds of: $36 4 -million (see note 4(b) to
the consolidated frnancral statements) :

Dependence on Property Owners

As a result of the strategrc decrsron of Four Seasons to focus on management of hotel and resort propertres {as oppesed
to ownership), Four Seasons’ growth opportunrtres are dependent in part onits abrlrty to establish and marntam satisfactory
relationships with exrstlng and new property owners. Those growth opportunities:are also dependent on -access to capital
by these investors. In 2001 and 2000 no owner had interests in any combination of hotels, resorts arid Residence Club
properties managed by Four Seasons that represent in excess of 10% of total consohdated revenues of the Corporation.
A failure by Four Seasons to malntaln satlsfactory reIatlonshrps with any owner of a- srgnlfrcant number of properties
could have a matersat adverse\effect on the Corporatron 5 resu}ts of operations. ~ :
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Risk Assoclated with Expansmn Grow1h and New Constructlon

An element of Four Seasons business strategy is to increase the. number of hotels,” resorts and Re3|dence Clubs under
management. That expansionis dependent upon a number of factors, |ncludlng the ldentlﬁcatlon of: approprrate management
opportunities, competing.successfully for the management agreements relating to those opportunities, ‘ availabillty of financing
for new developments and timely completron of construction of new hotels, resorts and Resndence Clubs {or the refurbishment
of existing properties) that are, or are to be, managed by Four Seasons - ; -

From time to time, the hotel rndustry has experrenced periods’ during whlch flnanCIaI mstrtutrons have been reluctant to
provide financing for the construction of real estate properties, |nclud|ng hotels resorts and Resrdence Clubs The inability
to obtain financing for a prolect could cause cancellation. of, or shért- term mterruptron in, the progress or completron of
properties under construction or deveiopment. Additionally, any construction project entails significant construction risks that
couid delay or result in a substantial ihcrease in the cost of. construction. The opening of newly: constructed properties, in
" particular, is contingent upon {among other things) receipt of all required lrcences permits and authorrzatlons including local
land use permits, building and zoning permits; health and safety. permits and liquor: licences. Changes or concessions
required by regutatory authorities could also involve significant additional costs and delays or prevent completion of
construction or openlng of a pro;ect As a result of the global nature of Four Seasons! busrness these regulatory matters
arise in a number of jurisdictions, many of Wthh have dlst|nct|ve regulatory regrmes :

Contingent Commltments '1

In connection v_vnth certaln of lts propertles currently under management the Corporatlon proyldeswllmmed and contingent
commitments in lieu of addltlonal eqwty, loan.or guarantee’ commltments As at,December 31,2001, »the Corporation has .
eight contingent: commltments totalling $39 million, of-which five commitments are for potentral one- “time: fundmgs totalling
approximately $20 million and three commitments represent annual maximum contingent commitments of approxmately
$19 million, which are expected to remain'in place for at least the next five years. To the'extent it is called upon to honour
any cne of these contingent commltments generally the Corporation has either the right to be repard from hotel operations .
and/for has various forms of ‘security or_recourse to the owner of the property The Corporatron did not-fund any amount
pursuant to these contingent commitments in 1999, 2000 or 2001 The Corporatlon currently’ does not anticipate being
required to fund-any amount pursuant to these centingent commitments during 2002..The Corporatlon believes, based on
its typrcal investing.activity, that its annual contingent commltments will not change materlally in 2002 unless the Corporation
accepts new contlngent commitments in lieu of additional equnty |nvestments or Ioans to obtaln new Iong term management
agreements or improve existing management agreements

Investments'in and Advances to Managed and Owned Propertres

The Corporation has made investments in, and/or loans in respect to, several of the hotels and resorts that it manages
to enable it to acquire the management agreements for. those. properties or to _en_hance the,terms of those agreements.
Currently, Four Seasons holds an ownership or leasehold interest in, or has made loans.in respect t0,:23 of-the 54 hotels and
‘resorts that it manages and has ' made; or expects to.make,. investments'in, or. loans.in respect to, 15:0f the 22 hotels and
resorts under construction or development In addition; the Corporatron has-an investment | in three Four Séasons Residence
Club propertres The book value of total investments and advances as at December 31, 2001 was approxrmately $523 millien.

In addltlon to the rrsks associated with operatlons of a hotel dlscussed above (see Lodging Industry Conditions and
Competition), Four Seasons is subject to risks generally related to ownlng and leasing real estate in connection with these
properties. These risks include, among others, adverse changes in-general or local economic ceonditions, focal real
estate market conditions, property and income taxes, interest rates,-the availability,.cost and terms of financing, liability
for long-term lease oblrgatlons the potentlal for uninsured casualty and other losses, the impact’ of ‘present or future
legislation or regulatron (|nc|udlng those relatmg to the environment), adverse changes in zoning Iaws and other regulations,
civil unrest, terronsm and polltlcal instability.” ln addition, these rnvestments in real estate are relatrvely llllqwd andthe ability
of the Corporatlon to dlspose of its ownershlp interests, partlcularly its: leasehold interests. in. response to changes in
~economic and other qondltlons may be limited. Any of these factors could result in material operating losses by a particular




hotel or resort and posslbly the loss of the Corporatlon s equrty rnvestment in the property or the: |nablI|ty to collect loans
outstanding. Holdrng an intérest in a.hote! ‘also introduces risks assocrated with fundlng of caprtal expendrtures and
the Corporation’s proportionatg share of any: operatmg losses Where cash and workmg capltal reserves provided by hotel
operations are insufficient, debt service, major repairs, renovatrons alteratlons or other capltal expendrtures generally must
be funded by the owners of the hotels and resorts, including in some oases Four Seasons

Debt Rating Rrsks E

The Corporatlon s senror unsecured debt ls currently rated rnvestment grade by three debt ratlng agencres (Standard and
Poor's: BBB- with negatrve outlook Moody s: Baa3 wrth negatrve outlook Domrnron Bond Ratlng Sarvices: BBB with'stable
trend). One of the Corporatron s, frnancral oblectrves is to maihtain-an investment grade credlt rating. A non- -investment
grade rating from any or all of the ratrng agencies has nc lmpact on avallabtlrty under the bank credit facility or any ramification

- under the convertible notes. If the ratings from all three agencies become non-investment grade, pricing of any loan drawn
under the bank credit facility could i increase by a maximum of 70 basrs pornts No amounts were drawn under the bank credit
facility as at December 31, 2001 . s ‘ i

Government Regulatlon

Four Seasons’is subject to laws ordrnances and regulatlons relatlng to, among other thrngs envrronmental matters, the
preparatlon and sale of food and beverages, accessibility for disabled persens.and general building and zoning requirements
in the varrous 1unsd|ct|ons in which Four Seasons manages hotels and resorts.- Owners and managers.of hotels also may
be subject to laws: governing the:relationship with hotel: employees mcludlng mlnlmum wage requirements, overtime,
working conditions and work pérmit requrrements Complrance with these laws can affect the revenues and profits of hotels
managed by Four Seasons or could materlally and otherwrse adversely affect Four Seasons operatlons

Four Seasons as the current or prevrous owner or operator of certain hotels could pé llable for clean -up of contamlnatlon
and other corrective action under various laws, ordinances. and regulations relating to envrronmental matters. These laws
often impose liability W|thout regard to whether the owner or operator knew of or- was responsrble for,.the condition
requiring envrronmental response: The presence.of contamrnatron from hazardous or toxrc 'substances;-or the failure to
properly remedlate a.contaminated property, may affect-an owner's “ability to sell or. rent the property to use the property
for its intended. purpose or to borrow: using the property as collateral, Persons who'z arrange for the- dlsposal or treatment
of hazardous or toxic substances also may be liable for the cost.of removal or, remedlatlon of substances at the disposal or
_ treatment facility regardiess of whether the facility is or was owned or opéerated by them. In connection wrth the operation
and ownershlp of various hotels, -‘Four Seasons could ‘be held llable for the cost of remedral action: with respect to
environmental matters. Four Seasons is not aware of any potentlal material envrronmental Irabllrtles for which Four Seasons
will be responsrble with respect 1o any of the hotels in which it currently has, or previously had managed

Pursuant to the management agreements to Wthh Four Seasons is a party the owner is responsrble for the costs and
expenses of the employees at each hotel and:-for all costs, expensés and liabilities incurred in-connection with the operation
of the hotel, |ncludmg compliance wrth government regulations. However, Four Seasons may be contingently liable for certain
liabilities in respect to which it dees not maintain insurance; including certain’ workefs" compenisation claims, environmental
liabilities and, in respect to hotels in the Unlted States, clalms arising under the Amerlcans with. Drsabrlmes Act.

Four Seasons. generally obtains indemnities from the owners of the hotels that.it manages in respect to these liabilities.
The value of those lndemnmes is dependent upon the frnancral condrtron of the owners who have provrded them.

Polmcal RISk

Four Seasons ¢currently manages and/or has an eqUIty mterest in hotels and resorts in 25 countrles and currently has development
plans to open hotels and resortsin nine additional.countries arcund the world I ceftain of these countries, from time to time, the
related assets.and revenues may be exposed to political risk and other risk associated:with foreign investmient. In some jurisdictions,
at certain times, there may be a risk that the Corporation may have difficulty enforcing its contractual rights relating to its assets
including it_s non-disturbance agreements and any security relating to its loan receivables if due pracess of law is not respected.
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Insurance

All hotels and resorts managed by Four Seasons are rnsured agamst property damage busrness rnterruptlon and llabrllty at
the expense of the owner of the-hotel. Under these policies Four Seasons is also lnsured against loss of feeincome in the .
event of a temporary busrness interruption’ at ‘any of the hotels and'resorts. that-it-manages. In addmon ‘Four Seasons
obtains indemnities from- the owners of the hotels that it manages in respect to damages caused by acts, omissions and
liabilities of the employees, of the hotel or-of Four Seasons other than damages resultlng from certarn actions of
Four Seasons ard certain senror management personnel If Four,Seasons were held. liable for amounts exceeding the
limits of its |nsurance coverage or for claims outside the scope of that coverage its busrness results of-operations and
financial conditions could be. materlally and adversely affected

Events of September 11th severely affected an already tlghtenrng insurance market Premiums have mcreased and
underwriters are imposing increasingly restnctlve terms and conditions. All ines. of coverage have been affected; however,
commercial propertles continue to be the most difficult-to lnsure Exposures for- terronsm cyber penls and toxic mold are
now common exclusrons

Currency Exposure

Four Seasons . has entered into management agreements W|th respect to-hotels throughout the world but reports its results
in Canadian dollars; however, its relevant currency riskis in US dollars, as more than half of itsrevenues and assets currently
are US dollar denominated. In 2001, approximately 66% of the. Corporation's consolldated revenues were US doliar
denominated, as compared to 71 % in.2000. Four Seasons manages its' currency exposure through the'use of foreign
exchange forward contracts. As at December 312001, Four Seasons had sold forward US$84.3 million under 14 forward

contracts maturing-over a 13-month-period. The Corporation earned 21% of its consohdated revenues in:2001 in 14 other
foreign currencies; as compared t0 18% in'13 other foreign currencies.in.2000. The increase in the percentage of revenues
earned in other foreign currencies in 2001, as compared t0:2000, resulted pnmarlly from'the negatrve impact'cf September 11th
on the ownership revenues and management fees.earned from hotels and resorts in the Unlted States: Except for the
German mark-and the pound sterllng none of the revenues in'these other forergn currencigs lnlelduaIIy exceeded 3% of
Four Seasons' consclidated revenues in 2001 or 2000. It should ‘be noted, however that the. German mark and four other
forelgn currencies in which the Corporation earned revenues were pegged 10, the euro in 2001 and 2000, which on January 1,
2002, became the official currency of these countries: These five:currencies together. accounted for 11% of Four Seasons'
'consolldated revenues in' 2007 (2000 - 9%). Four Seasons manages the pound sterling currency exposure (long-term
receivables and revenues) through the use of foreign'exchange forward contracts. As at December 31,2001, Four Seasons
has sold forward £15.4 million under one forward contract maturing in March 2002. The Corporation anticipates that it will,
from time to time, enter into new forward contracts relatlng to thls forelgn exchange posmon wrth the objectlve of mlnrmlzrng
foreign currency volatility. : : :

“In 2001, the C'cirp'o'ration hedged a sighificant portion of'lts loAg-term receivables denominated in Australian dollars with
Australian dollar forergn exchange forward contracts As at December 31,2001, there were no outstandlng Australian
dollar foreign exchange forward contracts The Corporatron may enter into new- forward contracts relatlng to this foreign
exchange position.

Certain currenc_ies are subject to exchange controls: which, in practice, have: not resulted in a material restriction of the
payment of managementfees toFour Seasons. |n addition, certain ot these currenciesare not freely traded and are relatively
. illiquid. To date, Four Séasons has not incurred any material Iosses resultlng from-an lnablllty to'convert these foreign
currencies at favourable exchange rates. Management attempts to mlnlmlze its forelgn currency nsk by monltonng its cash
position, keeplng fee recelvables current, insuring the canvertibility risk, and monltorlng the polltlcal and econcmic climate
in each country in whlch it manages a property In certaln hotels, the forergn currency nsks are further mltrgated by pricing
room rates in'US dollars : : X




Seasonality

Four Seasons hotels and resorts are affected by normally recurring seasonal patterns and for rnost of the properties,
demand is lower in. December’ through March than dunng the remalnder of the year. The Corporation’s. ownershlp operations
are particularly affected by seasonal fluctuations, with lower revenue, operatlng profit and’ cash flow in the first quarter;
ownership positions typlcally |ncur an operatrng loss in the: flrst quarter of each year Typrcally the fourth quarter is the
strongest quarter-for the majonty of the hotels ’

Management operatrons are also seasonal in nature as fee revenues are affected by the seasonalrty of:-hotel revenues and
operating results. Urban hotels generally experience lower revenues and operatlng results in the first quarter thereby
negatively |mpactrng management revenues. However, this negative |mpact on management revenues generally is offset,
to some degree,’ by increased travel to resorts in those months and may. be offset to a greater extent as the portfolic of
resort properties managed bv Four Seasons increases. :

In 2001, the terrorlst attacks adversely affected the most rrnportant part of the year. for corporate and lelsure travel, the
period beginning after Labour Day.in North ‘America through to the year-end. As a result the effect of the gvents had a very
significant rmpact on:the. Corporatlon S. earnrngs and operatlng cash ﬂow in 2001

Intellectual Property

In the highly- competttlve service |ndustry in whrch Four Seasons operates Four Seasons has a srgnrfrcant number of trade
names, trademarks, service marks and logos, and srgnrfrcant time and effortare spent each.yearon survelllance registration
and protection of trade names, traderarks, service marks and logos: The loss or lnfrlngement of-any: of Four Seasons' trade
names, trademarks service marks and logos could have a materlal adverse effect on Four Seasons

Risks Assomated wuth Re5|dence Club Busmess

Four Seasons currently operates two Flesrdence Clubs The Corporatron is expandrng rts presence |n the luxury segment of
the interval and fragtional ownershrp industry. with at least three other projects expected to.commence sales in 2002 and
a number of others under development The sarne risk factors affecting the luxury segrnent of the hotel industry, as
more fully outlined above andin this “ Operating Risks" section, also affect the interval and fractronal ownershlp industry.
"In particular, Lodglng lndustry Conditions;” ”Competltron " "Dependence on Managernent Agreements Rrsk Associated-
with Expansion, Growth and New: Construction, “Investments in and Advances to Managed and Owned Properties,”
“Government Regulation, " “Poitical Rlsk " “Insurance - "Currency Exposure Seasonality” and * lnteIIectual Property”
also apply to the interval and fractional ownership |ndustry Accordrngly Four Seasons' ability.to successfully develop and
‘sell interests’in Residence Clubs that are built, and the various fees earned by Four Seasons from each Flesrdence Club
prolect could be adversely and materrally harmed by one or any combrnatlon of the above factors '

"o

"o

Dependence on Key Employees

The success of Four Seasons depends in part onits senior executrves who have an average of 17 years of experience with
* the Corporation: In particular, senior management of Four Seasons is responsrble far the development of and/or maintenance
of ongoing relatronshlps with'new and existing lnvestors in the hotels and’ resorts that are managed by Four Seasons. The
unanticipated departure of individuals responsible for those relationships could have a material and adverse effect for some
period of time on; among other thlngs relatronshrps affectlng propertres that are, orthat may be managed by Four Seasons.
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Critical Accountrng Polrcles

The significant accountrng pollcres used by the Corporatron in preparlng its consolrdated flnancral statements are descnbed in note 1
to the consolidated financial statements and should be read to ensure a proper understandrng and evaluatron of the estimates
and judgements made by management in preparing those financial statements The Corporaticn’s consohdated fmancral statements
are prepared in accordance with Canadran generally accepted accountrng pnncrples The Corporation als® prepares areconciliation
to United States generally accepted accountlng prrncrples which.is mc!uded as note'16" to the consolldated frnancral statements.

Inherent in the apphcation of some of those pollcres is the’ 1udgement by management as: to whrch of the various methods
allowed under generally accepted accounting pnncrples Is the most appropnate to. apply-in the case of- the Corporation.
As well, management must make appropnate estimates at the time the frnancral statements are prepared

Although all of the policies rdentrﬂed in.note 1 to the consolrdated flnancral statements are |mportant in understandrng the
consolidated fmancral statements, the policies discussed below are considered by management to be ceritral to understanding
the financial statements because of the htgher Ievel of measurement uncertalntles mvolved in therr apphcatron

Investments in other. hotel partnersh/ps and corporat/ons (note 1(b).to the oonsolrdated financial statements) are cost
accounted when among other thxngs the Corporatron owns Iess than. a 20% mterest in.the prorect or.ithas.no srgnrfrcant
influence, even where the: percentage ownershrp would otherwrse requrre the- |nvestment to be- equuty accounted. The -
Corporatlon believes that it lacks srgnrflcant influence to control these assets in all cases where it has'less than: a20% interest,
and in one |nstance Four Seasons Hotel Shanghas wheré the Corporatlon has a 21. 2% rnterest The tables on pages
37 and 38 |ndrcate the Corporatron s pro rata share of these’ ownershrp mterests - :

Deferred charges aré costs rncurred dunng the negotratron structunng and executron of new contracts relatrng to projects
that, in management'’s rudgement have a hrgh probability of opening, which. are- deferred and capitalized.on the balance
sheet, as allowed under Canadian generally: accepted accounttng pnncrples and are expensed/arnortrzed when the property
is opened (note’ 1(h) to the consolrdated frnancral statements) !

Use of estrmates are requrred by management relating to the: recoverabrlrty of the Corporatrons investments in
(i} long-term recervables (ii).hotel partnerships and corporations; . {ii) management contracts, and {iv) trademarks and
trade names (note 1(j) to the consolldated financial statements). Management must estimate and make assumptions about
future hote! profrtabrhty, considering the risks and uncertarntres of many ‘external factors. Actual future operating results -
of the investments could vary matenally and-accordingly the estrmated recoverable amounts could change by material
amounts, |mpactrng the carrying value of these mvestments

Revenue recognrt/on incentive fees are accrued as revenue in |nterlm frnancral statements based upon the formula in each
property's management contract, ‘and each hotel’s performance year-to-date. This_policy requrres estrmates of hotel
profitability for the balance of each year, whlch in turn’ requrre assumptlons to be made about future condrtlons inthe general
and local hosprtahty lndustry, competmon from’ other hotels changes in travel patterns and other factors affecting the
hotel’s gross operatrng revenues and net operatrng profrts

Impact of Recently Issued Canadian Accounting Standards'

Business Comblnatlons, Goodwill and Other Intanglble Assets

In August 2001, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Actountants ("CICA") issued new accountmg standards relating to
the accountlng for busrness comblnatrons and the accountlng for goodwill and other |ntang|b1e assets. The'new accounting
standards require the purchase method of accounting to be used for all business combinations tnrtrated on.or after July 1,
2007. The pooling-of-interest method is no longer acceptable: The new accounting standards alsc establish new criteria
for identifying and measuring rntangrble assets acqurred in business comblnatrons that are recorded and reported apart
from goodwrll S s :




Effective January 1 2002, goodwrll wrll rno longer be requlred to be amortrzed but mstead WI|| be subject to an annual test
of lmpatrment An mtangtble asset will be required-to be amortized over its useful lrfe unless the life’is determined to be
indefinite. When an intangible asset i§-determinéd to have an indefinité usefullife, such.as the Corporatton sinvestmentin
trademarks and trade names,: no amortlzatton of the asset is requrred until.its life is determlned to be no longer indefinite.
These intangible assets however will be sub ectto an annual test of. lmpalrment If the carrylng value of an mtangtble asset
or goadwill exceeds’ its fair’ value .an |mpalrment loss.is requlred to be recognlzed in‘an amount equal to the excess. The
Corporation did not have an lmpalrment loss as at December 31 2001 e

In addition, the Corporatton in 2001 amortlzed its mvestment in management contracts on a stralght l|ne basrs over the

_terms of the contracts. If thé life of the coritract exceeded 40 years, a 4(%year period was used. Under the new accounting
standard, the Corporation:will amortlze its:investment in management contracts over the actual term of the contract in
proportion to the-benefits. recelved - :

Although the |mpact of the new standard on the accountlng for goodWlll and other mtanglble assets has not yet been
precisely determlned it is expected that the new accounting standard will result-in lower amortization expense in 2002
of approximately $1 mijltion to $2 mlllton The new standard on the accounttng for bustness comblnatlons is. not expected
to impact the Corporatton in 2002. k . :

Foreign Currency Translatton and Hedglng Relatlonshtps L e ', : f~ e ‘

Effective January. l 2002 the CICA amended the accounttng standard for. forelgn currency translatlon by ellmlnatlng the
requirement to defer and amortlze unrealtzed translatrcn -gains® and losses on Iong term forelgn currenc fdenomtnated
monetary items with a determlnable life; such as. the Corporatlon ] long-term recetvables and:long- term obllgattons in US
dollars. Due 10.the. hedgmg relationships establlshed by. the Corporatton relatmg 10’its long-term. recelvables long-term
obligations, |nvestments in self- sustatnlng foreign operations and foreign exchange forward contracts itis not expected that
the amendment to the standard on accountlng for forelgn currency translatron will'have a srgnmcant rmpact on the Corporatlon

In addition, in’ December 2001 the* CICA issuéd.an accountrng gutdel ne relating'to hedglng reIatlonshtps The guideline
establishes requrrements for the identification, documentation, desrgnatlon and effecttveness of hedgrng relationships,
which will be effective for fiscal. years beglnntng onorafter. July 1,2002. The Corporatlon has not yet determrned the impact
of the lmplementatlon of th|s gutdeltne on its 2003 consoltdated fmancral statements

Stock-Based Compensatlon and Other Stock Based Payments

in December of 2001, the CICA issued a new standard relatlng to the accounttng for stock based compensatlon and cther
stock-based payments. The:new.accounting standard requires the use of a fair value based methed'to: account for stock-
based payments to non- employees and employee awards that aré direct awards of stock cash'or other assets or are stock
appreciation nghts that call for settlement by the issuance of equrty mstruments granted on.or after January 1, 2002.

The new accounting standard permtts the Corporatlon touseits exlsttng pollcy that no. compensatlon expense is recorded
on the grant. of stock optlons to employees ConS|derat|on pard by employees on the exercise of stock options or the
purchase of shares is recorded as. capital stock. The' new accountlng standard does however require additional disclosures
for options granted to employees including dlsclosure of ‘pro forma earnings and pro forma earnrngs per share as if the fair
value based accountlng method had been used to account for employee stock optlons

The new accountmg standard is effectlve on January 1, 2002 Itis not expected that the adoptlon of this standard will have
a materlal tmpact on the ftnancral condition or results of. operatrons of the Corporatlon

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.
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Diluted Earmngs Per Share

Effective January 1. 2001 the ClCA changed the accountlng standard relatrng o the calculatlon of dlluted earnings per share.
Under the prior method dlluted earnlngs per share: were calculated on the basis that the-proceeds to:be received from
the dilutive rnstruments such as stock optlons weére’ assumed to have been mvested and’ ‘to have earned arate of return.
The new provisions assure that these: proceeds are. used to purchase common shares at the average prlce for the period.
The new standard did not change the calculatron of the dilution relating to the assumed conversron of the Corporation’s-
convertible notes : :

The Corporatron has adopted this new accounting standard retroactlvely resultrng in the restatement of dlluted earnings
per share for. 2000. The diluted earnings per share for 2001 and 2000 are more dilutive by approxrmately $0.02 and
$0.14, respectlvely, than would.have been the case under the prewous standard

Audltor s Independence

During 2001 the Corporauon paid KPMG $638 OOO for’ audlt related servrces (2000 $513 OOO) and $499 100 {2000 - $505,000)
for non-audit related servnces :

In an effort to ensure the lndependence of the external audltor the Aud|t Commrttee has llmrted the external audltor s ability
to provide certain non-audit services. More partlcularly the Audit Commntee has limited the ability of the external auditor
to provide internal audit servrces or consultlng on computer systems:used for frnancral accountrng and reportlng The Audit
Committee wrll revrew any proposal for other non-audit services to be, provrded by the external alditor that mlght reasonably

- be expected to compromlse the mdependence of the audltor in drschargmg its audlt-related responsrbrlrtres The Audit’
Committee will also review the hiring of partners or managers of the external audltors by the Corporatlon who have had a
direct |nvolvement in ‘arecent audlt :

Corporate lnformatlon

Market for Securltres

The Limited Votrng Shares are listed on the Toronto and New York stock exchanges

Dividend Pollcy

The Board of Directors of FSHl has establrshed a polrcy of paying a semi- annual d|V|dend to holders of |ts shares Since 1980
and until October.3, 1996 FSHI paid semi-annual cash dividends of $0.0565 per Limited Voting Share and Variable Multiple
Voting Share. Since’ October 3, 1996, the dividend paid in respect to the Variable Muitiple Voting Shares has been reduced
to 50%, on a per share basrs of the dividend paid on the lelted Voting. Shares. The payment of dividends in the future
is subject to the Corporation’ s earnings and financial condition and-such other factors @s FSHI's Board of Directors may
consider relevant. There are no restrictions currently that prevent FSHI from:- contlnumg to pay a-semi- -annuai dividend
of $0.055 per lerted Votmg Share . : :

T




Directors and Offlcers .

The followmg table sets forth certam |nformatlon regardmg each of. FSHI s executave ofﬂcers and dlrectors

Name and Residence . Posmon wtth FSHI

Prmcnpal Occupatlon

¥ Chaifman, Chief Executive’
-QOfficer and Director

{sadore Sharp'

Toronto, Ontario

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,’
Four Seasons Hotéls Limited

Edmond M. Creed' “ Director: v, [wi -kl ‘ \V'Retlred Executlve -

Toronta, Onsario o e S
Frederick Eisen " ‘Director , Presndent and Chief’ Execu’nve Ofﬂcer
Toronta, Ontario g : The Eisen Corporation?

H. Roger Garland:’ ~Director _Corporate Director

Toronto, Onzario el - Cer

Nan-b de Gaspé Beaublen‘*‘ Director "~ " Cb-Chair, Blsingss Families Foundation®
Montreal, Quebec ’ : and:Co-Chair; Philbeau Company®
Charles S. Henry ™" . Director President, Hotel Capital Advisers, Inc.”.
New York, New York - . . B . ; B
Murray B. Koffler“ Director o

Toronto, Ontario

. Parmer, 'The Kofﬂer, Groub‘f

J. Robert S. Pnchard“ " Director L - President, Torstar Medra “Group and
Toronte, Ontario DR : : Chief Operating Officer of Torstar Corporatlon
Lionel H, Schipper _ Director : Pres’ldent,ASchlpper Enterprlses Ing.”
Toronto, Onsario - ’ : .
Anthony Sharp ", Director ¢ i Presndent AD Sharp Deve|opment Inc
Toronto, Qutario e L e A

Benjamin Swrrsky“ " Director “:n . Chairman and.Chief Executive Offrcer
Toronto, Ontario - Sl Beswir Properties Inc.”

Shuichiro Tamaki - ' Director- . Executive Vice President, Japan -Mexico
Tokyo, Japan SIS Hotel Investment Co., Ltd.”

Simen M. Turner™

.Director ™
Rye, New York S

Principal, Hotel Capltal ‘Advisers, Inc.!

Sarah Cohen: =

Toronto, Ontario - and-Assistant Secretary

Vice President, Corporate Counsel -

. Vice Pre‘sviden;, Corporate Counsel and
Assistant Secretary, Four Seascns Hotels Limited

“President, - -

Wolf H. Hengst . - '
“nv - Worldwide Hotel Operatlons

Toronto, Ontario * -+

. _Presndent Worldwide Hotel Operatrons
" Four Seasons:Hotels Limited

Douglas L. Ludwig _ Executive Vice President,

Toronto, Ontario

Chigf Financial Qfficer and Treasurer *

- [ Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer; Four Seasons Hotels Limited

Craig O. Reith Vice President Finance and

Vice President Fin'vance'and Assistant Treasurer,

Taronto, Ontario

Assistant Treasurer

Four-Seasons Hotels Limited

Kathleen Taylor

Toronto, Ontario

President, Worldwids
Business Operations

President, Worldwide Business Operations,
Four-Seasons Hotels. Limited.

Randolph Weisz." | "

Toronte, Onzario”

Senior Vice President,

- "General Counsel and Secretary

Senior Vice President, General Counsel and

Member of the, Compensatlon and Organlzatron Commrttse
Financial and development consulimg company
‘Elected by the holdsis of the lened Voting Shares
Member of the Corporate Governance Committee. '
Non-profit foundation, . -~ .. BN

Investment holdmg compar\y

Nominee of Kingdom, which has the right pursuant to an agresment wrth
Triples Haoldings Limited and Isadore Sharp to slect twa directors to the
FSHI Board of Directors. .

~N o s W -

c .o

Secretary, Four Seasons Hotels Limited

Member of the Audit Committge. Charles S, Henry -
was replaced on the Audit Commmee by Srmon M. Turner
on Fehruary 14,2002.

9 Hotel |nves;mem advisory firm. -

.. 10" Investment/holding ccmpany.

11 Media and publishing company.

12 Real estate/resort deve}opment company.

13 Heal estate holdmg company

Four Seasans Hotels Inc.




Annual Information Form (continued)

Edmond M. Creed I\/lurray B. Koffler and Isadore Sharp | have served as directors of FSHI| and its predecessor corporation
since January 8, 1978 Frederick.Eisen, H. Roger Garland and Benjamin Swirsky; were elected ta the Board of Directors of
FSHI's predecessor corporatlon on October 1,1985. Lionel H Schipper was appornted to the- Board of Directors on February 18,
1988. Shuichiro Tamakl was appornted to the Board of Dlrectors on April 18, 1991, Charles S Henry was appomted to the
Board of Directors ori November 1 1, 1994. J; Robert S. Prichard was appomted to the: Board of Dlrectors on March 6, 1996.
Nan-b de Gaspe Beaubien was elected to the Board of Directors on May 23; 1997. Anthony Sharp was appotnted to the
Board of Directors on August 25, 1999 Simen M Turner was reappornted to the Board of Dlrectors on February 14, 2002.

Ali of the Directors W|II hold offlce until the next annual meetlng of shareholders or. untll their successors are elected or
appointed. All ‘of the officers and dlrectors of FSHI have held their principal occupatlons for more than flve years with the
exception of the following. H: Roger Garland was Vice Chairmari of FSHL prior to December 29, 2000 J Robert S. Prichard
was Professor of Law and President Emerrtus University of Taronto prior to July 1, 2001-and Pre5|dent Umversrty of Toronto
prior to June 30,-2000. Anthony Sharp was Executlve Vice President; Vacation Ownership of FSHl_ prior to September 7,
1999, and was Vice Pre5|dent Vacation’ Ownershlp of FSHL prior to January 1, 1998, Shtichiro Tamaki was Advisor, Jowa
Corporation prior to June 26, 2000. Douglas Ludwig was Senior Vice President; Chlef Financial Officer and Treasurer prior
to January 1, 1997 ‘Wolf H. Hengst was Executive Vice President, Operatlons of FSHL prior'to November 1, 1999, and was
President of Regent Internatlonal Hotels Limited pridr to January 1, 1998. Kathleen Taylor was President; Worldwide Business

. Operations and Secretary prior to February 15, 2001, was. Executlve Vice Pre5|dent and Chief Corporate Officer prior to
Novemnber 1; 1899, was Executlve Vlce President, Cerporate Plannlng and Development and General Counsel prior to April
25, 1998, and was Senior Vlce President, Corporate Plannlng and Development and General Counsel prior.to January 1,1997.

. Kathleen Taylor 'was formerly a dlrector of:-The T. Eaton Company Limited (“Eaton’ s")'which, in-1998; ‘completed a court
sanctioned reorganization pursuant to a plan of compromise and arrangement under the corporate. and insoivency laws
of Ontario and Canada respectlvely As aresult of this situation, trading-of the common shares of Eaton’ s was suspended.
by The Toronto. Stock Exchange on August 23,1988 and the common sharés were Vultlma_tely delisted in connection
with the implementation of the reorganization. Randolph Weisz was ‘Seniar Vice: President.and’ General-:Counsel of FSHL
prior to February 16, 2001, was Vice President, Legal Affairs of the Corporation prior to April 25, 1998, and was a Partner

. at Goodrnans LLP prior to February 1, 1998 Sarah Cohen was Corporate Counsel of FSHL prlor to February 15 2001, and
was a lawyer at Torys prior to Aprll 6, 1998. . . . = :

The directors and executive officers of FSHI, as a group own beneflcrally drrectly or lndlrectly or exercise control or direction
over, the foliowing nuriber of lelted Voting Shares and Varxable Multlple Voting Shares ’

Description of Class =~ . -~ . .0 % B ] o ) (Ng. of Shares ©. - :Percentage of Class

Limited Voting Shares " ST R L 524735 o 1%
Variable Multiple Voting Shares . . N Co - 3,986,872 B 100%




Additional Information

FSHI shall provrde 10 any person, upon request “to the offlce of. the Secretary of Four Seasons Hotels Inc. at
1165 Leslie Street Toronto Ontar|o Canada M3C 2K8 (telephone (416) 449—1750)', y '

{a} whenthe secuntres of FSHI are in the course of a drstnbut|on pursuant toa short form prospectus ora prellmlnary short
form prospectus has been frled in respect to a distribution of its secuntles :

(i} .- _one copy of this Annual Information Form, together with one-copy of any’ document or the pertrnent pages

‘ : t__of any. document \ncorporated by reference in thts Annual Informatlon Form,... . ,,

(ii} . -one copy. of the comparatrve ftnancral statements of Four Seasons for rts most recently comp!eted financial
o 'Myear together W|th the accompanylng report of the audttors and one copy of any.| tntenm financial
© statements: of Four Seasons subsequent to the fmancral statements for |ts most recently completed
) frnancral year

(iti) oo © one copy of the Management Information Clrcular of FSHI prepared for the most recent Annual Meetrng
- of Shareholders and. : R .

vy~ : . one copy of any other documents that are mcorporated by reference in the prellmrnary short form
-'prospectus or the short form prospectus and are not requrred to be provrded under. (i) to (iii) above; or

(b) atany other trme one copy of any of the documents referred toin (a)(l) (u) and (ifi) above -provided that in either case

- FSHi may require the payment of a reasonable charge rf the: request is’ made by & person who is not a security holder
Oof FSHE - 0 i e T s :

Additional information relating to Four Seasons including’dr’rectors"and ofﬁcers' remUneration and indebtedness interests
of insiders in matenal transactions, pnncrpal hoiders. of securities of FSH! and options to purchase securtttes is contained in
FSHI's Management lnformatron Crrcular prepared for the mast recent Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Additional financial
information, including’ consohdated comparative audited frnanctal statements for the years ended December 31, 2000 and
2001, is provrded in FSHI S 2001 Annual Report : :

" Acopy of such documents may be obtalned upon request from the Secretary of FSHI at the address and telephone number
noted above. .

The Toronto Stock Exchange has accepted FSHI's notice of intentionto make narmal course purchases of up to an aggregate
.of 1,548,140 (approxrmatety 5%) of the 30,962,808 Limited Voting Shares outstanding as at the date the notice of intention
was filed over the 12 months commencing October 11,2001, A similar notice has been filed with provrncral securities
regulators in respect of purchases that may be made through the facrhtres of the New York Stock Exchange The purchases
may be effected by FSHI from time to time through the facilities of the Toronto'and New York axchanges-at market prices
and in accordance with the’requirements of the Exchanges and applicable Canadian and United States securities laws.

Four Seascns Hotels Inc.
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Notes .

. A Tha managemem of Four Seasons hota\s in Nonh Arnenca is generally carned out by Four Seasons Hotels le\ted
8 Direct. . : :
C The ‘management of Four Seasons hote\s out5|de North Amenca and Regem hotels is generally carned out by .
Four Seasons Hote!s and Resorts B.V. and Four Seasons Hotels and Hesorts Asia Pacnfuc Pte Ltd. : ST




Management’'s Responsibility for Financial Reporting‘ |

The management of Four Seasons Ho ’ 'c is responsrble for the rntegnty ob;ectrvrty and falrness of the flnancral lnformatron presented o

this Annual Report and the: selectuon of the accountmg principles appropriate to the Corporatron s ctrcumstances The ‘consolidated. financial I

statements hotes and otherf\nanctal Informatlon included in the Annual Report were prepared in accordance with accountlng pollcres generally
_ acceptedin Canada The Corporatron has-aléo |ncluded a detalled reconcrhatron to US'GAAP in note 16 toits consohdated financial statements

The Corporation’s consolrdated financial statéments also rnclude estimated amounts Based on the informed Judgments of current and’ :

future events, for items such as the useful lives of capital assets and provisions for rmparrment in the value of assets. These estrmates are

.made with approprrate consideration of the matenalrty of the amounts invalved. The frnancral |nformat|on presented elsewhere in the Annual " =

Report is consrstent with that in the consolidated: flnancral staternents.

Management is also responslble for maintaining -a system of mternal controls and budgetrng procedures Wthl"I are desrgned to provrde ;
reasonable assurance thatassets are safeguarded; transactrons are executed and recorded in-accordance with management ] authonzatron
and relevant and reliable fmancral information is produced To' augment the lnternal control system, the.Corporation marntarns a program
of internal audits covenng srgnlfrcant aspects of the operatlons In addition the Corporatron 's Management Commrttee ared managément
teams and the individual hotel's Planning Committees regularly monitor current financial lntormatron of the hotels under. management '

- _including operating forecasts based on cufrent operating condltlons

Management oversrght occurs’ within' the context of the ethical framework astablished in the Corporatlon s mission statement whrch-' e

" combined with a strong compllance process helps to ensure the rntegnty of the Corporatron s financial reportrng systems and compllance
with the Iaw

lFSHl S Audlt Commrttee is appornted by the Board of Drrectors annually. The Commlttee meets wrth the lndependent aud|tors (who have o

free access to the Audit Commrttee |ndependent of management) and with management to satisfy itself: that each group is"properly - :

drschargxng its responsibilities, and to review the quarterly dnd annual consolrdated frnancral statements, the- rndependent auditor's report
and other financial information appearlng in the Corporatlon s annual and quarterly reports. The Audit Commrttee reports its findings'to the
Board of Drrectors for its consideration in apprcvrng the consolldated flnancral statements for rssuance to the shareholders

) ln accordance with Canadlan generally accepted audrtrng standards N '_ L o ‘, .

lsadore Sharp (srgned) E BRI R R .. Dougtas L. Ludwrg (srgnedl
Faundrr, Cbaxrman and C/nefExe«:uuw Ojﬁcﬂ S RPN - brrmeancml Off‘czr, ’
) ‘ Executive Vice President and Treasurer

February 14,-2002

Au'_d\i-tor's_.' R"eport -té.fh'?' Sha re‘h_older‘s‘»f‘: |

vWe have audlted the consolldated balance sheets of Four Seasons Hotels Inc. as at December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the consol dated:“i’u

statements of operatrons retained earnrngs .cash provrded by operatrons and cash flows for the years then ended These financial statements' o
.are the responsibility of the Corporatron S management Qur responsrblhty is-to express an oprnron on these ﬂnanclal statements based. 2

on our audits.

- We conducted our audlts in accordance wrth Canadian generally accepted audltlng standards Those standards require that we plan and perform

an audit to obtain reasonable assurance’ whether the frnanclal statements are free of matenal mlsstatement An audrt includes examlnrng,
"on a test basis, evidence supportrng the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audlt also rncludes assessrng the accountlng
i pnncrples used and srgnlﬂcant estlmates made by management ‘as well as evaluatrng the overall financial statement presentatron ‘

In our oplnlon these consolldated financial statements present fairly, in all rnatenal respects, the financial position of the Corporat|on as-at.’;

December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the' fesults of its operations and its cash rows for the years then ended in accordance wrth Canadlan ’
. generally accepted accountmg pnncrples

Tororiso, Canada R o KPMG LLP o
: Pebruary 14, 2002 . . A o Chartered Accountants ’

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.




° ~ -~ Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2007 and 2000,
{in thousands of dollars)" .

‘Ass.ets
© Current assets: -~ "7 . ’ S e T A e T T e e
Cash and cash equtvalents ST, ) e % 0 210,421 0 0 08 00278,100

Receivables note2) 00 . , ot 78,850 ol 942657

. P_repald expe_ns’es : e I R 2,492 1,409

L2806

20043 T 316670

Long -term receivables (note 3) - : S R f' 1201483 . "167,21_4 kN

Investments in hotel partnershlps and corporatlons (note 4) . -~ 141,005 172,578 Lk

Fixed assets {note &)’ ~ " - ; : T ST g0 s T 46,342
_ ~ Investment in management contracts note 6~ T TR o 201,460 - . 189,171
e ; ,Investment in trademarks and'trade names (note 7). Croot e e e 33,788 e 34,829

" Future income tax assets {note 8) Lo ) - : BRI b B 7L TSR R i} oo & IR

" Other assets o o oo e 39,782 o . 35821
R ' ’ . § 980,381 . «'$.. 984:397 .

: iLIabl|ltleS and Shareholders Equnty

‘Current liabilities: " ST o e, T e e e
Accounts payable and accrued habxlmes T I §°.50813 5 71345 :
Long-term obllgat\ons due within one year (note 9)' AP EREN ! 1,188 L » ©oAa82

Long-term obligations (nots 9) . i o nsaes 203,736 .
Shareholders’ equity (note 10) , '_ S Clle Lt et e
" Capital stock AR S ; o7 . 9319,460 0 318,640

Contributed surplus L : = : 4784 ., 4784
Retained earnings .. - e ‘ Yoo 0t 286,619 0 07202760
Equoty adjustment from forergn currency translatzon Lo R 21,730 e 5,437

810,136~ 708,164

Cbmmitments and contingenciéé (note 13_),‘

$ 980381 . . $ 984397

5 See accompanying nogés to cons_d{idated financial statérhenis, N

On behalf of the Board:

Isadore Sharp (signed) ! ) : Ben[amm Swirsky (S|gned}
Directar, L - . Director

. .52,001 - . 72497

»Convertlblenotes(noteSa)) B o S T 178543 © o ty7gBa3




_Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years.ended Decembsr3‘| 2001 and 2000 L ;
) (In thousands of dollars except per share amounts)

2000

2001
Consolidated fevenues $ 303,105” PR
- Management Operatlons Lk s
" Revenues A e $ - 160,672 $ 185,294
General and admrmstratrve expenses - .-(65,416) " 7 (69,5632)
/95,256 S126,762 ¢
Ownership Operatiens - R
ARevenues co o 147 500 - . 161 061
Distributions from hoteI mvestments S R A 510 9, 047 s
- Expenses . : : . F
Cost-of sales and expenses ’ (152,663) 5 (148,590) .
Fees to Management Operations - v .(6,576) . “(7:895)
e ' (10,229) 13623
Earmngs before other operating |tems . ‘_8'_5,027_ 139 385 L
Deprematlon and amortization R {16,242) . (14 028y
Other income, net (notes 3, 4, .9, 1V and 12) - ‘30,698 . 8669
Earnings from operations " o 99,483 . 134,026
Interest income, net {note 9(e)) 6,740 : 4190 7
Earnings before income taxes. 106,223 . 138,216 -
income tax recovery (expense) (note 8) S S R Tt TR N
Current : L5711) L0 (33,412)
" Future Claosn 1796
" Reduction of future mcome tax assets & +9.(939) (3,626) - -
O 873N o (35.142)
Net earnings $ 8648 . $ 103,074
Earnings per share (note 10(b)) 8 248 . S
" Diluted earnifgs per share (notes 1(l) and 10(bl} s 221 . s

263

- Ses accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Four Seasons Hotals inc.
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® ' Co‘;hsolvidated Sta;e\ments of Cash Provided}by_ Operat_ions_

. Years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 ‘
(in thousands of doHars)

Cash provided by (used.in) operatiohs: S

Management dperétlons RIREE , S TR R L PR
Earnings before other operatlng items. " ' SRR S8 795,256 Lo 125,762
¢ © . ltems not requiring. (providing) an outlay {inflow) of funds Coel s T 1,480 T (2B0) L

Workmg capital ptowded by Management_Operatlons i o D e 96,686 - 17125,512 "

Ownership Operatlons \ g o ) L St : L
Earnings (loss] before other operatlng items Ve v S.7110,229) - - 13,623
Items not requmng {providing} an outlay {inflow) of funds ) ‘ L T2,608 G e 748)

@ . Working capital provnded by (used in) Ownership Operatlons PR L s ‘ -(7,625) R ‘,12,8'7‘4 . .
T - R A TP = 89,0610 . 13838
Interest received - R e Lal : o e - 17,898 o S "15;75,2;‘"’
Interest paid - o v T cTEL T (9,939) <o (8,098)
Current income tax pald S . : S LUt (17,784) 8711
: Change in non- cash worklng capltal . ol . (6,183) } .-{33,789)
" Other . : o RPN . .2,457 . /5,091°

Cash provided byoperatlons ‘ e S 8 7585100 - $ 102,633 e

" See accompanymg notes to consohdated fmanmai statemems




Cons\ovl»i_da‘ted Statements of Cash Flows

Years snded December 31, 2001 andzooo“ RS AR o A T T -
: (Inthousandsofdollars) R ) . : : :

20017 L2000

Cash provrded by (used m) R \ T T SRR

. Operations e o8 78510 S0 102633
Financing: ) O : T AR :
Long-term oblrgatrons rncludrng current portron o L . ) e R :

Assued <. SR R o 489 D645

- ‘Repaid . SO T | L (103,327) - oy
Issuance of shares inote 10(a)) VT o 28200 T84T
"Dividends paid e LA e (3,625) 1 (3579)
Other . % ™ EEDREIE N R o L — S VA

Cash provided by (used in) flnanclng I ‘ : - S S (103,663) - : 3571

"Caprtal |nvestments S . : : RERO - B
- Increase inlong-term receivables . . " R SR (52,428) . o . (68,984)
" “Decrease in long-term recervables . RO e © 129,080 L4867
~ Hotel investments. D T K {22,088) U 43,262)
Disposal of hotel investments (note a4 e e 88829 s o e
* Purchase of. fixed assets L L ) i {9,639} '
' Investment in trademarks trade names and manag ment contrac {8,212)
' Other assets. ... % - ‘ : ‘ 6319)

Cash provided by (used m) capltal investments e T 19,023 . (1\1\»1',997;) .

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents -~ . © . el o0 (9130) T (5,793)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents due to L BTN e e
unrealized foreign exchange gain . = - - Yol BRI 1715 DREETR 648 L
- Cash and cash equivalents, béginning of year = 7/ LT TR B "218,100 " P 222 248. .

'Cash and cash equivalents, end of year . oo U0 g 210,421  $' ' 218,100\’:?'?‘

'See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

s

".‘C‘dn‘s‘o'lid"at;é.d Stayte’ments!ofjRet-ained Ea‘r’n’fin‘gs

Years ended Decembér.31, 2001 and 2000 . . .
{In thousands of dollars) ’

) ;> » 2001 R 2000

Retained earnlngs, beglnnlng of year : . o o ST e 0800 202,760 080 103,31
- Net earnings L R S SRR 5 ’86,7?4186"; 103,074
Dividends declared - " Lo [ T U S S (3,627} . 7 (3,605) -
Loss on redemption of convertible notes (note’ 9(6))1 TS T T T 20)

.~ Retained earnings, end of year o . . $ 285,619 ©$ 202,760

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. -
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“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
{in thousands of dollars except per share amounts)

Four Seasons Hotels Inc. (“FSHI") is incorporated under the Business Corporations Act of the Province of Ontario and,
through its subsidiaries, is engaged in the management of, and the investment in, hotel, resort and interval, fractional and
whole ownership residential properties throughout the warld (note 15) (FSHI and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to
as the "Corporation”).

At December 31, 2001, the Corporation managed 53 hotels and resorts and two residence clubs and had various projects
under construction or development, of which the Corporation had an equity interest in eight hotels and resorts under
management, two residence clubs and six projects under construction.

1. Significant accounting policies

The Corporation’s accounting policies and its standards of financial disclosure comply with accounting prmcxples that are
generally accepted in Canada. The significant accounting policies are summarized below:

{a) Principles of consolidation .
The Corperation consolidates all of its wholly owned subsidiaries, including its primary operating subsidiaries - Four Seasons
Hotels Limited, Four Seasons Hotels and Resorts Asia Pacific Pte Ltd. and Four Seasons Hotels and Resorts B.V.

The Corporation consolidates its 100% leasehold interests in'Four Seasons Hotel Vancouver, The Pierre in New York and

Four Seasons. Hotel Berlin.

{b} Accounting for investments in hotel partnerships and corporations

The Corporation accounts for its investments in hote! partnerships and corporations by the cost method because either the
percentage cwnership and structure does not give the Corporation significant influence over these investments or the
investments were acquired with the intention that they be disposed of in the foreseeable future.

In the event of a decline in value of an investment in the equity of a hotel partnership or corporation that is other than
temporary, the investment is written down to the estimated recoverable amount.

(c} Revenue recognition - : .

The consolidated revenues of the Corporation include fees earned from hotels, resorts and residence clubs under long-term
management contracts, revenues generated by its consolidated leasehold hote! operations'and distributions from its minority
hotel investments, ' ~ '

Revenues earned from management operations include base fees equal to a percentage of the gross operating revenues
of the managed properties and incentive fees based on certain operating results of the managed properties. The revenues
also include fees earned relating to the design, construction and fitting out specifications of hotels during the development
stage and purchasing fees earned calculated as a percentage of the cost of goods purchased by the managed properties
. through the Corpoeration’s centralized purchasing system. The Corporation provides central reservation services, worldwide
sales offices, marketing programs and advertising services to managed properties and receives a fee calculated in accordance
- with the management contracts. The Corporation also earns a fee for the use of its brand name in connection with certain
résidential projects and residence club properties, and for sérvices provided in the oversight.of the sales and marketing of
the residential projects and residence club units, which is based on a percentage of the gross selling price of each unit. |

Fees from management operations are recognized as revenue when the services have been rendered in accordance with
the terms of each individual contract, the fees are non-refundable, the amount of the fees is fixed or determinable, and there
is reasonable assurance that the fees are collectible. Incentive fees are accrued as earned based on the prefitability of the
managed property, subject to the terms of each individuat contract. :

Revenues generated by its consolidated leasehold hotel operations are recogmzed at the time of the sale or rendering of
services by the hotel.

The Corporation recognizes revenue from minority hotel investments, accounted for by the cost method, when profit
distributions are receivable from the partnerships or corporations.




{d) Income taxes

The Corporation uses the liability method of accounting for future income taxes. Under the liability method, future income
tax assets and liabilities are determined based con “temporary differences” {differences between the accounting basis and
the tax basis of the assets and liabilities), and are measured using the currently enacted, or substantively enacted, tax rates
and laws expected to apply when these differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded against any future income
tax asset if it is more likely than not that the asset will not be realized. Income tax expense or benefit is the sum of the
Corporation's provision for current income taxes and the difference between the opening and ending balances of the future
income tax assets and liabilities. .

(e) Translation of foreign currencies .

Foreign currency balances of the Corporation and of foreign operations de5|gnated as integrated are translated into domestic
currencies at the rates of exchange on'the balance sheet date for monetary items and at the rates of exchange on the date
of transaction for non-monetary items. The resulting translation gains or losses are included in the determination of net
earnings, except for gains or losses related to foreign currency denominated long-term obligations designated as hedges
~ of investments in self-sustaining foreign operations, which are deferred and mc\uded ina separate component of
shareholders’ equity.

Translation gains or losses on foreign exchange forward contracts designated as hedges of long-term receivables are included
- inincome in the same pericd as the related translation losses or gains on the hedged receivables. Any premiums or discounts
on the forward contracts are amortized to interest expense over the terms of the céntracts.

Revenues and expenses denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the rates of exchange on the dates of the
transactions, except for revenues hedged by foreign exchange forward contracts, which are translated at the contract rates.

The financial statements of foreign investments designated as self-sustaining cperations are translated into Canadian dollars
as follows:

{ii Assets and liabilities at rates of exchange on the balance sheet date; and

(il Revenue and expense items at average rates of exchange in effect during the year.

The resulting exchange gains and losses are deferred and included in a separate component of shareholders’ equity. A gain
or loss equivalent to a proportionate amount of the gxchange gains and losses accumulated in the separate component of
shareholders’ equity is recognized in income when there has been a reduction in the net investment resulting from a sale
of part or all of the Corporation’s interest in the foreign operation, or a reduction in the shareholders' equity of the foreign
operation as a result of dividend distributions or other capital transactions.

{f) Capital assets )
Land, buildings, furniture, fixtures, equipment and leasehold interests .and improvements are recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. '

The cost of acquiring or enhancing hotel management contracts is capltahzed and recorded as “Investment in management
contracts.” -

The cost of trademarks and trade names includes the cost of registering the "Four Seasons” trademarks and trade names
throughout the world.

(g) Depreciation and amortization of capital assets
Depreciation of buildings is recorded ona straight-line basis over 40 years.

Depreciation of furniture, fixtures and equipment is recorded on a straight-line basis at rates which will fully depreciate the
assets over their estimated useful lives. The estimated composite useful lives for furniture, fixtures and equipment range
from three to 20 years.

Amoartization of leasehold interests and improvements is recorded on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases.
The cests allocated to trademarks and trade names are amortized on a straight-line basis over a 40-year period.

The costs capitalized for hotel management contracts are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the contracts.

Four.Seasons Hotels Inc:
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'

The recoverability of the unamortized cost of trademarks, trade names and hotel management contracts is periodically
evaluated to determine whether such costs will be recovered from future opérations. The Corporation bases these
evaluations upon the projected future net fee stream on an undiscounted basis. If the undiscounted net fee streams are
insufficient to recover the.remaining net book value, then the undiscounted net fee stream is used as the revised carrying
value, and a write-down for the difference is recorded. Events that cause impairment to individuai hotel management
contracts, such as termination or sale, result in write-offs as the events occur.

{h) Deferred charges

The Corporation defers legal, consulting, travel and other costs directly relating to the negotiation, structuring and execution
of new contracts relating to projects which, in management's judgment, have a high probability of opening. When'the property
is opened, these deferred charges are reclassified to "Investment in management contracts.” If the project is abandoned,
any deferred charges are written off. The deferred charges associated with new management contracts developed by the
Corporation are amortized on a straight-line basis over a 10-year period commencing when the hotel is cpened. -

{i) Cash and cash equivalents

The Corporation’s investments in cash and cash equivalents are highly I|qwd with maturities of less than 90 days. These
. investments include bank deposits, guaranteed investment certificates and money market funds held with major financial
institutions.

{i) Use of estimates

The preparatxon of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles réquires management
to make estimates and assumnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent’
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The most significant estimatéé that the Corporation is required to make relate to the recoverability of its investments in
{i) long-term receivables, (ii) hotel partnerships and cerporations, (i} management contracts, and (iv) trademarks and-
trade names.

The estimated recoverable amounts of these investments usually depend upon estimates of the profitability of the related
managed hotels, which, in turn, depend upon assumptions regarding future conditions in the general or local hospitality
industry, competition from other hotels, changes in travel patterns, and other factors that affect the hotels’ gross operating
revenue {which is the factor on which the Corporation’s base management fee revenues are normally based) and net
operating profit {which is the factor on which the Corporation’s incentive fee revenues are normally based).

The estimates of recoverable amounts of these investments may also depend upon assumptions regarding local real estate
market conditions, property and income taxes, interest rates and the availability, cost and terms of financing, the impact of
present or future legislation or regulation, debt incurred by the hotels that rank ahead of the Corporation and other factors
affecting the profitability and saleability of the hotels.

These assumptions are limited by the availability of reliable comparable data and the uncertainty of predictions concerning future
events. Accordingly, by their nature, estimates of recoverable amounts are subjective and do not necessarily result in precise
determinations. Should the underlying assumptions change, the estimated recoverable amounts could change by a material amount.

{k} Stock options

The Corporation has an executive stock option plan (note 10(a)). No compensation expense is recognized when options are
issued. Any consideration paid to the Corporation on exercise of options is credited to capital stock. If options are repurchased
by the Corporation, the consideration paid is charged to retained earnings.

{l} Change in accountlng policy
Effective January 1, 2001, The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants changed the accounting standard relating to -
the calculation of d:luted earnings per share. Under the prior method, diluted earnings per share was calculated on the basis

" that the proceeds to be received from the dilutive investments, such as stock options, were assumed to have been invested
and to have earned a rate of return. The new provisions assume that these proceeds are used to purchase common shares
at the average price for the period. The new standard did not change the calculation of the dilution relating to the assumed
conversion of the Corporation’s convertible notes.




The Corporation has adopted this new accounting standard retreactively, resulting in the restatement 'of diluted earnings
per share for the year ended December 31, 2000. The diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2001 and
2000 are more dilutive by approximately $0.02 and $0.14, respectively, than they would have been under the previous standard.

2. Receivables

2001 2000

Trade accounts of consolidated hotels $ 10,611 $ 12,504
Receivable from hotel partnerships, affiliates and managed hotels © 57,951 68,752
Qther ) 9,888 13,009
' $ 78,450 $ 94,265

~ Receivables at December 31, 2001 are recorded net of an allowance for doubtiul accounts of $5,438 (2000 - $4,042). The
net bad debt expense for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $1,354 (2000 - $586).

3. Long-term receivables L
2001 2000

Secured cash flow bond, interest at 10%, due 2005, .
£9.9 million (2000 - £10.1 million) (2} : s 21,229 $ 22,435
Secured loans: ’
Secured by shares:

Interest at 10%, due 2038, £12.2 million {b) 28,322 27,007
Interest at 7.5%, compounded quarterly, AUS$19,997 ) . ‘

{2000 - AUS$18,565) ' 16,309 17.436
Interest at LIBOR plus 3% (2000 ~ US$1O 353) » : - 15,631

Secured by property:
_Interest at 7%, compounded annually, repayable over

the period to 2025, US$9,599 (2000 ~ US$11,153) : ' 15,287 16,741
Interest at LIBOR plus 0.30% to 0.35%, compounded monthly, '
repayable over the period to 2004, US$5,000 ' o 8,029 7.501
Due from directors, officers and employees, non-interest .
bearing notes and mortgages 15,845 : 11,180
Unsecured loans to managed hotels: :
Interest at 10%, due 2010, US$15,000 (2000 ~ US$14,000) 24,086 21,003
Interest at 10%, compounded annually, repayable over the N : :
‘period to 2061, US$9,998 . 15,923 —
interest at 10.5%, compounded monthly, : ‘
AUS$9,927 (2000 - AUS$9,416) : 8,097 . 8,499
Interest at 7.5%; compounded annually, _ )
AUSS4,734 (2000 — AUS$4,400) ‘ ) 3,861 3,673
Interest at 7%, US$15,476 (2000 - US$4,424) ' 24,682 6,602
Interest at Euribor +2%, due 2021, €6.8 million ) 9,628 ) . —
TUT T Interest at 6%, due 2009, €3 million 4,256 4,180 E
Non-interest bearing, US$8,704 (2000 - US$7, 650} c) : 13,862 ' 12,927 B}
: 209,416 ’ 174,715
Less allowance for doubtful long-term receivables (c) {7,963) {7,501)
$ 201,453 3 167,214

Four Seasons Hotels {nc.
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{a) The cash flow bond is due from an affiliate of Kingdom Investments Inc. (" Kingdom "}, which is a significant shareholder
of FSHI. Principal and interest on the bond are payable annually every March out of 50% of the available cash flow (as defined
in the bond indenture) from Four Seasons Hotel London. The bond is secured by the purchaser's investment in the hotel.
During 2001, principal repayment of £0.2 million (2000 - £0.2 million) was received by the Corporation, as well as all interest
accrued on the bond to March 2007, Interest income from the bond has been fully accrued in 2001, as the Corporation
believes there is reasonable assurance the interest will be received in March 2002.

- {b) The loan is due from an affiliate of Kingdom. Principal and interest on the loan are payable annually every March out of
the other 50% of the available cash flow from Four Seasons Hotel London. The loan is secured by the affiliate’s additional
indirect interest in the hotel. During 2001, the Corporation received payment for all interest accrued in 2000. Interestincome
from the loan has been fully accrued in 2001, as the Corporation believes there is reasonable assurance the interest will be
received in March 2002.

{c) AsatDecember 31 ,'2001 and 2000, the amounts included a loan by the Corporaticn of US$5,000 {$7,863) to the owner
of The Regent Jakarta which opened inlate 1995. This loan is unsecured, non-interest bearing, and originally was convertible .
into a 5% equity interest in the hotel, subject to regulatory approval. ’

The owner of the hotel has a bank loan which is secured by the hotel. The hotel owner stopped servicing the bank loan in
2000 and that loan was classified by the Indonesian Banking Restructuring Agency (“IBRA") as non-performing. The IBRA
acquired the joan from the bank in 2000. The hotel owner presented, and the IBRA accepted, a restructuring plan pursuant
to which the Corporation’s unsecured loan is expected to be converted to a 2% equity interest in the hotel. The Corporation
has fully reserved for its ioan to the cwner of the hotel as at December 31, 20071 and 2000. .

Changes in the allowance for doubtful long-term receivables consist of: -

) 2001 ‘ : 2000
Balance, beginning of year ' : ‘ $ (7,501) $ (7,.217)
Foreign exchange o . {462) (284)
Balance, end of year : $ (7,963) $ (7,501)

During 2001, the Corporation recovered $102 (2000 ~ $8,822) on amounts that had been written off in prior years. This
recovery is recorded in ”"Other income, net.”

4. Investments in hotel partnerships and corporations .
. 2001 - 2000

Four Seasons Residence Club Scottsdale (a) S 11,448 .3 10,677
The Regent Hong Kohg (b) - ' 6,251
Four Seasons Hotel Prague (c) .- — 24,885

- Other operating properties (d) . ’ 53,092 71,795
Properties under construction or development 76,465 ) 58,971 -

$ 141,005 $ 172,579

{a) Investment in Four Seasons Residence Club Scottsdale

The Corporation has a 71% equity interast in Four Seasons Residence Club Scottsdale (the “Residence Club"}. The Corporation
is in discussions with the majority owner of Four Seasons Resort Scottsdale relating to the sale of a portion of the
Corporation’s equity interest in the Residence Club.




{b) Sale of The Regent Hong Kong

In August 2001, the Corporation sold its 25% ownership interest in the entity which leases The Regent Hong Kong for gross
proceeds of HK$185,000 {approximately $36,400). The net proceeds from the sale, after deducting estimated selling costs,
were $33,512 and the Corporation realized a gain on sale of $23,985. The management contract for the hotel expired on
May 31, 2001.

(c) Sale of Four Seasons Hotel Prague

Iin July 2001, the Corporation completed the sale of its 67% ownership interest in Four Seasons Hotel Prague for gross
proceeds of approximately $37,400. The net proceeds, after deducting estimated selling costs, were $36,692 and the
Corporation realized a gain on sale of $6,413. in connection with the sale of the hotel, the Corporation, in 2001, also reversed
provisions of $4,676 previously recorded relating to this interest. The Corporation continues to manage the hotel under a
Iong -term management contract.

{d) Sale of Four Seasons Resort Punta Mita _ .

As at December 31, 2000, “Other operating properties” included the Corporation’s investment in Four Seasons Resort
Punta Mita. In February 2001, the Corperation disposed of its 30.8% ownership interest in Four Seasons Punta Mita for
proceeds of $18,425, which approximated bock value. The Corporation continuges to manage the resort under a long-term”
management contract.

5. Fixed assets .
2001 2000.

Accumulated
depreciation/ Net boak Net book
Cost amortization value value
Land : ‘ $ 1,000 $ — $ 1,000 $ - 1,000
Buildings : . 8,461 (1,996) 6,465 7,695 .
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 46,917 (13,866) 33,051 - 28,406
Leasehold interests and improvements 13,819 . (3,620) 10,199 9,341
' $ 70197 $  (19,482) $ 50,715 $ 46,342
Depreciation and amortization expense for fixed assets was $6,152 (2000 - $4,971).
6. Investment in management contracts .
- 2001 2000
Management contracts, at cost . $ 246,777 $ 225410
- Less accumulated amortization ‘ {45,317) {36,239)
$ 201,460 $ 183,171
Amortizaticn expense for management contracts was $8,457 (2000 - $7,380).
7. Investment in trademarks and trade names
2001 ) 2000
Trademarks and trade names, at cost $ 41,861 $ 41,074~
Less accumulated amortization - ‘ (8,077} : (6,245)

$ 33,784 $ 34829

Amortization expense for ;rademarks and trade names was $1,565 (2000 —$977).

Four Seasans Hotels Inc.
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8. Income taxes

The sources of earnings before provision for income taxes comprise the following:

2001 2000
Canada - . o $ . 35856 8 93,593
Foreign : ) 70,367 44,623
$ 106,223 $ 138,216
The provision for income taxes is as follows:
2001 2000
Current:
Canada o ) - S {10,385) $ (30,342)
Foreign ' ' {5,326) {3,070)
{15,711) {33,412)
Future (Canada) {3,087) 1.796
Reducticn of future income tax assets (Canada) (939) (3,528) -
$ {19,737) $ (35,142)

The reduction of future income tax assets relates to the reductions in Canadian federal and provincial income tax rates. The
reductions are to be phased in over the next several years. As a result of this decrease in the income tax rates, the ongoing
benefit of the Corporation’s future income tax assets is reduced. The $939 (2000 - $3,526) expense reflects the reduction

in the ongoing benefit.

Income tax expense varies from the amount computed by applyi“ng combined Canadian federal and provincial tax rates to

earnings before income taxes as follows: -

2001 2000
Earnings before income taxes $ 106,223 3 138,216
Items not subject to tax {18,332) (18,874)
Earnings subject to tax 8 87,891 $ 119,342
Statutory Canadian federal and provincial tax rates 39.92% 41.5%
' Expected income tax expense $ {35,086) 3 (48,527)
Reduction in tax due to lower foreign tax rates 14,632 12,354
Change in beginning of year balance in valuation aliowance for :
future income tax assets ) . 2,435 5,825
Adjustments to future income tax assets and liabilities for changes : o
in tax basis caused by tax reorganization, dispositions, other ) - {779) (268)
Income tax expense before effect of tax rate reductions (18,798} {31,616)
Reduction of future income tax assets due to change in tax rates (939} (3,526)
Income tax expense ‘ S {19,737} 3 (35,142)




The significant components of future income tax recovery (expense) attributable to earnings before income taxes are as follows:

2001 . 2000
Future income expense (exclusive of the effects of the following components) S {4,743) $ (3,761)
Adjustments to future tax assets and liabilities for changes in tax basis caused
by tax reorganizations, dispositions, other (779) (268)
Decrease in valuation allowance - . ‘ 2,435 ' 5,825
Future income tax recovery (expense) - . (3,087) : 1,796
Reduction of future income tax'assets due to change in tax rates : (939) (3,526
Net reduction in future income tax assets $ (4,026} $ (1,730)

The valuation allowance for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $2,397 (2000 ~ $7,790), a decrease of $2,435 (2000 -
decrease of $5,825) prior to the impact on the valuation allowance as a result of a change in Canadian tax rates. The change
in tax rates reduced the valuation allowance a further $230 to $2,167 {2000 -~ a further $2,958 to $4,832). The valuation
allowance decreased primarily as a result of the expectation of the application of capital losses in future years, which the
Corporation previously believed were unlikely to be utilized. In order to fully realize the future income tax assets, the
Corporation wilt need to generate future taxable income of approximately $100,000. Based upon projections of future taxable
.income over the periods in which the future income tax assets are deductible,. management believes it is more likely than
not that the Corporation will realize the benefits of these deductible differences, net of the existing valuation allowance.
The amount of the future income tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimated
future taxable | income during the carryforward period is reduced.

Future income taxes arise from temporary differences in the basis of the Corpqration‘s assets and liabilities for tax and
financial reporting purposes. Tax effects of these differences are as follows:

2001 2000 -
Future income tax assets:
Investments in hotel partnerships and corporations o $ 12,245 8 14,545
Tax losses carried forward and other assets ‘ ’ 19,497 - 20,839
Long-term receivables ‘ 2,276 2,939
Investment in trademarks and trade names ’ 541 ) 754
Current liabilities - 27
Long-term obligations X 4,834 4,640
Future income tax assets before valuation allowance : 39,393 43,744
Valuation allowance E ’ ’ (2,167) (4,832)
Total gross future income tax assets 37,226 38,912
Future income tax liabilities: ) .
Investment in management contracts : (16,452) (16,931)
Fixed assets : {3,029) (210)
Total gross future income tax liabilities . (19,481) (17,141)
Future income tax assets ’ 8 17,745 $ 21,771

At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had accumulated net operatmg losses carried forward of approxrmatelv $19,000 for
tax purposes, which expire through 2008. :

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.
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9. Long-term obligations

2001 2000 -

Convertible notes, US$57,115 (2000 - US$52,301) (a) ) '8 90,961 $ 78,462
Unsecured debentures (b} ) : —_— 100,000
Accrued benefit liability (note 13(b) _ . 27,217 ' 24,576
Other long-term obligations _ 1,254 1,880
119,432 204,888

Amounts due within one year (1,188} (1,152)
' $ 118,244 $ 203,736

{a) Convertible notes
During 1999, FSHI issued US$655,619 principal amount at maturity (September 23, 2029) of convertrble notes for gross
proceeds of US$172,500. The net proceeds of the issuance, after deducting offering expenses and underwriter's commission,
were approximately US$166,000. At any time on or before the maturity date, uniess the notes have previously
been redeemed or purchased, holders may require FSHI to convert the notes {each one thousand US dollar principal) into
5.284 Limited Voting Shares of FSHI. FSHI has the right to acquire the notes that a holder has required to be converted for
_ cash equal to the fair value of the Limited Voting Shares. The conversion rate may be adjusted for certain reasons, but will
not be adjusted for accrued interest. :

Holders also have the right to require FSH! to purchase all or a portion of their notes on September 23, 2004, September 23,
2009 and September 23, 2014 in consideration for Limited Voting Shares.of FSHI having a fair value equal to the issue price
plus accrued interest to the date of purchase. FSHI has the right to acquire for cash all or a portion of the notes that a hoider
has required to be,so purchased. In addition, upon a change in control of FSHI occurring on or before September 23, 2004,
FSHI will be required tc offer to purchase all the notes for cash at the issue price plus accrued interest to the date of
purchase. FSHI may redeem all or a portion of the notes at any time on or after September 23, 2004 for cash at the issue
price plus accrued interest to the date of purchase.

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, the notes are bifurcated into a debt component
(representing the present value of a zero coupon bond of US$655,513 maturing in 2029, yielding 9% per annum, compounding
semi-annually) and an equity component (representing the value of the conversion feature of the notes). Accordingly, net
proceeds have been allocated $68,902 to long-term obligations and $178,574 to shareholders’ equity. The offering expenses
and underwriter's commission relating to the debt compenent of the notes of approximately $2,549 are recorded in other
assets. The principal amount of the notes will increase as interest is compounded at 9% over the 30-year term of the note.

During 2000, 116 of the convertibie notes were redeemed for cash, not shares, which resulted in an accounting loss of $26.
In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, $6 was recorded as a charge tc operations and $20
was recorded as a charge to retained earnings.

{b) Unsecured debentures

The unsecured debentures, with a face value of $100,000 and a maturity date of July 2, 2002, were redeemed by the
Corporation during 2001 for $102,219, which resulted in an accounting loss of $2,350. The debentures bore interest at 6%.
The redemption was funded from the Corporation’s cash reserves,

{c] Bank credit facility

The Corporation has. g US$200,000 commltted bank credit facility, of which US$100,000 matures in Apnl 2003 and
US$100,000 matures in July 2003. As at December 31, 2001 and 2000, no amounts were borrowed by the Corporation
under this credit facility. Borrowings under this credit facility bear interest at LIBOR plus a spread ranging between 0.3%
and 1% depending upon certain criteria specified in the loan agreement.




{d) Scheduled repayments of long-term obligations

2002 ' ‘ . $ 1,188

2003 . 46 Lo
2004 . 19 !
Subsequent to 2004 ) ' 118,179

$ 119,432

(e) Interest income, net .
: 2001 - 2000

Interest income ‘ $ 23,342 3 21,068
Interest on long-term obligations y {14,995) {15,136)
Other interest expense ‘ (1,607) o (1,742)

Interest income, net $ - 6,740 - 3 4,190

(f) Restrictive debt covenants

The bank credit facility contains certain covenants which require the Corporation to maintain certain financial ratios. In
addition, the bank credit facility contains additional covenants which, in certain circumstances, restrict the Corporation’s ability
to borrow funds ranking superior to this obligation and undertake certain types of major transactions. The Corporation was
in compliance with these covenants during 2001 and 2000. In addition, the bank credit facility is caliable in certain
circumstances by the creditors on a change of control of FSHI.

10. Shareholders’ equity

{a) Capital stock
Adthorized

3,986,872 - Variable Multiple Voting Shares {“VMVS"), entitling the holder to that number of votes that results in the
aggregate votes attaching to the VMVS representing appreximately 66% of the votes attaching to the
VMVS and the Limited Voting Shares (“LVS"), in aggregate, which, at December 31, 2001 was 15.15 votes
{2000 - 15.09 votes) per VMVS. Changes in the number of votes attaching to the VMVS necessary to
maintain this level will occur concurrently with the i issue of additional LVS. .

The VMVS rank equally with the LVS as to distributions on liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of FSHI.

A Dividends declared and paid on the VMVS are in amounts per share equal to 50% of the dividends per
share declared and paid on the LVS, regardless of whether the number of votes attaching to the VMVS'is
further increased. -

VMVS are convertible into LVS on a cne-for-one basis at the option of the holder, The shares automatically
convert into LVS upon any transfer outside of the family of Isadore Sharp, except a transfer of a majority
of the shares to a purchaser who makes an equivalent offer to purchase afl outstanding VMVS and LVS.

Uniimited LVS, voting {one vote per share) and ranking equally with the VMVS as to dlSUIbUIIOﬂS on liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up of FSHI.

Unlimited First.Preference Shares and Second Preference Shares, issuable in series, non-voting and ranking prior
to all other shares with respect to payment of dividends and distributions on liquidation or winding-up of
FSHI. The dividend rate, redemption and conversion rights, if any, are to be determined prior to issuance
by the directors of FSHI.

“Four Seasons Hotels Inc.
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Issued and fully paid:

- VMVS VS
Shares ‘Stated valug Shares " Stated value Total
December 31, 1992 ‘ 3,986,872 3 44 30,507,060 $ 308,949 $ 308,893
Options exercised for cash — — 368,787 7.647 7.647
December 31, 2000 3,986,872 . 44 30,875,847 316,596 ' 316,640
Options exercised for cash . —_ — 124,748 2,820 2,820

December 31, 2001 R - 3,986,872 5 44 31,000,595 $ 319,416 .$ 319,460

At the Special Meeting of Shareholders on December 19, 1983, the shareholders approved a Long-Term Incentive Plan,
whereby the chief executive officer of FSHI was granted the right to receive a special payment on an arm’s-length sale of
control of FSHI (the "sale”). The amount of the payment is determined with reference to the sale price and the trading price
of LVS on The Toronto Stock Exchange in the period preceding the sale. The right to receive the payment may be transferred
among members of the officer's family, their holding companies and trusts. '

Under executive stock option plans, eligible directors, executives and employees may be granted options to acquire LVS at
a price which is not less than the weighted average price of board lots traded on The Toronto Stock Exchange in the five
trading days preceding the date of grant. The options are not transferable, have a term of 10 years, and generally become
exercisable in varying proportions on the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date of grant. All such options
become exercisable within specified periods in the event of retirement, termination other than for cause {including as a resuit
of a change of control of FSHI), incapacity or death of the director, executive or employee. ’

Changes in stock options for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

Options Weighted average Available

outstanding exercise price for grent

Balance at December 31, 1999 ) 4,640,641 3 38.27 50,682
Additional options approved by shareholders : — ' - 1,200,000
Granted - 810,716 . 87.27 -~ (810,716)
‘Exercised . ' (368,787) 2073 —
Cancelled (32,320) 56.03 32,320
Balance at December 31, 2000 o 5,050,250 47.29 472,286
Additional options approved by shareholders ' — . — 1,200,000
Granted - 629,400 68.03 - {629,400)
Exercised i (124,748) 22.61 o —
Cancelled : " (24,600) ‘ 71.76 24,600
Balance at December 31, 2001 5,530,302 $ - 50.11 1,067,486

Exercisable at December 31, 2001 - . 1,868,017

o

32.77




Information relating to stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001 was as follows:

. Options outstanding i Options exercisable
Weighted ‘ :

average Weighted : Weighted
: Options remaining average Options average
Range of exercise prices : " outstanding contractual life exercise price exerciseable  exerciseable price
$11.30-% 24.95 . 856,837 ‘ 2.9 years $ 16.‘30 847,523 $ 16.22
- 26.68- 39.61 : 741,100 ' 5.6 years 32.06 - 335,800 32.43
- 40.51 - 53.28 . 2,146,043 6.9 years ‘49.43 ' 463,200 47.25
5495 - 75.19 864,446 8.5 years 60.87 167,354 58.40
84.00- 10814 - . S 921,876 85years 87.51 54,040 90.80
$11.30-$108.14 ' 5,530,302 6.5 years $ 50.11 1,868,017 $ 32.77

{b) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net earnings by the werghted average number of VMVS and LVS outstandmg
during the period. Potentially issuable LVS are excluded from the calculation of basic earnings per share, but are included in
the calculation of diluted earnings per share by application of the “treasury stock method,” which takes into account the
dilution relating to LVS issuable under the Corporation’s stock option plans and by the "if-converted method,” which takes
into account the dilution relating to the conversion of the Corporation’s convertible notes. During 2001 and 2000, no
convertible notes were redeemed by the issuance of LVS. FSHI has the option to acqurre for cash rather than LVS any
conversion or put right under the convertible note indenture (note 9(a)).

A reconciliation of the net earnrngs and weighted average number of VMVS and LVS used to calcuiate basic earnings per
share and dlluted earnings per share is as follows: ‘ :
2001 . 2000

Net earnings - ‘ Shares Net earnings Shares

Basic earnings per share: ) . )
Net earnings ' $ 86486 34,924,492 % 103,074 34,634,583
Effect of assumed dilutive ’
conversions: : . v
Stock option plans ‘ — 1,711,448 - 2,567,442
Convertible notes 4,475 3,463,155 3,823 3,463,155

Diluted earnings per share:
Net earnings and assumed _ »
dilutive conversions $ 90,961 40,099,095 $ 106,897 40,665,190

{c) Equity adjustmént from foreign currency translation

The increase in the equity adjustment from foreign currency translation is primarily caused by changes in the exchange rates
used to transiate the Corporation’s net investment in self-sustaining foreign operations, offset by an amount transferred to
foreign exchange gain relating to the reduction of the Corpaoration’s net investment in one of its Asian salf- sustarmng
subsrdrarres (note 1Hal).
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11. Fdreign exchange gain (loss)

During 2001, the Corporation recorded a net foreign exchange gain of $44 (2000 — net foreign exchange loss of $247).
The primary compenents are as follows:

(a) During 2001, the Corporation reduced its net investment in one of its Asian self-sustaining subsidiaries. The reduction

was related to a capital restructuring whereby the subsidiary repaid capital of approximately US$31,000 to the Corporation.

A foreign exchange gain of $4,973, which is equivalent to the proportional amount (relating te the reduction in the net .

investment in the subsidiary) of the foreign exchange gain accumulated in “Equity adjustment from foreign currency
* translation” in shareholders’ equity, was recognized in income.

(b) During 2001, the Corporation terminated the designation of hedging its 2002 US dollar revenues with its US doliar
forward contracts. These contracts were entered into during 2000 and mature after December 31, 2001. Any foreign ..
exchange losses, deferred prior to the termination of the hedge, relating to the anticipated 2002 US dollar revenues continue
to be deferred and will be recognized in 2002 as a reduction of revenues. The foreign exchange loss of $3,608 relating to
the excess dollar amount of the US dollar contracts over the anticipated 2002 US doilar revenues was recognized as a
charge against income in 2001,

{c} The remainder of the foreign exchange loss of $1,321 (2000 - $247) related to the net foreign currency translation
loss on unhedged net asset and liability positions, primarily in US dollars, euros, pounds sterling and Australian dollars, and
foreign exchange losses incurred by the Corporation’s foreign self-sustaining subsidiaries.

12. Restructuring charge

During 2001, the Corporation recorded a restructuring charge of $2,172 in connection with the realignment of certain
corporate departments. As at December 31, 2001, approximately $140 of this amount had been paid.

13. Commitments and contingencies

.{a) Lease commitments ) v ,
The Corporation has entered into lease agreements for certain hotel properties and corporate offices for periods up to
the year 2054. The lease terms may be extended by the Corporation under renewal options for periods up to the year 2069.

Future minimum lease payments for The Pierre in New York, Four Seasons Hotel Vancouver and certain corporate offices
(but exclusive of any contingent rentals, occupancy costs, and lease commitments relating to Four Seasons Hotel Berlin and
Four Seasons Hotel London, which are disclosed below), are as follows: ’

2002 ’ $ 11,404
2003 . : : 10,887
2004 : ’ 10,217
2005 : N g 9,960
2006 ' ’ ’ 9,823
Subsequent to 2006 . 68,330

' $ 120,621

The Corporation has provided a US$5,000 letter of credit te support its obligations under the lease at The Pierre in New York.




The lease agreement for Four Seasons Hotel Berlin was transferred to the Corporation effective January 1, 1999. The lease
is for an initial 20-year term with 10 five-year renewals at the Corporation’s option. Future minimum lease payments of the
hotel, exclusive of any contingency rentals and cccupancy costs, are as follows:

2002 o ‘ . $ 6,494
2003 : _ 6,785
2004 : ’ - ' : » : 7.910
2005 : : . © 7,948
2006 ' ‘ 7,957
Subsequent to 2006 : 96,189
$ 133,283

The future minimum lease payments of approximately €94 million ($133,283} are to be paid out of the hotel's operations.
To the extent that the hotel is unable to pay these commitments, the Corporation’s liability to fund any shortfall is limited to
approximately €11 million. As at December 31, 2001, the Corporation had funded approximately €4 miilion of this amount.
However, the landlord may terminate the lease if minimum rent is not paid.

The Corporation is the tenant of the land and premises constituting Four Seascons Hotel London pursuant to the terms of a '
lease (the “FS Lease™) expiring on January 28, 2054. The leasehold interest of the Corporation in the hotel is a continuing
obligation which survived the sale by the Corporation of its ownership interest in the hotel in 1995 to Kingdom. The
Corporation has entered into a sublease of the hotel with the entity (the “Sub-Tenant”) on whose behalf the Corporation
manages the hotel. The annual rent payable by the Corporation under the FS Lease is currently £3.8 million. The same amcunt
of annual rent is payable by the Sub-Tenant to the Corporation pursuant to the sublease and is payable out of the operating
" accounts of the hotel. Indirectly, the Corporation now holds a 12.5% ownership interest in the Sub-Tenant. ‘

Pursuant to the arrangements relating to the ownership of the Sub-Tenant, the Corporation would be required to fund its.
proportionate 12.5% share of any amounts required to ensure that the Sub-Tenant honoured all of the obligations necessary
for the operation of the hotel, including the sublease payments, to the extent’the majority shareholder makes payment of
its proportionate share of such amounts. The Corporation has not been required either to make payment of any amount
of rent under the FS Lease that has not first teen paid to the Corporation under the sublease or to fund any amounts
under the terms of the ownership arrangements relating to the Sub-Tenant. Historically, hotel operating cash flow has
been more than sufficient to meet the rent cbligations. In the event of a non-payment of rent under the sublease, the
Corporation would be entitied to forfeit the sublease. The ongoing management of the hotel by thé Corporation would

be subject to a non-disturbance agreement with the senior lender to the Sub-Tenant. Future minimum |ease payments of

the hotel, exclusive of any contingent rentals and occupancy costs, are as follows:

2002 : : $ 8,675

2003 . . . 8,791
2004 . 8,907
2005 h 9,023
2006 - o C : 9,139
Subsequent to 2006 . ‘ 436 170

$ 480,705

{b} Pension commitments :

The Corperation maintains a multi-employer non-cantributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan”) on behalf of the
" Corporation and the owners of certain managed hotels. The Plan provides pension benefits for certain senior executives of
" the Corporation and hote! general managers, based on years and level of service and annual salary.
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Information relating to the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 based on projections

compensation levels to the date of retirement were as follows:

teontinued)”

of employees’

2001 2000
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year ' $ 41,736 - % 38,184
Change in accrued benefit obligation:
Service cost 1,968 1,829
Interest cost 3,295 2,764
Benefits paid {1,217} (1,041)
Actuarial loss 5,637 —
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 51,319 41,736°
Unamortized actuarial loss for changes in assumptions {5.537) —
Accrued benefit liability, end of year, before allocation 45,782 41,736
Portion allocated to managed properties . {18,565) C(17,160)
Accrued benefit liability, end of year, after allocation ' 3 27,217 $ 24,576

The accrued benefit liability is financed by life insurance policies on the lives of certain of the participants in the Plan. As at
December 31, 2001, the Corporation’s share of the cash surrender value of the policies, which is mcluded in “Other assets,”

“was $15,721 (2000 $15,296).

- 2001 2000
Assumptions as of December 31:
Discount rates 7% 7%
Rates of increase in compensation levels 5% 5%
Components of benefit expense before allocation: .
Service cost . - s 1,968 $ 1829 .
Interest cost - ’ 3,295 2,764
Benefit expense before allocation - 5,263 4,593
Portion allocated to managed properties {2,134} (1,888)

Benefit expense after allocation ) $ 3,129 $ 2,708

{c] Contingencies - ,

(i The Corporation estimates and accrues for the losses, if any, it is likely to incur relating to uninsured
contingent liabilities such as environmental matters, personal injury and property damage at owned or
managed hotels, workers' compensation claims, guarantees of third party debt, etc. The Corporation's
assessment of its potential liability for such matters could change, with the result that the accruals for
contingent liabilities recorded in the Corpo_ratibn's financial statements could increase by a material amount.

(ii) In the ordinary course of its business, the Corporation is named as defendant in legal proceedings resulting
from incidents taking place at hotels owned or managed by it. The Corporation maintains comprehensive
liability insurance and also requires hotel owners to maintain adeguate insurance coverage. The Corporation
believes such coverage to be of a nature and amount sufficient to ensure that it is adequately protected

o ) - from suffering any material financial ioss as a result of such claims.

(iii) A number of the Cerporation’s management contracts are subject to certain performance tests which, if
not met, ¢ould allow a contract to be terminated prior to its maturity. The Corporation generally has various
rights.to cure any such defaults to avoid termination. In addition, certain management contracts are

“terminable by the hotel owner on a defined change of control of FSHI,
- {iv) . The Corporation has guaranteed certam obllgatlons of various directors, officers, and employees in the
® ’ amount of $881.




14. Fair values of financial instruments

The estimated fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than a forced or liquidation sale. These estimates, although based on the relevant
market information about the financial instrument, are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

_As cash equivalents, current accounts receivable, current accounts payable and certain other short-term financial instruments
are all short-term in nature, their carrying amounts approximate fair values.

The fair values of the Corporation’s long-term obligations and convertible notes are estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis which is based on the Corporation's current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Other financial instruments held by the Corporation include interest-bearing loans receivable due from owners of managed
hotels (note 3). The Corporation does not have plans to sell these loans to third parties and will realize or settle them in the
ordinary course of business. The fair value of these instruments cannot be reasonably estimated because no active and liquid
market exists for these instruments, and a market rate of interest (for instruments having similar terms and characteristics)
required to use estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis cannot reasonably be determined due to the
unusual terms of these instruments.

The Corporation enters into foreign exchange forward contracts that oblige it to buy or sell specific amounts of foreign -
currencies at set future dates at predetermined exchange rates. Because a significant portion of the Corporation’s revenues
are derived in foreign currencies (primarily US dollars) and expenditures incurred by the Corporation for its management
operations are denominated primarily in Canadian dollars, the Corporation enters into such contracts to protect itself in the
event of a strengthening Canadian currency. Management estimates future foreign currency cash flows on an ongoing
basis, based on its projections of foreign currency denominated management fees and other transactions. Management
negotiates foreign exchange forward contracts in.proportion to the magnitude and timing of these cash flows. -
As at December 31,.2001, the Corporation had sold forward US$84,274 at a weighted average forward exchange rate
of 1.47 (2000 - US$217.664 at a weighted average forward exchange rate of 1.48), under 14 forward contracts (2000 - -
39 forward contracts) maturing over & 13-month period.

Because the Corporation has significant long-term receivables in pounds sterling, the Corporation enters into foreign
exchange forward contracts to protect itself in the event of a strengthening Canadian currency. As at December 31, 2001,
the Corporation had sold forward £15.4 million at a forward exchange rate of 2.13 (2000 - £30.5 million at a weighted
average forward exchange rate of 2.25), under one forward contract (2000 - three forward contracts) maturing in March 2002.

As at December 31, 2000, the Corporation had sold forward AUS$9,000 at a forward exchange rate of Canadian dollar
0.8386, under cne forward contract maturing on December 31, 2001. The Corporation, as at December 31, 2000, also had
sold forward AUS$17,000 at a weighted average forward exchange rate of US dollar 0.6342, under two forward contracts
maturing on March 30, 2001 and December 31, 2001. There were no Australian dollar forward contracts outstanding as at
December 31, 2001, )
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The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is estimated from quotes obtamed from the Corporation’s counterparties
for the same or similar financial instruments.

.

The fair value of financial instruments is as follows:

Estimated - Carrying
fair value amount
2001 . )
Long-term obligations {excluding convertible notes) 3 28,000 $ 28,471
Convertible notes (a) ) 320,000 276,365
Foreign exchange forward contracts {13,000) {7,366}
2000: _
Long-term obligations (excluding convertible notes) ) - 126,000 126,426
Convertible notes (a) - S . 365,000 - 263,866
Foreign exchange forward contracts . o 200 o 2,947

{a) The carrying amount of the convertible notes includes the amounts allocated to both long-term obligations and
shareholders’ equity. It excludes, however, the estimated offering expenses and underwriter's commission related to the
shareholders' equity component of the notes of $6,861, which are recorded in shareholders' equity.

15. Segmented information

The Corporation has two distinct operating segments: management operations and ownership operations: Under its
management operations segment, the Corporation generally supervises all aspects of hotel operations on behalf of the hote!
owners, including hotel sales and marketing, hotel reservations, hotel accounting, purchasing, budgeting and the hiring,
training and supervising of staff. For providing these services, the Corporation typically receives a base fee calculated as a
percentage of gross revenues of the hotel. in addition, the Corporation may receive incentive fees based on the operating
performance of the hotels. Generally, the hotels’ owners, and not the Corporation, fund substantially ail capital expenditures
and working-capital of the. hotels, including all employment and operating costs. This segment also inciudes the licensing
and managing of residential projects and residence clubs. The Corporation is entitled to receive a fee for the use of its brand
name in connection with these projects, and for services provided in the oversight of the sales and marketing of the
residential projects and residence club units. In addition, the Corporatlon receives a fee from the owners of the reS|dent|aI
projects and residence club units for services provided in the ongoing management of these units.

Under its ownership operations segment, the Corporation had an ‘equity interest in eight hotels and resorts under
management, two residence clubs and six projects under construction as at December 31, 2001. Earnings are primarily
derived from the consolidation of its wholly owned mterests in three hotelsand distributions from its other equity interests.
Generally, the ownership operations segment is labour-intensive and is subject to greater ecoriomic fluctuations than the
management operations segment. Qwnership returns can be materlally affected by changes in travel patterns, local wage
rate factors, the level of capital spending that is required to appropriately maintain and renew the hotels, volatility of
construction costs, the availability of hote! financing and changes in interest rates. The Corporation structures its ownership
interests separately from its management interests so as to enable the Corparation to dispose of ownership interests as
sale opportunities arise, without affecting its management interests. -




(a)} Consolidated revenues

Revenues have been allocated to specific geographic segments based on the location of each hotel or resort.

2001

2000

Management ] Ownership. Consolidated Management Ownership Consolidated

revenues revenues revenues revenues revenues revenues

United States . $ 98,467 S 94,131 § 192598 $ 120,238 $ 110,331 "% 230,569
Canada/Mexico/ . - : o : ) o

Caribbean/ : .

- South America o . 17,279 32,271 49,550 17,550 31,588 43,138
Europe/Middie East o 25,910 22,608 48,518 25,264 20,823 46,087
Asia/Pacific 19,016 . — 19,016 22,242 7,368 29,608

" 160,672 ) 149,010 309,682 185,294 170,108 355,402
Less intersegment a
revenues ' {6,576) — (6,576} (7,895) — (7,895) _
$ 154,096' $ 149,010 $ 303106 $ 177,388 $ 170,108 § 347,507
(b} Total assets’
2001 2000
United States . 5 386,882 3 336,644
Canada/Mexico/Caribbean/South America ' 265,188 279,310
Europe/Middie East 209,797 237,791
Asia/Pacific 118,514 130,652
$ 980,381 3 984,397 -

16. Reconciliation to United States GAAP

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as applied in Canada (“Canadian GAAP"}. In the

following respects, generally accepted accounting principles as app

applied in Canada.

Four Seasons Hotels Inc.

lied in the United States ("US GAAP") differ from those
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If US GAAP were emplcyed, the net earnings for the périods would be adjusted as follows:

(continUéﬂ)

2001 2000
Net earnings based on Canadian GAAP ’ S 86,486 103,‘074
Impact on net eamings of US GAAP adjustments:
Hotel partnerships — equity accounting (a) (526) (4,971)
Hotel disposition program (b) 475 331.
Future income taxes (c) {3,360) (1,004)
Convertible notes (d) {5,632) (5,466}
. Deferred charges (e) {7,348) (2,621)
Foreign exchange translation (f) 112,703) (559)
Pension plan {g) (583) (877
Loss on redemption of debt (h) 2,350 —
Earnings before extracrdinary item based on US.GAAP 59,159 88,207
Loss on redemption of debt, net of income tax recovery of $781(h}- ) {1,569) —
Net earnings based on US GAAP : $ 57,590 88,207
Basic earnings per share based on US GAAP {i): ‘ ‘ . )
Earnings before extraordinary item $ 1.69 2.65
Extraordinary item + {0.04) —
Net earnings v $ 1.65 - 2585
Diluted earnings per share based on US GAAP (i):
Earnings before extraordinary |tem : $ 1.61 2.34
Extraordinary item (0.04) —
Net earnings i $ 1.57 234

The impact of the US GAAP differences discussed above on the Corporation’s consolidated -shareholders’ equity is

as follows:

: 2001 2000
Shareholders' equity based on Canadian GAAP. $ 810,136 708,164
Impact on shareholders' equity of US GAAP adjustments:

Hatel partnerships — equity accounting (a) (63,093} (63,735)

Hote! disposition program {b) . 27,290 26,815

Future income taxes (c) 9,258 11,837

Convertible notes (d) {205,448) (189,710)
Deferred charges (e) {32,959} (25,375)
Foreign exchange translation (f) (6,825) 905
Pensicn plan (g) " 5,226 5,809
Share purchase loans (j) . ) —_ (276)
Shareholders' equity based on US GAAP . $ 543,585 474,434

{a) Investments in hotel partnerships and ventures

The Corporation has minority interests (generally less than 20%) in certain hotel partnerships and ventures which, for

Canadian GAAP purposes, the Corporation accounts for on a cost basis (note 1(b)).

‘Under US GAAP (AICPA Statement of Position 78-8 “Accounting for Investments in Real Estate Ventures”), the Corporation
is required to account for its investments in these hotel partnerships and ventures using the equity method of accounting, -
pursuant to which the Corporation records in income its proportionate share of the investee’s net earnings or oss.




{b) Hotel disposition program _

in November 1993, the Corporation implemented a program to dispose of seven hote! properties. Under Canadian GAAP,
this hote! disposition program represented the disposition of a significant portion of the Corporation’s Ownership Operations
segment; accordingly, in both 1993 and 1994 the Corporation made an estimate as to whether it would realize a net gain or
loss on the program in total. As a result, in 1993 the Corporation recorded a provision of $127,000 for the estimated probable’
loss on the sale of the hotels included in the hotel disposition program. The program ended in 1396, and the total net
proceeds received by the Corporation resulting from the dispositions of the hotels included in the program apprommated
the proceeds estimated in 1893; therefore, the program required no further gain or loss to be recorded.

Under US GAAP, the Corporation was required to account for the hotels remaining in the program as individual assets held
for sale. This resulted in the requirement under US GAAP to record, in 1994, a further provision for loss on certain of the
hotels remaining in the program, with the offsetting gains on other hotels recorded when the gains were realized. During
1997, the Corporation met the criteria under US GAAP for recognition of a portion of the gain on the 1995 sale of its 50%
interest in the company that owns Four Seasons Hotel London. Accordingly, the Corporation recognized $30,200 of the gain
in 1997, which represented the recovery of the Corporation's cost; $27,813 of the gain was deferred, and will be recognized
for US GAAP purposes in proportion to the cash payments received on the cash flow bond received in 1995 as consideration
on the sale (note 3(a)). The Corporaticn recognized $475 of the deferred gain in 2001 (2000 — $331). As at December 31,
2001, $21,897 of the gain continues to be deferred. ’

{c) Accounting for future income taxes
The only significant difference between US and Canadian GAAP relates to the treatment of proposed changes in income
tax rates. Under Canadian GAAP, future income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the currently. enacted, or
substantively enacted, tax rates and laws expected to apply when the differences between the accounting basis and tax
basis of assets and liabilities reverse. Under US GAAP, future income tax assets and liabilities are measured using only the
currently enacted tax rates and laws in effect when these differences are expected to reverse. As a result, the charge to
income taxes in 2000 of $3,526 under Canadian GAAP resulting from the propcsed reductions in the Canadian federal
income tax rates announced in 2000, were reversed in 2000 under US GAAP. As at December 31, 2001, this US GAAP
difference was eliminated as all proposed reductions introduced in 2001 and 2000 were passed into law during 2001.

The remaining income tax adjustment from Canadian to US GAAP results from the differences between US and Canadian
GAAP in caleulating earnings before income taxes.

{d) Convertible notes

During 1999, Four Seasons Hotels Inc. issued US$655,519 principal amount at maturity (September 23, 2029) of convertible
notes for gross proceeds of US$172,500 (note 3(a)). Under Canadian GAAP, the notes are bifurcated into a debt component
(representing the present value of a zero coupon bond of US$655,519 maturing in 2029, yielding 9% per annum,
compounding semi-annually} and an equity component (representing the value of the conversion feature of the notes).
Accordingly, net proceeds have been allocated $68,902 to long-term obligations and $178,574 to shareholders’ equity. The
offering expenses and underwriter's commission relating to the debt component of the notes of approximately $2,549 are
recorded in other assets. »

Under US GAAP, gross proceeds of US$172,500 are recorded as long-term obligations, with a Yieid to maturity of 4.5%,
compounding semi-annually. The total offering expenses and underwriter's commission relating to the notes of approximately
$9,410 are recorded in other assets. ’

(e) Deferred charges

The Corporation defers expenditures directly related to the negcetiation, structuring and execution of new management contracts,
and if the property is opened, amortizes these deferred'costs on a straight-line basis over a 10-year period (note 1(h)).

Under US GAAP, such start-up costs are expensed.

(f) Foreign exchange translation )
(i) In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board in the United States issued Statement of Financial
- - Accounting Standards No. 133 ("FAS 133"), "Accounting for-Derivative instruments and Hedging
Activities.” FAS 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivatives and hedging. It requires
that all derivatives be recognized as either assets or liabilities at fair value and establishes specific criteria
for the use of hedging accounting. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 137 deferred the
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effective date of FAS 133; accordingly, the Corporation’s required adoption date was January 1, 2001. In
June 2000, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 138 ("FAS 138") was issued. FAS 138
amended the accounting for certain derivative instruments and certain hedging activities and provided
guidance on |mplementlng FAS 133. FAS 133 is not to be apphed retroactively to financial statements of
prior periods.

The only significant impact on the Corporation in 2001 was the mark-to-markst of the Corporation’s US$ forward
exchange contracts which resulted in an additional foreign exchange loss in 2001, under US GAAP, of $5,634.

(i) During 2001, the Corporation reduced its net investment in one of its Asian self-sustaining subsidiaries
and recognized a foreign exchange gain under Canadian GAAP of $4,973 (note 11(al).

Under US GAAP, the foreign exchange gain can only be recognized on the sale or liquidation of the investment.

(iii) Under US GAAP, the amount of convertible notes allocated to long-term obligations is higher than under
Canadian GAAP. The US dollar monetary liabilities is-therefore higher under US GAAP, which resulted in
an increase of foreign exchange loss in 2001 of $2,096 {2000 - increase of foreign exchange loss of $553)
under US GAAP.

(g) Pension plan :
The Corporation has a defined benefit pension plan for certain vice presidents and hotel general managers. This plan is funded
by life insurance policies on the Ilves of certain of the participantsin the plan.

-For Canadian GAAP purposes, the Corporation, effective January 1, 2000, changed its accounting policy relating to the
accounting for future employee benefits, including pension benefits. The Corporation adopted the new standard for pension
benefits retroactively, without restating the financial staterents of prior periods. This eliminated substantially all of the_
differences between US and Canadian GAAP relating to the accounting for pension benefits.

The only remaining significant difference between US and Canadian GAAP relates to the treatment of actuarial gains and
losses. Under Canadian GAAP, the transitional provisions relating to the new Canadian GAAP standard for accounting for
pension plans permit the impact of the change to the new standard to be accounted for retroactively, without restatement
of prior years' financial statements. As a result, the Corporation recorded in 2000 a charge to retained earnings representing

the differences between the amount accrued by the Corporation under the prior accounting standard and the actuarial -

obligation as measured under the new standard, which included the net unamortized actuarial losses as at December 31,
- 1999. Under US GAAP, the net unamortized actuarial losses as at December 31, 1998 are amortized, on a straight-line basis,
over the expected average remaining service life of employees expected to receive benefits under the plan.

(h} Loss on redemption of debt -
Buring 2001, the Corporatlon redeemed $100,000 of its unsecured debentures Wthh resulted in an accounting Ioss of
$2,350 inote S(bl). Under Canadian GAAP, this loss was recorded as an operating loss.

Under.US GAAP, this loss, net of applicable income tax recovery, is recorded as an extraordinary loss.

(i) Earnings per share ) ‘ . .

For Canadian GAAP purpases, the Cerporation, effective January 1, 2001, adopted the “treasury stock method” for calculating
the dilution relating to shares issuable under the Corporation’s stock option plans {note 1()}. The Corporation has adopted
this new accounting standard retroactively, resulting in the restatement of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
December 31, 2000. This eliminated the difference between US GAAP and Canadian GAAP relating to the calculation of
diluted earnings per share. : :

{j) -Share purchase loans
Under US GAAP, share purchase loans are deducted from shareholders’ equity.

(k) Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not yet adopted
(i) Business combinations . :
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board in the United States (“FASB ") issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (“FAS 141"} which provides guidance on the accohnting for business
combinations. FAS 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business




(i)

(i)

“iv)

(v}

combinations initiated after June 30, 200%. The use of the pooling-of-interest method will no longer be
permitted. The implementation of FAS 141 is not expected to have an impact on the Corporation. The method
of accounting for business combinations under US GAAP and Canadian GAAP will be substantially the same.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accountmg Standards Na. 142 (*FAS 142°) which
provides guidance on the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets. Effective January 1, 2002,
goodwill will no longer be required to be amortized, but instead will be subject to an annual test of
impairment. An intangible asset will be required to be amortized over its useful life, unless the life is -
determined to be indefinite. When an intangible asset is determined to have an indefinite useful life, such
as the Corporation's investment in trademarks and trade names, no amortization of the asset is required
until its life is determined to be no longer indefinite. These intangible assets, however, will be subject to
an annual test of impairment. If the carrying value of an intangible asset or goodwill exceeds its fair value,
an impairment loss is required to be recognized in an amount equalto the excess. The Corparation did
not have an impairment loss as at December 31, 2001.

In addition, the Corporation, in 2001, amortized its investment in management contracts on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the contracts. If the life of the contract exceeded 40 years, a 40-year period was
used. Under FAS 142, the Corporation will amortize its investment in management contracts over the
actual term of the contract in proportion to the benefits received. i

Although the impact of FAS 142 on the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets has not yet
been‘precisely determined, it is expected that the new accounting standard will result in lower amortization
expense in 2002 of approximately $1 million to $2 million. The method of accounting for goodwill and ather
intangible assets under US GAAP and Canadian GAAP will be substantially the same.

Accounting for asset retirement obligations :
In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 ("FAS 143"} which
provides guidance on the accounting for asset retirement obligations. FAS 143 requires an entity to record
the fair value of an asset retirement obligation as a liability in the period in which it incurs a legal obligaticn
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets. FAS 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2001. The implementation of FAS 143 is not expected to have an impact on the Corporation.

Accounting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“FAS 144 ")
which provides guidance cn the accounting for the impairment or disposal of long- Jived assets. FAS 144
provides guidance on how a long-lived asset that is used as part of a group should be evaluated for
impairment, establishes criteria for when a long-lived asset is held for sale, and prescribes the accounting
for a long-lived asset that will be disposed of other than by sale. In addition, FAS 144 eliminated the
exception to consolidation for a temporary controlled subsidiary. This statement also retains the basic
provisions of APB Opinion No. 30 for the presentation of discontinued operations in the statement

"of operations but broadens that presentation to include a component of an entity rather than a segment

of business. FAS 144 is effactive for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Corporation does
not expect the implementation of FAS 144 will have a material impact on its consolidated financial
statements. The CICA has proposed-a similar standard in Canada.

Foreign currency translation and hedglng relationships

Effective January 1, 2002, the CICA amended the accounting standard for foreign currency trans!at:on by
eliminating the requwement to defer and amortize unrealized transiation gains and losses on long-term
foreign currency denominated monetary items with a determinable life, such as the Corporation's long-
term receivables and long-term cbligations in US dollars. Due to the hedging relaticnships established by
the Corporation relating to its-long-term receivables, long-term abligations, investments in self-sustaining
foreign operations and foreign exchange forward contracts, it is not expected that the amendment to the
standard on accounting for foreign currency: translation will have .a significant impact on the Corporation.
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PY ' R """ Notes to Consolidated Financial 'S'ta'temé"n;t"s {continued)

‘In addition, in December 2001, the CICA issued an accounting guideline relating to hedging relationships.

. _ The guideline establishes requirements for the identification, documentation, designation and effectiveness

S ' ' of hedging relationships, which will be effective for fiscal years beginning on or after July 1, 2002. The

e Corporation has not yet determined the impact of the implementation of this guideline on its 2003
' ) . consalidated financial statements. -

{vi}) Stock-based compensation and other stock-based payments :
in December of 2001, the CICA issued a new standard relating to the accounting for stock-based
compensation and other stock-based payments. The new accounting standard requires the use of a fair
. » value based methaod to account for stock-based payments to non-employees, and employee awards that
® R . are direct awards of stock, cash or other assets, or are stock appreciation rights that cali for settlement
s by the issuance of equity instruments, granted on or after January 1, 2002, .

. The new accounting standard permits the Corporation to use its existing policy that no compensation

. expense is recorded on the grant of stock options to employees. Consideration paid by employees on the

exercise of stock options or the purchase of shares is. recorded as capital stock. The new accounting

‘ . standard does, however, require additional disclosures for options granted tc employees, including

@ ’ o - disclosure of pro forma earnings and pro forma earnings per share as if the fair value based accounting
g method had been used to account for employee stock options. :

The new accounting standard is effective on January 1, 2002. Itis not expected that the adoption of this
standard will have a material impact on the financial condition or results of operations of the Corporation.

{I) Statements of cash provided by operations and cash flows .
(iy: For Canadian GAAP purposes, the Corporation’s statements of cash provided by operations show
: : intermediate subtotals, and only show the total change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities.

US GAAP does not permit intermediate subtotals .in cash provided by operations, and requires
the statement to show the details of changes in non-cash operating assets and liabilities. In addition,
the above adjustments to US GAAP earnings relating to deferred charges would also affect cash provided
by operations.

As a result, cash provided by operations would be presented as foliows on a US GAAP basis:

‘ ) 2001 ‘ 2000
Net earnings based on US GAAP ) S 57,590 ° $ 88,207
Adjustments: ‘
Depreciation and amortization 14,218 : 12,261
Unrealized foreign exchange loss . 15,018 1,858
Recovery of loss {1,908} {4,877)
Gain on disposal of hotel investments : (30,873} ©(331)
Equity in losses of and distributions from hotel investments 526 4,971
Loss on redemption of debt, net of income tax recovery 1,569 - ;_
Future income taxes . 7,386 © 2,734
Other ' 184 (892}
E Changes in non-cash working capital: ' ’
o Accounts receivable . ‘ 14,412 (32,674)
S ‘ Inventory (268) 63
Prepaid expenses . {993) 255
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (8,501) 25,923
Foreign currency translation effect on non-cash working capital 410 747
Cash provided by operations based on US GAAP $ 68,770 $ 98,245




(i) As a result of the above adjustment, the major captions on the Corporation’s statements of cash flows
on a Canadian GAAP basis are reconciled to a US GAAP basis as follows:

- 2001 2000

Cash provided by operations based on Canadian GAAP $ 75,510 $ 102,633
Deferred charges . ) {6,740} {4,388)
Cash provided by cperations based on US GAAP - 68,770 98,245
Cash provided by (used in) financing based on _

US and Canadian GAAP - ) {103,663) 3,671
Cash provided by (used in) capital transactions based ' .,

on Canadian GAAP . 19,023 ~(111,897)
Deferred charges 6,740 . 4,388
Cash provided by (L_Jsed in) capital transactions based _ o
~ on US GAAP. : . 25,763 - " {107.608)
Decrease in cash ' $ {9,130) " $ . (5,793

{m) Comprehensive income :

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board in the United States issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 130 {“FAS 130"), which establishes standards for reporting and display of comprehensive income and it§
components {revenues, expenses, gains, and losses) in a full set of general-purpose financial statements. FAS 130 requires
that all items that are required to be recognized under accounting standards as components of comprehensive income be
- reparted in a financial statement that is displayed with the same prominence as other financial statements.

FAS 130 requires that the Corporation () classify items of other comprehensive income by their nature in a financial statement
and (i) display the accumulated balance of other comprehensive income separately from capital stock, contributed surplus
and retained earnings in the shareholders’ equity section of the balance sheet.

The statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 would be presented as follows
on a US GAAP basis: : )

2001 2000

Net earnings based on US GAAP ' 2 57,590 3 88,207
Other comprehensive loss net of income tax: v :

Foreign currency translation gain {loss) 12,092 (1,614)

Cumulative adjustment for FAS133 adoption {1,676) : —

. Reclassified to earnings ' 1,676 —_

Comprehensive income based on US GAAP - s 69,682 % 86,593

The accumulated other comprehensive income balances for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 would be
presented as follows on a US GAAP basis:

Balance at December 31, 1998 (foreign currency items) $ 12,020
Foreign currency transiation loss (1,614)
‘Balance at December 31, 2000 : - . ’ 10,406
Foreign currency transiation gain ) . : 12,092
. Cumulative adjustment for FAS133 adoption {1,676)
 Reclassified to earnings » ' 1,676
-Balance at December 31, 2001 ] - s 122,498
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"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) -

(n) Investments in hotel partnerships and corporations

The composition of the Corporation’s total investrments in hotel partnerships and corporations on a US GAAP basis is
as follows: S
2001 2000

Equity method in\)estments : ] $ 36,550 $ 41,507
Other investments, on a cost basis 99,645 ’ 125,520
Total investments in hotel partnerships and corporations based on US GAAP S 136,195 $ 167,027

For the equity method investments, the accounting for these investments represents the aggregate of: (i) capital contributions
to the partnerships, (i) the Corporation’s proportionate share of the net earnings or loss of the partnerships, {iii) distributions
from the partnerships, and {iv) write-offs for impairment in the carrying vaiue of the investment in the partnerships. "

The changes in the Corporation's equity method investments are as follows: .
2001 2000

Equity method investments, beginning of year '8 ‘41,507 3 39,330
Net earnings . ’ 32 6,687
Distributions recsived : (558) (9,046)
Additional investments : - 366 B 530.
Transfer/sale of net assets and other . . (4,797) 4,006 -
Equity method investments, end of year : $ 36,550 $ 41,507 -

Management and other fees totalling $25,046 and $32,979 were charged by the Corporaticn to its equity method investees
in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Summarized balance sheet information of the equity method investments {none of which is individually significant), presented
on a 100% basis, is as follows: . :

2001 2000

Current assets ' - $ 78,015 $ 85,876
Long-term assets, net . : 530,707 540,692
$ 608,722 $ 626,568

Current liabilities - ‘ $ 154,282 $ 94,978
Long-term obligations and other ' 387,965 418,481
Equity : - 66,475 113,109
$ 608,722 $ - 626,568

Summarized results of operations of the equity method investments {none of which is individually significant), presented
on a 100% basis, are as follows: '

2001 2000
Revenues ‘ » ) $ 328,517 $ 471,409
Expenses (328,653} '(418,950)
Net earnings (loss) . s {136} $_ 52,458

The proportionate taxable income or loss of all hotel partnerships and ventures is included in the taxable income of their
respective partners. Accordingly, no provisions for income taxes on such entities are included in the above statements.




7 (o) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on a US GAAP basis consist of:

2001 2000

Trade accounts payable $ 19,410 3 18,823

Payroll and employee benefits 15,658 18,453

Accrued sales, marketing and advertising. 6,078 2,804

Accrued restructuring charge ‘ k 2,032 —
‘Dividends payable _ ' 1,815 C1.813°

- Taxes payable ) —_ 17,339

Accrued interest : - —_ 3,000

. Other accruals " 5,820 ) " 8873

$ 50,813 3 71,105

{p! Stock-based compensation plan . ‘
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 ("FAS 123"} provides guidance on the accounting for stock-based
compensation pians, such as the Corporation’s Director, Officer and Employee Stock Option Plans (the “Plans”).

As allowed by FAS 123; the Corporation has decided to continue to use Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 26
{"APB 25"}, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” in accounting for the Plans for US GAAP purposes, pursuant
to which there is no significant difference.between US and Canadian GAAP in the accounting for the granting of options to
employees under the Plans. ’ :

FAS 123, however, requires certain pro forma and other information to be diéciosed as if the Corporation had measured the
compensation element of stock options granted to employees based on the fair value of the options on the date of grant.
Accordingly, the compensation element of stcck opticns issued by the Corporation in 2001 and 2000, based on the fair value
of the options on the date of grant, has been estimated using a Black-Scheoles option pricing model with the following
-assumptions for 2001 and 2000, respectively: risk-free interest rates ranging from 5.2% 10 5.6% and 5.3% to 6.3%; semi- -
annual dividend per Limited Voting Share of $0.055 for both years; volatility factors of the expected market price of the
Corporation’s Limited Voting Shares ranging from 45% to 52% and 39% to 44%; and an expected life of the opticns of
10 years. The weighted-average grant-date fair values of options issued in 2001 and 2000 were $44.65 and $54.70,
respectively. For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over
the options' vesting period, which ranges from one to five years: Retroactive applicaticn of the fair value method to prior
years is not permitted; therefore, the full effect of the fair value method will not be refiected in the pro forma disclosures
until it has been applied to all nonvested options. Assuming the Corporation had accounted for its stock options issued under
the fair value method, US GAAP pro forma net earriings for the year ended December 31, 2001 would have been $26,813
(2000 ~ $62,674) and US GAAP pro forma basic earnings per share and pro forma diluted earnings per share for the year
ended December 31, 2001 would have been $0.77 and $0.76, respectively (2000 - $1.81 and $1.75, respectively).
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s Genéral

~

Corporate Governance

The Corporatron s corporate governance polrcres are desrgned to ensuire that the Board of Drrectors of FSHl (the "Board”) o

.-can fulfill its statutory mandate to’ supervrse the management of the business and dffairs of FSHIwith the goal of maxrmnzrng -
~ shareholder value. The Corporatron s system of: governance is consistent with the guidelines for: effective corporate
~ governarice (the * Gurdelrnes }that have been adopted by The Toronto Stock Exchange.:The by-| Jaws of The Toronto Stock.

Exchange require disclosure on an annual basis of the approach to corporate governance by companres listed on the ,

_ Exchange, The Guidelines address matters such as the constitution and independence of corporate boards, the functlons
. tobe performed by. boards ‘and: thelr committees and the effectiveness.and educatron of board members: The Company -
.. Teviews its approach to corporate governance against the Gurdelrnes and other developments relatrng to corporate ::

governance annually

The Board of Directors i : o . =
In fulfrllrng its statutory mandate ‘and drschargrng its duty of. stewardshrp of FSHI the Board assumes responsrbrllty for:

' (a) reviewing and approvrng the strategic plannrng and business objectrves that’ are submitted by management and

" ‘monitoring the rmplementatlon by management of the strategic plan

S

(b) rdentlfyrng the prrncrpal busrness rrsks “for the Corporatron ‘and overseerng the lmplementatlon and monrtorrng of T

- ,approprrate rrsk management systems, with the Audit Commlttee assrstmg the Board in the |mplementatron and; N

' monrtorrng of appropriate risk management systems and the monltorrng of the risks and reportrng on these matters

o regularly to the Board;

“(e) 'bensunng rnternal control and management information systems for the Corporatron are in place evaluated as part of

_the internal.auditing process and reviewed periodically by the Audit Committee; with the Audit Committee assessrng
~the effectrveness of the'internal control and management infoermation systems through meetings held with the external
audltors as approprlate arid senior rnanagement and-a review of reports prepared by senior management ’

) Aassessrng the performance of the Corporation’s executive officers, |ncludmg monrtonng the establrshment of approprrate .

systems for succession planningand for periodically monitoring the compensatron Ievels of such executrve ofﬂcers based
on the determrnatlons made by the Compensatron and Organization Commrttee and : 0

' (e)‘ ensurrng that the Corporatlon has in place a polrcy for effectrve communrcatron wuth shareholders other stakeholders "

and the publlc generally

_.“"'_“The Board is scheduled ) meet frve tlmes a year and meets more frequently lf requwed Durrng the 2001 frscal year the‘_ g
g Board held 10 meetings. .. :

The Gurdelrnes suggest that every board of drrectors should have ln place approprrate structures and procedures to ensure
that the board can function mdependently of management. : :

The Guidelines suggest thatthe chairman of the board of directors should not be a member of management or alternatlvely,: )
that the board adopt equivalent. procedures such as assigning the responsrbrllty of ensuring that the board discharges its

responsibility to a lead director or commrttee of the board. In this respect the Corporatlon has adopted a variety of structuresf»f -

to allow for the independence of the Board from management lncludrng the appointment of the Chairman of the Corporate

Governance Committee as-lead dlrector the practrce of having non-management members of the Board meet periodically -
as a group, the Board initiating drscu5510ns with senior management without the Chief Executrve Offrcer present so that

they may voice any concerns, and the ongoing monitoring of the relationship between the Board and management by.the- '

. Corpcrate Governance Committee, which is charred by an mdependent director.

Another of the Guidelines recommends that the board of drrectors and the Chief Executive Offlcer should develop posrtlon S

descriptions for the board and for the Chief Executive Officer that define the limits of management's responsibilities. In this
regard, the Board has adopted a job description and statement of functions for the Chief Executive Officer that delegates’.

“to.him:the day-to-day responsibility for directing the &ffairs of the Corporation and for meeting the corporate objectives and"
implementing-the corporate -policies approved by-the Board. The Chief Executive Officer: reports formally to the Board;
'as well as less formally through dlsoussmns Wlth members of the Board, to advrse the Board on a trmely basrs of coursesa




“of actlon that are belng consldered by management and are bemg followed The Board exercises |ts responsrblllty for -
oversrght through the appraval of all srgnlflcant decisions and initiatives. The Board is satisfied that the Chref Executlve Officer k
'has reported to, and sought the consent of the Board where necessary and approprlate SRR

Board Composmon 3 - ; : - e
The Gurdelrnes reqwre careful con3|deratlon ot the srze composrtron and relatlye |ndependence of corporate boards The‘
Guidelines recommend that.a corporation should bé constltuted with @ majority of rndlwduals who qualify-as' unrelated’,
" directors. According to the Guidelings; an "unrelated” director is a-director who is |ndependent of management and'is free
vfrom any interest.and any business or other relationship that could, or. could reasonably be perceived.to, interfere materlally.
with the director's ability to act with a view to the best interests of- the Corporatlon other than lnterests and relatlonshlps( .
~ arising from shareholding. The Guidelines emphasize the ability to exercrse objectlve 1udgment lndependent of management ;
asa hallmark of an unrelated dlrector S

Due to the reslgnatron of Mr. Mustafa lbrahlm Al-Hejailan on January 2, 2002 and the apporntment of Mr Slmon M. Turner ,'
to the Board on. February 14, 2002, the srze of the Board remains unchanged at 13 members

The . Board in con]unctron with the Corporate Governance Cornrnlttee has ‘determined, after rewewmg the roles
.and relat1onsh|ps particuiar to each of the directors, that seven of the 13 drrectors of FSHI who served in the 2001 financial "

year-were unrelated. The. directars. who-were considered to be unrelated in 2001 aré:Nan- b de" Gaspé:Beaubien, ..

Charles S. Henry, Murray B Koffler,, J. Robert §.-Prichard, Benjamin Swirsky; Shurchlro Tamaki and Mustafa Ibrahim - ‘
CAl- He]allan Upon the resignation of Mustafa Ibrahim Al- He]allan on February 14, 2002 Slmon M. Turner, who is con5|dered ‘
~an unrelated director, was reappomted to the Board. o

Mr lsadore Sharp isa 5|gn|flcant shareholder (as deflned in the Gutdellnes) of FSHI since he controls shares carrylng the,
'ablllty to exercise a:majority of the votesfor the electian of the Board. The Guidelines suggest that where there is a srgnn‘lcant
_shareholder the Board should include a number of directors-who do not have mterests in, or relatlonshlps with, elther the -

Corporatron or the significant shareholder and who. fairly reflect the. investrnent ll’l FSHI by shareholders ‘other than the .

srgnlfrcant shareholder. Seven. of the directars who sérved in the 2001 financial year are also unrelated.to the significant
§ shareholder and are unrelated to the Corporatlon for these purposes The Board believes that at present thls balance
serves the Corporatlon S needs ) . :

“In 1997 the articles of FSHI were:amended to permrt holders of erlted Votlng Shares ‘as-a class tor elect two members‘

- of the Board. Accordingly, at each annual meeting of shareholders two members of the Board are elected by holders’,. -
-of ‘Limited Voting Shares. At the-Annual Meeting of the Shareholders on.May 30, 2001, Nan- b de Gaspe Beaubién and- i

J. Robert S Pnchard were elected by the holders of the lelted Votlng Shares : 7

The Board belleves that lt has functloned and contmues to functlon mdependently of management

g

Commlttees of the Board of Dlrectors ’ : : : : :
. The Board has three committegs. The members of the Commlttees are appotnted annually followrng the. electlon of the Boardw

"~ of Directors at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders These Committees are generally composed .of out5|de dlrectors and a' i

majority of these dlrectors are unrelated: in this regard, the Corporation complies.with the Guidelines. The onfy membér of

management represented on a Committeg'is the Chief Executive Officer, who sits on the Compensation and Organization. ,

Commlttee The Chief Executive Offlcer is not present when matters relatlng to his own compensation are belng dlscussed o

Each of the Commrttees penodlcally reviews and assesses lts mandate and has the authorlty to retarn specral Iegal accounttng o
or other consultants to advise the Committee. : :
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Corporate Governance (continued)

S

in 2001 the Commrttees of the Board were as follows
Audrt Commlttee Members Charles S. Henry Murray B. Koffler,- Llonel H Schrpper Ben;amrn Swrrsky (Charrmanl

The Audrt Commrttee is composed entlrely of outsrde directors. It has pr|mary oversrght responsrbllrty for the Corporatlon s
 financial reporting, risk management and mternal controls, The Committee has unrestricted access to the Corporatlon ]
personnel and documents and 1o the Corporation’s external ‘uditors and takes advantage of such access as'it ‘deems
" necessary. The Audit Committee revrews the-annual and quarterly f|nanc1al statements and accompanying; management s
“discussion and analysis and recommends their’ approval to the Board. Itis not, however the responsrbmty of the Audit
' Committee to determine that the Corporatlon s financial statements are complete and acclrate and in accordance wrth

. generally accepted accounting principles; whrch is'the responsrbllrty of management or to plan.and conduct audjts of the.:
. Corporation’s financial statements, which is the responsibility of the external audltor The Audit. Committee assesses the '

independsnce of the external auditor and the external auditor's other relatronshrps with the, Corporatlon reviews the scope
" and planning of the external audit, the form of audit report and-any correspondence from or comment by the external audltors ’

regarding financial reportlng and lnternal controls: ;

in an effort to 'ensure the independence of the ‘external audrtor the Audlt Commrttee has limited the external aud|tors abllrty
- to provide certain non-audit services. More particularly; the Audit Commrttee has lrmrted the ability of the external audrtor to
provide mternal audit services or consultlng on computer systems; used for financial accountlng and reportrng The Audrt
" Committee will review any proposal for other non-audit services to be provided. by the external auditor that mlght reasonably.-
" be expected to compromise the independence of the auditor in drschargrng its-audit-related responsibilities. The Audit Commlttee i f
will also review the hiring of partnars or managers of the external auditers Dy the Corporatlon who have had-a direct’ |nvolvement
in a recent audit. The Audit Committee'is updated regularly about current accounting issues and developments and has expla|ned
to it the various alternatives available under GAAP that could result in lower revenues and/or profits and higher asset write-offs™
and/or greater liabilities. The Audit Committee updates the Board of the foregoing as necessary The Audit Committee réviews .
‘the competence of key partners and managers of the external auditors. In addition, the Audit Committee reviews relevant analyst
reports-and press accounts of the Corporatron s accountrng practices and dlsclosures Accordrngly, the Corporatron complres
with the appllcable Guldehnes : :

Compensation and Organlzatlon Commlttee Members Nan-b de Gaspe Beaublen Edmond Creed Charles S Henry,
Lionel H. Schlpper (Charrman) Isadore Sharp Benjamln Swirsky:” : L

The Compensatron and Organrzatron Commrttee has responsrbrlrty for ensuring that a process is in place to mamtaln a

‘ compensatron program for the senior executive officers. of the Corporat(on at a fair and competrtlve level. The: Commlttee' =

also has responsrblllty for ensunng that programs related to ‘manpower plannlng management development successron
The Commrttee reviews the compensatron and remuneration of the Board with a view to ensurlng “that it reahstrcally
- reflects ‘the responsibilities and risk involved in berng an effectrve dlrector Accordrngly the Corporatron complres wrth the
appllcable Guldellnes : .

Corporate Governance Commrttee Members Nan b'de Gaspe Beaubren Charles S Henry Murray B Koffler J Robert
'S. Prichard (Chalrman) Llonel H. Schrpper ‘

The Corporate Governance Committee is composed entlrely of outside dlrectors a majority of whom are unrelated drrectors
:-Its.mandate is to enhance’ the Corporation’s corporate governance process through ongoing: assessment,. and
recommendations for improvement, of the Corporatlon s approach t6 corporate ‘governance. The Corporate Governance
- Committee develops for the approval of the Board a report on the Corporatlon s corporate’ governance practrces When ;
necessary, the Corporate Governance Committee determines suitable candidates for nominees as directors, periodically
reviews the mandates of and assesses the effectiveness of committees of the Board, and assesses the effectiveness of
the directors, oversees an crientation and education program for new recruits to the Board in order to familiatize.them with
‘the business.of the Corporation, reviews the relationship between management and the Board, and assesses the Board’ s
effectiveness as a whole. The Corporate Governance Committee has also been granted the authonty and direction'to take
such other initiatives as are needed to help the Board address corporate governance issuesand to approve the engagement :
of independent advisors for individual. directors at the expense of the Corporatron lf the need should arrse Accordrngly the .
Corporatlon complres wrth the applrcable Gurdelrnes :




) Commumcatmg to Shareholders Sl : : : .
! The Board of FSHI"is commltted to an effectlve commumcatlons pollcy for the beneflt of all stakeholders |ncl’udlng o
_.vshareholders debt tholders; suppllers guests governmental authorities, employees. and members. ‘of the mvestment
i communlty In addltlon to its tlmely and: continuous dlsclosure obllgatlons under appllcable Taw. the Board also has a -
B formal policy for deallng with analysts shareholders and the flnanmal press so as o facrhtate the d|sse ination of |nformatlon o

These practices are intended 1o provide tlmely dlsclosure of materlal mformatlon in-a manner that is broadly accesstble on..
anon- exclusronary baS|s by aII market partlmpants :

To facﬂltate this open commumcatlon and to avoid selectwe disclosure, the Corporatron holds regular information meetlngs

_or calls after the release of: quarterly and annual results and holds rneetmgs or-calls in association’ W|th the release of other ..
- information by the Corporatlon Al such meetings and calls are‘open to the: publlc Details-of the notice of time, place; general -

substance and method of accessing any such meeting or call and instructions as to where and how long.the public will: be

able to access transcnpts or replays are broadly drssemlnated Toi increase aCCGSSlbIhW all such |nformat|on is also avallable :
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